-~

\_

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE
Tuesday, 11th December, 2012

10.00 am

Council Chamber, Sessions House, County Hall,
Maidstone

~

Council







AGENDA

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 11th December, 2012, at 10.00 am  Ask for: Andrew Tait
Council Chamber, Sessions House, County Telephone: 01622 694342
Hall, Maidstone

Tea/Coffee will be available from 9:30 outside the meeting room
Membership (18)

Conservative (16): Mr J A Davies  (Chairman), Mr C P Smith  (Vice-Chairman),
Mr R E Brookbank, Mr AR Chell, MrT Gates, MrW A Hayton,
Mr C Hibberd, Mr P J Homewood, MrJ D Kirby, MrJ F London,
Mr S C Manion, Mr R F Manning, Mr R J Parry, Mrs P A V Stockell,
Mrs E M Tweed and Mr A T Willicombe

Liberal Democrat (1):  Mr | S Chittenden

Independent (1) MrR J Lees

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public

A. COMMITTEE BUSINESS

1. Substitutes
Declarations of Interests by Members in items on the Agenda for this meeting.
Minutes - 6 November 2012 (Pages 1 - 8)

Site Meetings and Other Meetings

. MINERALS AND WASTE DISPOSAL APPLICATIONS

2
3
4
B. GENERAL MATTERS
Cc
D

. DEVELOPMENTS TO BE CARRIED OUT BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL

1. Proposal TW/12/1442 (KCC/TW/0151/2012) New primary school with associated
hardcourt play areas, access, parking and landscaping at Land South of
Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook; KCC Property and Infrastructure Support
(Pages 9 -72)

2.  Proposal TM/12/2777 (KCC/TM/0273/2012) - Extensions and alterations to existing
office, swimming pool and nursery buildings at St Katherine's School, St
Katherine's Lane, Snodland; Governors of St Katheriine's School (Pages 73 - 88)



3. Proposal TH/12/755 (KCC/TH/0291/2012) - Retrospective application for two
timber framed chalet style buildings at Cliftonville Primary School, Northumberland
Avenue, Margate; Governors of Cliftonville Primary School (Pages 89 - 98)

E. COUNTY MATTERS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

1. County matter applications (Pages 99 - 102)

2. Consultations on applications submitted by District Councils or Government
Departments

3. County Council developments

4.  Screening opinions under Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact
Assessment) Regulations 2011

5.  Scoping opinions under Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact
Assessment) Regulations 2011 (None)

F. OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT

EXEMPT ITEMS

(At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items. During any such items
which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public)

Peter Sass
Head of Democratic Services
(01622) 694002

(Please note that the background documents referred to in the accompanying papers may
be inspected by arrangement with the Departments responsible for preparing the report.
Draft conditions concerning applications being recommended for permission, reported in
sections C and D, are available to Members in the Members’ Lounge.)

Monday, 3 December 2012



Agenda ltem A3

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE

MINUTES of a meeting of the Planning Applications Committee held in the Council
Chamber, Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Tuesday, 6 November 2012.

PRESENT: Mr J A Davies (Chairman), Mr C P Smith (Vice-Chairman),
Mr R E Brookbank, Mr AR Chell, Mr IS Chittenden, Mr T Gates, Mr W A Hayton,
Mr C Hibberd, Mr P J Homewood, MrJ D Kirby, MrJ F London, Mr S C Manion,
Mr R F Manning, Mr R J Parry, Mrs P AV Stockell, Mrs EM Tweed  and
Mr A T Willicombe

ALSO PRESENT: Mr J N Wedgbury

IN ATTENDANCE: Mrs S Thompson (Head of Planning Applications Group),
Mr J Crossley (Team Leader - County Council Development), Ms A H Hopkins
(Principal Planning Officer - Enterprise and Environment), Mr J Wooldridge (Team
Leader - Mineral Developments), MrJ Moat (Planning Officer), Mr R White
(Development Planning Manager) and Mr A Tait (Democratic Services Officer)

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

59. Membership
(ltem 2)

The Committee noted the appointment of Mr | S Chittenden.

60. Minutes -9 October 2012
(Item A4)

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting held on 9 October 2012 are correctly
recorded and that they be signed by the Chairman.

61. Application TM/12/983 (KCC/TM/0075/2012) - Aggregate Recycling Facility
and Concrete Batching Plant, together with amendments to the currently
approved quarry restoration plans at Ham Hill Quarry, Snodland; Tarmac Ltd
(Item C1)

(1)  Mr C P Smith informed the Committee that he was a Member of Tonbridge
and Malling Borough Council. He had not considered the application in that capacity
and was able to approach its determination with a fresh mind.

(2) Mr R Woolley from Jacobs, the County Council’s Noise, Dust and Odour
Consultant was present for this item to explain his professional views and to answer
Members’ questions, particularly in respect of Noise.

(3)  The Head of Planning Applications Group reported that Tonbridge and Malling
Borough Council had maintained its objection to the application and had also
recommended that if permission were granted all operational and storage facilities
should be maintained in the south east corner of the site.

Page 1



(4) Mr M Balfour addressed the Committee in his capacity as a local Borough
Councillor from the neighbouring ward of Birling and also on behalf of the Local
Member, Mrs S V Hohler who was unable to attend the meeting. He spoke in
opposition to the application, as did Mr D Chiddention, a local resident. Mr S Chaffe
from Matthews and Son spoke in reply on behalf of the applicants.

(5) The Head of Planning Applications Group reported the views of Mrs S V
Hohler, the Local Member in opposition to the application.

(6) Mrs P AV Stockell moved, seconded by Mrs E M Tweed that night time
working at the site should be for a trial period of two years.
Carried by 9 votes to 6 with 1 abstention

(7)  The Head of Planning Applications Group assured the Committee that the
proposed noise monitoring would enable the effects of night-time working and the
need or otherwise for additional acoustic attenuation to be assessed. It would also
provide a basis for considering any future proposed extension to the 2-year
temporary night-time working period.

(8) On being put to the vote, the recommendations of the Head of Planning
Applications Group were carried (as amended) with no opposition.

(9) RESOLVED that;-

(@) permission be granted to the application subject conditions, including
conditions covering a 5 year implementation period; the development
being carried out in accordance with the permitted details; a limit of
100,000 tonnes per annum being stored and processed within the
aggregate recycling facility; a limit of 30,000 cubic metres of concrete
production per annum associated with the concrete batching plant;
details/specification of the acoustic fence being submitted for approval,
erection of the acoustic fence prior to the commencement of
development and its maintenance in perpetuity for the life of the
permitted operations; ecological mitigation being implemented (as
detailed in the application) when constructing the acoustic fence; day-
time noise from site operations being limited to 55 dB LAeq, 1 hr; night-
time working being permitted for a trial period of two years with night-
time noise from site operations being limited to 50 dB LAmax; all
vehicles on site using broadband reversing alarms during night-time
periods; no audible tanoy/PA system being used during night-time
periods; a scheme of noise monitoring; the hours of working for
processing and sale of materials associated with the aggregate
recycling facility being 08:00 to 18:00 hours on Mondays to Fridays,
08:00 to 13:00 hours on Saturdays, and no operations (except for
essential maintenance and then only between 08:00 to 18:00 hours)
taking place on Sundays and Bank Holidays; the hours of working of
the concrete batching plant being 07:00 to 18:00 hours on Mondays to
Fridays, 07:00 to 13:00 hours on Saturdays, and no operations (except
for essential maintenance and then only between 08:00 and 18:00
hours) taking place on Sundays and Bank Holidays; the removal of the
remaining indigenous sand reserves and restoration being completed

Page 2



within 18 months from the implementation of the development (in
accordance with the revised restoration scheme); the height of material
stockpiles being restricted to no more than 6m above the quarry floor
and no vehicles, machinery, plant or equipment being operated on top
of the stockpiles; the retention, maintenance and management of the
restored landscape areas for the life of the development; a formal 5
year aftercare period for the restored landscaped areas; dust mitigation
measures; measures to control mud and debris being tracked out of the
site; details of any site lighting being submitted for approval; and details
of the concrete batching plant being submitted for approval,

(b) the applicants be advised, by Informative that a Site Liaison Committee
should be established in accordance with the general terms which the
applicant has proposed; and

(c) the applicants be requested to re-paint Public Right of Way MR75A
crossing markings immediately outside their site as soon as they are
reasonably able to do so (in consultation with the landowner as
necessary).

62. Application AS/12/518 (KCC/AS/0095/2012) Scrap metal storage and
processing facility, including End of Life Vehicle facility at Eclipse Business
Park, Cobbs Wood Industrial Estate, Ashford; European Metal Recycling Ltd
(ltem C2)

(1)

(2)

Mrs E M Tweed addressed the Committee as the Local Member. She took no
further part in the decision making process for this application.

Mr J N Wedgbury was present for this item pursuant to Committee Procedure
Rule 2.27 and spoke. He informed the Committee that he was the Vice-
Chairman of Ashford Borough Council’s Planning Committee but was
speaking on this occasion in his capacity as a Local Member from the
adjoining ward.

The Committee agreed that if permission were granted, there would be no
deliveries before 7.00 am.

On being put to the vote, there were 6 votes for and 6 votes against the
amended recommendations of the Head of Planning Applications Group.

Pursuant to Committee Procedure Rule 2.26 (2), the Chairman immediately
declared that he was using his casting vote in favour of the recommendations
as amended.

RESOLVED that permission be granted to the application subject to
conditions, including conditions covering a 5 year implementation period; the
development being carried out in accordance with the permitted details; a
maximum throughput of 60,000 tonnes of ferrous and 10,000 tonnes of non-
ferrous metals per year); details/specification of external materials of site
fencing (including details of the front false building fagade) being submitted for
prior approval; the erection of all site fencing prior to the commencement of

Page 3



any operations and the maintenance of this fencing in a good state of repair
for the perpetuity of the development; tree protection measures during the
construction of the development; details of the landscaping scheme (including
new tree and shrub planting) being submitted for approval prior to the
commencement of any operations (landscape planting being undertaken
thereafter within the first planting season following the first operation of the site
and being maintained for a period of not less than 5 years); the hours of
operation being 07:00 to 18:00 hours on Mondays to Fridays and 07:00 to
13:00 hours on Saturdays with no working on Saturday afternoon, Sundays,
Bank and Public Holidays and no vehicle deliveries taking place before 07:00
hours on any day); the hours of construction being 07:00 to 18:00 hours on
Mondays to Fridays and 07:00 to 13:00 hours on Saturdays with no working
on Saturday afternoon, Sundays, Bank and Public Holidays; the height of
material stockpiles and skip storage being restricted to no more than 6m
above ground level, and plant and machinery being operated from ground
level rather than from stockpiles; details of a remediation strategy to deal with
risks associated with contamination being submitted for prior approval; no
piling or foundation designs using penetrative methods taking place other than
with the prior approval of the Waste Planning Authority; the maximum number
of operational vehicle movements associated with the metal recycling facility
being limited to 200 per day (200 in / 200 out); provision being made within the
site for construction vehicles parking, loading, off-loading and manoeuvring
space during construction activities; details of on-site parking and turning
space for personnel/operatives/visitors being submitted for prior approval;
details of surface water drainage to be submitted for prior approval; measures
to prevent mud and debris being deposited on the highway; a requirement to
provide 3 cycle spaces within the site prior to first operations; new access
being provided in accordance with the details submitted prior to the first use of
the development and being maintained in perpetuity thereafter for the life of
the development; a restriction on the rating noise level emanating from the
facility on nearby noise sensitive residential properties when assessed in
accordance with BS:4142 to no more than the existing background noise level;
details of a lighting scheme being submitted for prior approval; and materials
being stored and handled in those areas proposed.

63. Application DO/12/664 (KCC/D0O/0292/2012) - Section 73 application to
vary Condition 9 of Permission DO/03/477 for the variation of hours of
operation to allow vehicle movements related to Local Authority waste
collection services on Bank and Public Holidays at Richborough Hall,
Ramsgate Road, Richborough, Sandwich: Thanet Waste Services

(Item C3)

(1)  MrW A Hayton and Mr J D Kirby informed the Committee that they were both
Members of Thanet District Council. Mr S C Manion informed the Committee that
he was a Member of Dover District Council. None of them had considered the
application in their District Council capacities, and they were all able to approach its
determination with a fresh mind.

(2) RESOLVED that permission be granted for the variation of Condition 9 of

Permission DO/03/477 as set out in paragraph 11 of the report, and that a
condition covering the maintenance of the reptile habitat be added to the

Page 4



Permission.

64. Proposal MA/12/1272 (KCC/MA/0199/2012) - New teaching block and
associated car parking and multi use games areas at St Augustine's Academy,
Oakwood Park, Maidstone; KCC Property and Infrastructure

(Iltem D1)

(1)  Mr | S Chittenden and Mrs P A V Stockell informed the Committee that they
were Members of Maidstone Borough Council. Neither of them had considered the
proposal in that capacity and they were both able to approach its determination with a
fresh mind.

(2)  Mr D Brown, a local resident addressed the Committee in opposition to the
proposal. Ms K Lidington from DHA Planning spoke in reply on behalf of the
applicants.

(3) The Committee agreed by 9 votes to 4 that the hours of use of the multi-use
games areas (MUGA) would be limited to 0800 to 2100 on Mondays to Saturdays
and 0800 to 1800 on Sundays and Bank Holidays.

(2) RESOLVED that permission be granted to the proposal subject to conditions,
including conditions covering the standard 5 year time limit; the development
being carried out in accordance with the permitted details; the submission of
details of all materials to be used externally; a scheme of landscaping,
including hard surfacing, its implementation and maintenance; measures to
protect those trees to be retained; no tree removal taking place during the bird
breeding season; the development according with the recommendations of the
ecology survey; a programme of archaeological works; “Secured by Design”
principles being achieved; a BREEAM rating of ‘Very Good’ being achieved; a
revised School Travel Plan, including a regularly monitored action plan for
reducing car-borne trips to school by sixth formers; a community use
agreement relating to the multi-use games areas (MUGAs), including hours of
use being limited to 0800 to 2100 on Mondays to Saturdays and 0800 to 1800
on Sundays and Bank Holidays; details of foul and surface water drainage; a 2
metre high noise barrier being provided prior to first use of the MUGAs; baffles
or louvres being fitted to the floodlights or lanterns to reduce the impact if
required; hours of working during construction and demolition being restricted
to between 0800 and 1800 on Mondays to Fridays and between the hours of
0900 and 1300 on Saturdays, with no operations on Sundays and Bank
Holidays; a construction management plan, including access, parking and
circulation within the site for contractors and other vehicles related to
construction and demolition operations; measures to prevent mud and debris
being taken onto the public highway; and measures to prevent dust nuisance
during the demolition phase.

65. Proposal SE/12/243 (KCC/SE/0243/2012) - Two-storey extension, single-
storey toilet block, and extension to existing canopy at Fordcombe CEP
School, The Green, Fordcombe, Tunbridge Wells; Governors of Fordcombe
CEP School

(ltem D2)

Page 5



(1) Mr R E Brookbank informed the Committee that he was a Member of
Sevenoaks District Council. He had not considered the proposal in that capacity and
was able to approach its determination with a fresh mind.

(2) The Committee noted the views of Mr P W A Lake, the Local Member in
support of the proposal.

(3) RESOLVED that permission be granted to the proposal subject to conditions,
including conditions covering the 5 year standard time limit; the development
being completed in accordance with approved plans; the prior approval of
external materials; and tree protection.

66. Proposal SE/12/2144 (KCC/SE/0255/2012) - Construction of a car park
within a woodland area at St Lawrence Primary School, Church Road, Seal;
Governors of St Lawrence Primary School

(ltem D3)

(1)  The Committee noted the views of Mr N J D Chard, the Local Member in
support of the proposal.

(2) The Head of Planning Applications Group informed the Committee of the
views of Kent Highways Services on the revised layout. They had advised that a
21m vision splays would be required to the north. The Committee agreed to
strengthen the appropriate condition accordingly.

(3)  RESOLVED that:-

(@) permission be granted to the proposal subject to conditions, including
conditions covering the development being implemented within 5 years;
the development being carried out in accordance with the permitted
details; tree protection measures for those mature trees to be retained,;
the delivery and ongoing maintenance of the landscape scheme; the
implementation of biodiversity enhancement measures; measures to
prevent mud and other debris being deposited on the public highway
during construction; and the continued maintenance of the vision splays,
including the 21m to the north as recommended by Kent Highways
Services; and

(b) the applicant be notified by Informative of advice on what action should be
taken if protected species are found during development.
67. Matters dealt with under delegated powers

(ltem E1)

RESOLVED to note matters dealt with under delegated powers since the last
meeting relating to:-

(@)  County matter applications;

Page 6



consultations on applications submitted by District Councils or
Government Departments (None);

County Council developments;

Screening opinions under the Town and Country Planning
(Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2011 (None);

Scoping opinions under the Town and Country Planning (Environmental
Impact Assessment) Regulations 2011 (None).

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Agenda Item D1
SECTION D

DEVELOPMENT CARRIED OUT BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL

Background Documents: the deposited documents; views and representations received as
referred to in the reports and included in the development proposals dossier for each case;
and other documents as might be additional indicated.

Item D1
New Primary School with associated hardcourt play areas,
access, parking and landscaping at Land South of
Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442

(KCC/TW/0151/2012)
I

A report by Head of Planning Applications Group to Planning Applications Committee on 11
December 2012.

Application by Kent County Council Property and Infrastructure Support for the erection of a
new primary school building with associated hardcourt play areas, access, parking and
landscaping and re-profiling and landscaping of residual land to return to pasture at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook, TN17 4DN - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012).

Recommendation: Planning permission be granted, subject to conditions.

Local Member: Mr Roger Manning Classification: Unrestricted

Site Description

1. Benenden Primary School currently operates from a collection of buildings located
around the village green. The main school building dates from the mid 19" Century and
is Grade Il Listed. The existing school provision is split between the main building,
which accommodates five classes, and the Gibbon Building, which houses the reception
class and dining room within a single space. The Gibbon Building is also Grade Il Listed
and dates from 1609 and is situated opposite the village green. The Gibbon Building is
currently leased by the County Council on behalf of the School.

2. The current school accommodation falls significantly below the minimum space
standards for Primary Schools as set out by Government. The shortfall in space results
in the dual use of space, which is inconvenient, time-consuming and precludes the
provision of presentation space to suit a single and primary purpose. Specifically, the
use of the Gibbon Building for both reception class and school dining room, requires the
safe and accompanied transfer of children across the village green and main road and
back again for lunches. That is required in all weather conditions and is extremely time-
consuming and can be disruptive for the children. Not only is the existing building
insufficient in floorspace terms, but it is also not well configured for modern teaching
practices or flexible in use owing to its internal layout and constraints imposed by the
building’s listed status. Outdoor play provision is limited to a small playground to the
rear of the main school building and sports provision is delivered in the form of the use
of the village green and the Glebe Field. Use of the village green requires intensive
staffing and monitoring of the children given adjacent roads, whilst the Glebe Field is
physically remote from the school. The school currently has very little dedicated parking,
set in front of the existing main school building. Parents and visitors therefore use space
around the village green for parking when dropping off and collecting children, with
overspill parking sometimes occurring in the village hall car park and on the main road
through the village.

Page 9 D1.1



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land

South of Rolvenden Road,

(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

TW/12/1442

Cranbrook

Benenden,

Site Location Plan

009 0s¢ scl

9£2610001 AoAIng soueUPIO SaJIBIN _
1102 161 osEqEIEp pUE JUBLADOD UMOID ©

- Kepp Jo ybry olgng ----
ealy uopensasuod [
Arepunog ans [_]
J O
- n %
= apels) |
sbuip|ing pajsi \

Ad

ooV Aud :
'

’
punois uopeassg

aberan auL

IEEYE)

| /.
\ /4

9)Is :o_pmo__,o_o_( _\oo:ow >._mE_._n. uapuauag

D1.2

Page 10



zozovsy o dm 8d YD oSt

Ve, o Fegl A A
e e oo

s e & ONINNYTd
sy ey s

YR o ZI0ZOLBL A4 peSnpR) B UbeBRs Hod 5 8

O

¢ 40 | STVSOdOdd 3dVOSANY1

item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land

South of Rolvenden Road,

(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

TW/12/1442

Cranbrook

Benenden,

Proposed Site Layout Plan

‘
|

i
i
i
|
i
ily
il
i
i
38
itt
Q ,
[©]
u

Butiold el pus 5921 s posody

-

G103 A BUpURH GRS DA AUSULOPI 10 XIA

‘S8l psssei napeal

ss000ud oty T ophiod o s

suopepusuiscons
5215060 pS\a powol 59 0 5 pud

ST AR R

7 s

U oo

w anbeu G
o
swboX o o ‘oo i Drpact
ot pue sexe 100
oy soo g sb.e1OupEpS
.
buress eqeans

UoIUBUMIEW TOOHOS D NIANIN3E / 00M e
Olan.LS euciuEL), LOL-0L/LPOSHIN
JOOHOS AHYWIYd NIONINI8 e
B kauos
B RO 4 SO TS9P SO FOKSAL 9B \ 757
P
——— L ————— i i o g O T ———————— e o s i 5201 SeeuoR o oz e
e, urpe sy 50 “suapsed sowcy pUe ofzeIeten o pern SewEld MALYL = bowiige s
% i
petsbpatiorun % e R o e o3 o poul g0 sean et 0 o e e s s
%
el 20 ‘saE6/BupUs)
Muiiy o o s e s st G pRCES oS SPGB S o S v
e arisitinscd 0 “opeys o 900 feutcy
o9 cae feR pey g semL o 59 e Supoes ormoads sprpul o sufe Supinung
S P el S
By woe07) “(sBupumw uUEIEGEL) VONW Yan o 107 Aeid preH|
501 s s
o hoa
o cunips
pogecioy o Pesodoid uim peidope
P WSS uoUS Bdiooy
b vty o mia ML oo
i N .
fiaBaH X3 APUBLILOPAX] B0 0} 5581 N ipe
g0 wionD 7% uasoos-00y wrgoyrbe xem %01 > [ —
eai-i!\n D0 b+ uAOOG009 Euane B0y %0} —
o 30 1t imoosoos omyieirld — o s v s08) S o
it N et o et v s
ssoup snuty senep 8 uf saauss u T
Sy A PRI 0 8 U 84030 LS 9 YA . | ——
= {das snonupuos © e osdor wdep wioos) = ‘@1o6 Ue19pod pasOBaLd
s s ripiato == oo
1817 $31093dS Ad3S0d0odd p
oljasd punos Buppee anoge tsu00.-008 )
Aoopesicn - siowo) posososd - — — — —— = = L
e =
i
s LoRISS @ =g
o
.5
i i i
Gy e . v g MO D@ o uopeaoy
1500105 Bty
= b g e oo
AR = ! “pasoge wedsons 10N Woubay
» s A imanfuney i s
regeq o -~ L 5998 o eugpes siodus).
24 ommsod [T ————
\
< oo
v oty o
e 104 80L-01/L YOSHI BUMELD 905 - Supusy
S
St X To
S —— Q ; - e
i 4 ¥ Ssumies e o
(YA OIS ONY SYZY AYTd ¥ MVIA AXISUTN S e i
= - (ouabiolusjeountionaw [svopes00
- [ et el o
oo fa9 - i3 pSiiod peoyss
vonm =/
Bupe,ns fejes yinw wes. "
s
vauy A e
2 o
. o il o e
= see o gt e o9
SR e
[R———
v o oo o s
o s S T ) 4 PN o =
ey ]
PO
SV CHVALHIO O SNVRLNE L E o o
socgo o g eueen G
1005 0 s e A ) o soponod Erry o
\WBREIBLL 10 [PASIE RARUGG 40 PARID PEASUDD . abes0s PO, oBesBHA OUL
A HINSL00 Y v VD
o x5 P iy o e P4
- e e o e el
o Soabei
“sERgey Bupsiee o ecL) SSELRRILE} J6RI0 1Y Bpey 4
e P oo s g FAnosa g ven

usig Buprog

D1.3

Page 11



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land

South of Rolvenden Road

(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

- TW/12/1442

Cranbrook

Benenden,

Proposed North and West Elevations

ST - WSZ96T

o -

3IS9M 3 YIION

- suoryessia

[r——

Toouos 4o usPUSIRE / J0M
£

quay

“uspusUEE

£

Toouds AxeuTz MeN PSsodoza

st watoig

S0USIDISY UOTIRASTH

— &

—_—

pE———

S

UOTIeASTH 1SeM

UOTIRASTH UIION

L]

N

ATTRUIS}XS SoweRIT

untuTWNT®R pejron zopmod yjTmMpazerhb
27qnop oq 03 §I00Q PUP SMOPUTM e
-BuToOI wees BUTPULIS @
*yIoMYOTIq BUTOBI FJO $9SINOO YIUTTJ @
‘joox ussin @
- IopUsI 91TUM DPOINOTOD-UANOIUL @
-saTT3 Jo0I ABTO UTETd @

‘pabps zayjleag
-BUTPIPOq I9QUT] POOMDIBY [PIUCZIION

*HUTPIPOG IDQWT] POOMPIBY TBOTITISA @

D1.4

Page 12



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land

South of Rolvenden Road,

(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

- TW/12/1442

Cranbrook

Benenden,

Proposed South and North Internal Elevations

D1.5

=2

S WM .

40DV I1D

/]
=0

110z ATOC

00T:T
s

uorlens
TeUTSIUT LANOG B YITON
- suoTyessTT

L AR T o

knu . “ ||| |||
E 0 s
‘uspusUEg aore — |

* O O O O O | e I

Toouog ATeuraz MeN pesodorg

g oy

2oUSIRFSY UOTIRASTH

ATTRUISIXS SaweIT

untuTwnye pejeon zspmod y3jTmMpazeThb
a[qnop oq 03 $I00Q PUB SMOPUTM e
-BuTOOI wees BUTPULIS @
*}IoMYOTIq BuTOoBI FJO S9SIN0O xucﬂﬂm®
‘jooz usain @
- ZopusI 21TYM POINOTOD-UANOIYL @
-saTT3 Jo0I ABTO UTETd @

‘pabps 1syjlesg
-BUTPIROG IBQUT] POOMDIEY [RIUOZIIOH

-BUTPIEOQ TOQUT] POOMPIEY TEOTITOA @

Page 13



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

3.

The application site lies approximately 250 metres east of the existing school, adjacent
to the Village Hall playing field and south of the main Cranbrook to Tenterden Road
(Rolvenden Road). The site lies to the east of the village church and adjacent to the
Glebe Field. The application site itself measures just over 2 hectares in area and
currently comprises open pasture. Land to the south is in open agricultural use, whilst
the village sports field is situated directly to the north. The application site is bordered by
native hedgerow, with tree cover lining the western boundary with the Glebe Field and
surrounding the sports field to the north. The application site has sloping topography,
rising southwards from the Rolvenden Road.

The application site does not benefit from a dedicated vehicular access at present with
the exception of an agricultural access gate at the northern corner. Three Public Rights
of Way cross the site; footpath WC325 runs from the Glebe Field and across the corner
of the field to the south, before entering the application site via a stile on the southern
boundary, heading in a north easterly direction; footpath WC326 runs directly alongside
the site boundary with the Glebe to the west, although the physical alignment on the
ground actually runs to the east of this boundary with the Glebe Field; and footpath
WC327 runs from the north western corner of the site where it meets the highway to the
south eastern corner, crossing the route of footpath WC325.

The application site is located entirely within the High Weald Area of Outstanding
Natural Beauty (AONB). This designation washes across the entire village of Benenden
extending at its narrowest part some 3 kilometres north east of the village towards
Tenterden. The Benenden Conservation Area covers a large part of the village,
including the village green, St George’s Church and extends to a point along Rolvenden
Road just west of Leybourne Dell. There are a substantial number of Listed Buildings
within the village, the closest being Tudor Cottage (Grade Il), fronting Rolvenden Road
on the north side of the village hall playing field, and St George’s Church (Grade 1I*), to
the west of the Glebe playing field. A ‘Site Location Plan’ is included on Page D1.2
which identifies the Benenden Conservation Area, the application site boundary, nearby
Listed Buildings and the Public Rights of Way.

Background

6.

The decision to develop a new primary school for Benenden is based on the fact that it
is widely acknowledged that the existing school is too small, out dated and
unsatisfactory for modern teaching practice. The applicants advise that if a new school
were not to be provided, i.e. a ‘do nothing approach’, then either the school would
continue to provide an inadequate teaching environment for staff and pupils which is not
sustainable in the long-term, or existing schools elsewhere would have to accommodate
the displaced provision, which is neither feasible in education provision terms nor
suitable in sustainability terms given the numbers of pupils involved and the impact
upon the village community that would follow. An option to redevelop the existing school
site is not a viable solution in this instance since the school currently operates from a
number of split sites, with buildings on these sites vastly constrained by their Listed
status.

As part of initial feasibility work undertaken by the applicant, it soon became evident that
in this instance there were no previously developed sites currently available in the
village envelope which could be capable of accommodating a new primary school. All
sites within the village are designated within the High Weald AONB, where the National
Planning Policy Framework presumes against major development except in exceptional

Page 14 D1.6



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

10.

11.

12.

circumstances and where it can be demonstrated that they are in the public interest, of
which need is a significant consideration. The only viable option which was considered
by the applicant following the initial feasibility work undertaken hitherto was to provide a
new school on greenfield land outside of the village envelope.

With the need for a new school established, and the only feasible form of provision
being a new school on a greenfield site outside the village envelope, the applicant set
about its consideration of the most suitable site for a new school in planning terms.
Initial feasibility work was undertaken on behalf of the School in 2004. This work
identified 6 potential sites outside the village envelope which required further
consideration, of which 3 were considered most preferable. Initial consultation with
Benenden Parish Council and a public meeting were held in March 2005. This initial
work coincided with the introduction of ‘Local Development Frameworks’ with Tunbridge
Wells Borough Council assuming responsibility for identifying a suitable site and
producing a dedicated Development Plan Document (DPD) to allocate the chosen site
for new school development.

A lengthy process of further site assessment followed, looking at issues of size,
topography, accessibility, deliverability and any other potential constraints, alongside
ongoing and continued stakeholder engagement and public consultation. The Borough
Council-led process ultimately concluded that two sites presented the best opportunities
for the school in planning terms, namely those referred to as Site 1 (New Pond Road)
and Site 8 (the site now subject to this application). In considering these two sites, the
Borough Council initially proposed to allocate Site 8 as the preferred site for
development, and a draft DPD was published on that basis.

The draft DPD was based on the premise that the school should be developed on the
Glebe Field rather than the adjacent pasture, something considered wholly
inappropriate by the School and KCC given the open space and community value of the
Glebe Field. In response to this, the applicant commissioned Roderick James Architects
and Nichols Brown Webber Landscape Planners to undertake concept design work for
Site 8, to illustrate how this could be appropriately developed to preserve the Glebe
Field for school and community open space use. Similar work for Site 1 was also
commissioned to aid comparison, together with independent development costings for
the two sites based on the initial concept designs. Notwithstanding this work, in October
2006 the Borough Council resolved to submit an amended DPD submission version that
included both Site 1 and Site 8 (retaining reference to building on the Glebe Field), with
a final decision to be made by the Secretary of State through Examination in Public.

In weighing up the two sites, assessing both sites on their merits and having regard to
the estimated costings, the County Council concluded that Site 8 represented the most
appropriate location for the new school, but only on the basis that the Glebe Field
remained undeveloped and that a high standard of design appropriate to its AONB
siting could be achieved. Accordingly, and in an attempt to demonstrate to the Borough
Council that an alternative solution to Site 8 would be feasible, the concept plans were
presented to the village at a public exhibition in January 2007. The exhibition was
extremely well attended, with 90% of respondents expressing a preference for building
on the pasture rather than the Glebe Field.

In March 2007 a Parish Poll was held, asking parishioners to vote on either Site 1 or
Site 8 (divided into Site 8A being the pasture site and 8B being the Glebe Field). As
minuted, the Poll was devised by the Parish Council in consultation with the Borough

Page 15 D1.7



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

13.

14.

Council’'s Returning Officer, and conducted on the day by the Borough Council. The Poll
was designed to inform the Parish Council of local views and their formal
representations during the next DPD consultation period. The results of the Poll were
therefore designed to inform the consultation process and were not binding and had no
statutory power. 522 votes were cast, with 56.7% voting in favour of Site 1 and 43.3%
voting in favour of Site 8 (Site 8A —41.4% and 8B — 1.9%).

Following the public exhibition and Parish Poll, consultations between the applicant and
the Borough Council continued, resulting in the further work on the DPD being
suspended. The applicant subsequently resumed responsibility for delivering the new
Primary School via the planning application route in agreement with the Borough
Council, having regard to the lengthy consultation process undertaken to date.

A County Member Site Visit to the site for the new village Primary School was held on
27 September 2012. The notes of the Site Visit are set out in Appendix 1.

Proposal

15.

16.

17.

18.

The application proposes the construction of a new One Form Entry (1FE) Primary
School with associated facilities, together with a new dedicated vehicular access off
Rolvenden Road. The application details that the design of the proposals has been
directly informed by the site’s landscape context and relationship with the village and
nearby built form. The proposed building would be ‘cut-in’ to the existing slope, reducing
the overall height of the building in the landscape. The spoil taken from this ‘cut’ would
be evenly distributed across the residual land to the east, retaining a natural topography
some 600-700 mm above the existing field contours.

The front (north) of the site would be occupied by the proposed new vehicular access
onto Rolvenden Road and landscaped parking area. The parking area would be laid out
in rows, interspersed by grassed drainage swales and new planting, with the main
surface consisting of bonded gravel. A new pond is proposed for the roadside, which
would act as a balancing pond for the site drainage and provide an enhanced area of
wetland habitat which would also be used by school staff as a nature study teaching aid.

The proposed site boundaries would generally be marked out by new and existing
hedgerow with interspersed tree planting, a common feature in this part of the High
Weald AONB. Between the hedgerows a mix of fencing design is proposed to provide
the necessary level of security which reflects the site’s rural village context. The site
fencing strategy would consist of a mix of 1.8m high green weldmesh fence around the
school itself, 1.2m high timber chestnut post and rail fence between the school and
village hall playing field boundary and 1.2m high timber post and wire fencing along the
front boundary of the school with Rolvenden Road and the boundary of the new car
park with the pasture land beyond.

No trees would be removed as part of the proposals, with the necessary tree protection
measures being installed in accordance with the relevant British Standard prior to any
construction activities. Proposed hard play areas would be contained within the confines
of the new school buildings, with direct access out to the Glebe Field which would
continue to be used as playing field for the school. The outside area of the site would be
laid out and treated to perform distinct functions, including: a growing zone, outside
study areas, courtyard zone with amphitheatre seating area, equipped play area, Multi
Use Games Area (MUGA) and a designated play area for younger reception class

Page 16 D1.8



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

pupils landscaped to provide natural shading.

As detailed above, the remaining land to the east of the car park would be re-profiled as
part of the wider ‘cut and fill' operations proposed. The application details that the extent
of ‘cut’ proposed follows detailed consideration of a number of alternative levels and
would balance the visual effect of the proposed built form against the need to retain
sensible levels across the remainder of the site that retain a natural appearance and
avoid the need to export materials off site. The ‘cut’ materials would be redistributed
across the pasture land to the east of the primary school and car park area to create a
naturalistic landform some 600-700 mm higher than existing levels, with the land treated
and seeded to create a late cut, species rich wildflower hay meadow.

Adequate space has been retained on site to the south west of the proposed school
building to allow for potential future provision of a nursery building. This nursery building
does not form part of this application and it is proposed that the area be landscaped in a
manner that would benefit the school, but not unduly restrict the future provision of a
nursery should it come forward (subject to a separate planning application) at a future
date.

The school building design has followed the work originally undertaken in producing the
concept design, which the applicant notes received an extremely positive response
when consulted on locally. The proposed building is ‘U’ shape in form and footprint, laid
out around a central courtyard and hard play area. The main ‘U shaped school
structure would be single storey, with the main teaching area exhibiting a modern
design utilising a mix of traditional materials with more contemporary building
techniques, including the provision of a green roof with native species and sedum plug
plants, sown with London seed mix containing a variety of native species grasses and
flowers.

The school hall has been designed to reflect the typical rural barn vernacular found in
the area, combining a tiled pitch roof with timber boarded elevations. The hall has been
designed to be capable of use for assemblies and PE, thereby removing the School’s
existing reliance upon alternative accommodation provided by the village hall and
Church for such activities.

The main school building would be 5 metres high to the ridge of the green roof, with a
maximum ridge height of 103.5 metres AOD. The school hall would be just under 8
metres high to the ridge, with a maximum ridge height of 106.5 metres AOD. To put
these levels in context, the application site is currently sloping, with existing levels at the
northern extent of the new school at approximately 98.5 metres AOD and at the south
eastern corner of the new school between approximately 100 and 100.5 metres AOD.
The new school building would be ‘cut in’ to the current ground contours with an internal
finished floor level of 98.5m AOD. Therefore, in relation to existing ground contours the
new school hall would extend approximately 8 metres above existing levels, whilst the
main school building would extend between 3.5 metres and 3 metres above existing
ground levels.

The proposed internal building layout provides for seven individual teaching areas, each
supplemented by a break-out area and toilets with cloakroom. A dedicated staff and
reception area would be located at the main school entrance, whilst a library and ICT
suite would be sited to the rear, offering dedicated and high quality Information
Technology provision. The reception class area would be located on the far southern

Page 17 D1.9



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

25.

26.

27.

28.

side of the ‘horseshoe’, linked to the reception area to the north by a covered walkway,
in turn demarcating the courtyard zone to the east and MUGA to the west. The
proposed building itself measures some 1,464 square metres internally, meeting the
minimum size standards set by the Government and represents almost a tripling of the
existing village school provision.

Three forms of renewable energy technologies would be provided following extensive
assessment of the sustainable design techniques and technologies available to the
project, considering performance, CO? reductions and payback periods. These
technologies include photovoltaic solar panels, solar thermal panels and a ground
source heat pump. These measures would be introduced in addition to the inherently
sustainable building envelope which would be created through careful sourcing of
materials and plant, good levels of insulation (including that provided by the green roof),
water efficient installations and energy efficient measures, which together would secure
a building that would achieve a ‘Very Good’ BREEAM rating, as required by current DfE
standards.

Vehicular access is proposed directly from the B2086 Rolvenden Road to the north east
of the site, with the access point and bellmouth to be sited between the junctions with
Leybourne Dell and Pullington Cottages. The vehicular access has been designed to
benefit from visibility splays measuring 2.4m x 66m to the south east and 2.4m x 66.8m
to the north west. As part of the proposed access arrangements a section of existing
hedgerow would be removed from the site boundary with Rolvenden Road. This
removal would facilitate both the new access itself and the hedgerow north west of the
access, with the latter section being re-planted further within the site to ensure that
visibility splays from a westerly direction are secured from the outset.

When the application was originally submitted, parking provision was made within the
site for 67 vehicle parking spaces, including a drop-off area and disabled parking
provision. Following initial consultations on the application, and specifically at the earlier
request of the Borough Council, the applicant has since reduced the on-site parking
provision by some 22 percent, down to 52 vehicle parking spaces. A revised car park
layout has been submitted detailing these changes, which has resulted in an increase in
landscape planting provisions along the north-eastern boundary of the car park towards
the pasture area. The applicant details that parking provision has been designed to
reflect the rural context of the school and the likely demand as evidenced from existing
school operations. Cycle parking provision is proposed for 6 bicycles which are primarily
expected to be used by staff. A service area to the west of the main hall would contain
the waste and recycling collection point, water tank and pump house and cycle storage.
This would also include access through to the play area for occasional maintenance and
emergency access. The area has been specifically designed to allow service and
emergency vehicles to turn at this point, allowing entry and exit from the site safely in a
forward gear.

It is proposed that a formal diversion of the Public Rights of Way (PROW) which cross
the site would be pursued following the successful grant of planning permission. The
proposed diverted routes of these footpaths are detailed within the application and
follow initial engagement with the County Council's PROW Officer. The proposed
diversions include the realignment of footpath WC326 along its current trodden route to
the west of the Glebe Field boundary, diversion of footpath WC325 to avoid conflict with
the footprint of the proposed school building, and a slight re-routeing of footpath WC327
along Rolvenden Road to north of the application site, across the proposed new

Page 18 D1.10



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

vehicular access and through the corner of the proposed car park into the pasture
beyond. The application details that any temporary diversions of these footpaths
required during construction would also be agreed with the County Counci's PROW
Officer as required.

The application is accompanied by studies covering landscape and visual impact, trees,
transport, ecology, flooding, sustainability, educational need and community
involvement/engagement.

The application details that if planning permission is granted and the new facilities are
subsequently developed, the existing school building site would become redundant for
educational purposes. This asset would be disposed of accordingly, with the proceeds
of any sale being used to contribute towards the capital costs associated with providing
a new school.

Following initial consultee responses received, the applicant has provided
further/amended details in support of their application. These details relate to a scheme
of off-site traffic calming measures for the B2086 Rolvenden Road in the vicinity of the
proposed school entrance; additional supporting landscaping information in the form of
site cross-sections; details of additional landscape planting; alterations to proposed site
fencing; changes to the definitive PROW layout; and a summary of other issues raised
as part of the application consultation process. The additional supporting information
has been provided to the Borough Council, Benenden Parish Council and other
statutory consultees for comment.

The proposed traffic calming measures submitted for Rolvenden Road to assist in
lowering traffic speeds in the vicinity of the school access include the following
measures:

i. Red ‘school zone’ entry surface shading east and west of the school access,
incorporating the triangular school/parent child sign;

i. Edge and centre white thermoplastic gateway features within the above red
entry surfacing, giving the effect of a gateway narrowing feature;

ii.  White edge of carriageway line markings, giving the impression of narrowing
the carriageway running lanes and slowing vehicle speeds;

iv.  Modifications to roadside 30mph repeater signs; and

v.  Additional 30mph painted road marking roundels.

Based on evidence elsewhere, the applicant identifies that these types of measures can
reduce traffic speeds by between 3mph and 15mph below ‘before’ 85" percentile
surveyed speeds, in the case of major roads with reasonable or heavy traffic flows. The
applicant’s transport consultant suggests that even with modest speed reductions it
would be reasonable to expect 85" percentile speeds to be lowered to 35mph or less in
the site vicinity.

A copy of the Proposed Site Layout Plan and Proposed Elevations are shown on pages
D1.3, D1.4 and D1.5 respectively.

Planning Policy Context

35.

The key National and Development Plan Policies most relevant to the proposal are
summarised below:

Page 19 D1.11



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

(i)

National Planning Policies — the most relevant National Planning Policies are
set out in the National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) which sets out
the Government’s planning policy guidance for England and as guidance is a
material consideration for the determination of planning applications. It does not
change the statutory status of the development plan which remains the starting
point for decision making. The NPPF replaces the majority of the Planning Policy
Guidance Notes (PPGs) and Planning Policy Statements (PPSs).

The NPPF contains a presumption in favour of sustainable development. The
new Framework also refers to the UK Sustainable Development Strategy
‘Securing the Future’ which sets out 5 guiding principles for sustainable
development: living within the planet's environmental limits; ensuring a strong,
healthy and just society; achieving a sustainable economy; promoting good
governance; and using sound science responsibly. In terms of the planning
system, the NPPF identifies that there are three dimensions to sustainable
development which create three overarching roles in the planning system -
economic, social and environmental. These roles are are  mutually
dependent. Within the over-arching roles there are twelve core principles that
planning should achieve. These can be summarised as:

e be genuinely plan-led;

e a creative exercise in finding ways to enhance and improve the places
people live their lives;

e proactively drive and support sustainable economic development;

e secure high quality design and a good standard of amenity;

o take account of the different roles and character of different areas,
including protecting Green Belts, recognising the intrinsic character and
beauty of the countryside and supporting thriving rural communities;

e support the transition to a low carbon future, taking account of flood risk
and costal change and encourage the reuse of existing resources and the
development of renewable energy;

e contribute to conserving and enhancing the natural environment and
reducing pollution;

e encourage the effective use of land by reusing brownfield land, providing
that it is not of high environmental value;

e promote mixed use developments;

e conserve heritage assets;

e manage patterns of growth to make fullest use of public transport, walking
and cycling; and focus significant development in locations which can be
made sustainable; and

o take account of strategies to improve health, social and cultural well
being, and deliver sufficient community and cultural facilities and services
to meet local needs.

In terms of delivering sustainable development in relation to this development
proposal, the following NPPF guidance is particularly relevant:

e Chapter 4 (Promoting sustainable transport);

e Chapter 7 (Requiring good design);

e Chapter 8 (Promoting healthy communities);

e Chapter 10 (Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and

coastal change);
e Chapter 11 (Conserving and enhancing the natural environment); and

Page 20 D1.12



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

(ii)

e Chapter 12 (Conserving and enhancing the historic environment).

Chapter 11 states that great weight should be given to conserving landscape
and scenic beauty in (amongst other designated areas) Areas of Outstanding
Natural Beauty, which have the highest status of protection in relation to
landscape and scenic beauty. It goes on to state that planning permission
should be refused for major developments in these designated areas except in
exceptional circumstances and where it can be demonstrated they are in the
public interest. Consideration of such application should include an assessment
of:

e the need for the development, including in terms of any national
considerations, and the impact of permitting it, or refusing it, upon the
local economy;

e the cost of, and scope for, developing elsewhere outside the designated
area, or meeting the need for it in some other way; and

e any detrimental effect on the environment, the landscape and
recreational opportunities, and the extent to which that could be
moderated.

The Framework also requires that local planning authorities should look for
solutions rather than problems. It states that those determining applications
should seek to approve applications for sustainable development where
possible.

Policy Statement on Planning for Schools Development (August 2011) is also
relevant, in so far as it identifies that there should be a presumption in favour of
the development of state-funded schools.

South East Plan (2009) — the most relevant Policies are CC1 (Sustainable
Development), CC2 (Climate Change), CC3 (Resource Use), CC4 (Sustainable
Design and Construction), CC6 (Sustainable Communities and Character of the
Environment), NRM1 (Sustainable Water Resources and Groundwater Quality),
NRM4 (Sustainable Flood Risk Management), NRM5 (Conservation and
Improvement of Biodiversity), NRM11 (Development Design for Energy
Efficiency and Renewable Energy), C3 (Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty),
C4 (Landscape and Countryside Management), C6 (Countryside Access and
Rights of Way Management) BE5 (Village Management), BE6 (Management of
the Historic Environment) and S3 (Education and Skills).

Important note regarding the South East Plan: Members will already be
aware of the relevant South East Plan (SEP) policy considerations in relation to
the proposed development, in that The Plan was revoked and later reinstated
pending the enactment of the Localism Bill. Members will also be aware that
they have to have regard to the policies in the SEP and the Government’s
intention to abolish the Regional Spatial Strategies (RSS) as material
considerations. However the weight to be accorded is a matter for the decision
makers. Members will note that the Localism Bill has now been enacted;
however the SEP remains in effect until such time as the Government complete
the formal process of revoking the Plan. The Government is currently consulting
on the likely significant environmental effects of revoking the Plan. This
consultation closes on 6" December 2012.

Page 21 D1.13



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

(iii) Tunbridge Wells Borough Local Plan Saved Policies (2006) — The most
relevant Policies are LBD1 (Developments Outside the Limits to Built
Development), EN1 (Development Control Criteria), EN5 (Development Within
or Affecting the Character of a Conservation Area), EN8 (Outdoor Lighting),
EN13 (Tree and Woodland Protection), EN16 (Protection of Groundwater and
Other Watercourses), EN25 (Development Control Criteria Relating to Proposals
Affecting the Rural Landscape), CS2 (Allocations for New Primary School
Provision), TP4 (Access to the Road Network) and TP5 (Vehicle Parking
Standards).

(iv) Tunbridge Wells Borough Core Strategy (2010) — The most relevant Policies
are CP4 (Environment), CP5 (Sustainable Design and Construction), CP8
(Retail, Leisure and Community Service Provision) and CP14 (Development in
Villages and Rural Areas).

Consultations

36.

37.

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council — No objections to the development subject to
conditions being imposed covering:

i.  Materials as specified;

ii.  Traffic calming and traffic management measures to be implemented;

ii.  Access, offsite works and sight lines to be provided;

iv.  Parking provision;

v.  Boundary treatment;

vi.  Landscaping (protection, implementation and management);

vii.  Ecology (implementation and management in line with recommendations in
submitted specialist strategies);
viii. Hours of construction;

iXx.  Withdrawal of Permitted Development Rights;
x.  Lighting; and
xi.  Hours of use.

In addition, the Borough Council accepts that there is no alternative access (including
parking provision) available at the current time but encourages KCC to continue to
negotiate with the Harmsworth Trust with a view to achieving agreement over shared
access and parking arrangements at a later date in order to further mitigate transport
and landscape impacts.

The Borough Council would expect KCC to carry out appropriate consultations on the
additional information received before coming to a final decision.

Benenden Parish Council — At an Extraordinary Meeting of the Parish Council on 4
September 2012 the Parish Council resolved (by 5 votes to 1) to submit a response on
the application in its letter dated 6 September 2012 (as attached at Appendix 2). In
summary “Benenden Parish Council is aware of the shortcomings of the existing village
Primary School and voted unanimously on 18 June 2012 in favour of a new school.
However, we could not support the planning application submitted by KCC for the
Parish Councils’ comments and it was rejected by 5 votes to 3”.

The Parish Council were consulted on additional information in October 2012. Its further
views on the application can be found in full at Appendix 2 under its letter dated 20
November 2012. In summary, it considers that the reduction in the car park would mean

Page 22 D1.14



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

38.

39.

40.

slightly less detrimental impact on the landscape although there would be 15 or more
cars parking elsewhere in the village. It maintains its previous objection to the proposed
development. Within its letter dated 20 November 2012 it also makes detailed
comments on the further site selection documentation submitted by the applicant.

| have received a letter of support from four Benenden Parish Councillors (as attached
at Appendix 3), noting that the Parish Council is in fact divided — with five Parish
Councillors opposed to the application and four in favour. A copy of the views of those
Councillors in favour of the proposals is included at Appendix 3.

KCC Highways and Transportation — Has no objection to the proposed development.
The general arrangements for the access with a priority junction are acceptable and
provide appropriate clearance from other junctions within the vicinity.

Considers that the reduced level of parking (52 spaces, down from 67) is acceptable
and the surface must be bound with no drainage over the highway. Recommends that
prior to the commencement of works on site details of the car park arrangements to
include long and cross sections, gradients, surface materials and drainage shall be
submitted for approval. Notwithstanding the details already submitted, details of
proposed visibility splays at pedestrian and vehicular access points and associated
boundary treatments to Rolvenden Road frontage should be submitted for approval and
thereafter implemented prior to first occupation of the new Primary School and
maintained in perpetuity thereafter.

Recommends that prior to the commencement of works on site, details of a package of
measures to reduce the speed of traffic within the vicinity of the site shall be submitted
for approval. The agreed package of measures shall be implemented in accordance
with Highway Authority standards and specifications prior to the first occupation of the
new Primary School.

Considers that within six months of first occupation a revised School Travel Plan shall
be submitted for approval and measures contained therein to be implemented in
accordance with an approved timetable. There is also a need for a Construction
Management Plan to be approved prior to construction covering aspects such as wheel
cleaning equipment, hours of working, parking and storage of materials during
construction activities. It also notes that the applicant will need to enter into a Section
278 Agreement with the Highway Authority regarding the proposed works to the
highway.

Environment Agency — Has no objection to the proposals, noting that the revised
proposals (i.e. a reduction in the size of the car park) represent a significant reduction in
the hard surfaced area of the car park and an increase in natural draining land cover.

KCC Landscape Advisor — Considers that the submitted Landscape and Visual Impact
Assessment (LVIA) has generally been undertaken in accordance with the guidance,
although there are some minor misinterpretations. However, she tends to agree with the
conclusion that the proposals would cause only a minor adverse impact on the
landscape character of the area. The impacts on the setting of surrounding Listed
Buildings and Benenden Conservation Area are not clearly defined within the LVIA,
although she does not consider that these would be significant because the proposals
are visually well contained and because of the sensitive design of the building. She
agrees that the proposals would have a slight adverse effect on the immediate vicinity

Page 23 D1.15



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

41.

of the AONB, but that the visual containment of the site and the attention to built form
would mean that the impact on the wider AONB would be negligible. She considers that
whilst the zone of visual influence would be well contained, there would be some
substantial adverse visual impacts from residential housing to the north east of the site
and from housing along Rolvenden Road opposite the proposed access and car park.
Currently these properties afford rural views across hilly pasture and the proposals
would cause a significant change in view, particularly where the proposed access, car
park and vehicles would be visible.

She notes that the size of the proposed car park has been reduced by approximately
20-25% and an area of informal native trees is now proposed to the east of the car park
within the retained native hedgerow. This amendment would help to reduce the
landscape and visual impacts caused by the proposals, particularly long-term visual
impacts experienced from housing to the north and east of the site because views of the
car park would eventually become filtered by the proposed native trees. However, she
considers that there would still be some substantial adverse visual impacts from
residential housing to the north east of the site and from housing along Rolvenden Road
opposite the proposed access and car park. This is because of the significant change in
view from attractive hedgerow enclosed pasture to a car park, as well as the indirect
impacts caused by vehicle movement.

She notes that the fencing proposals have been reviewed, and that the 3 metre high
fencing originally proposed has been reduced to 1.8 metres. However, whilst the
applicant has used timber fencing that would be more appropriate in this rural location
to the north of the site, the 1.8m high weld mesh fencing would still form an intrusive
element in the landscape. | would therefore question as to whether 1.8m high weld
mesh fencing is necessary to meet current security standards.

Whilst there are clear sustainability benefits of incorporating photovoltaic and solar
thermal panels onto the proposed school hall roof, she considers that the building would
appear slightly more in keeping with the surrounding built form without these features.
That said, she does not consider that they would significantly detract from the overall
built form and Kentish barn character.

She considers that the following measures should be secured by condition:

i.  Details of tree protection in accordance with the relevant British Standard;

i. Detailed landscaping scheme to include the number of proposed trees, shrubs
and hedging plants, together with details of their proposed species, sizes and
methods of planting, further information regarding the wetland area and details
of soil storage;

ii.  Details of building design materials to reflect local vernacular; and

iv.  Details of fencing design/colour/specifications.

High Weald AONB Group — The proposed development will impact on the AONB by
changing the character of the location from an open rural field, which makes a
significant contribution to the setting of Benenden village within the landscape, to that of
major built form, and associated parking, hard standing and formal areas. The location
is particularly sensitive due to the exposed ridgeline and extensive views, particularly to
the south. This is a highly sensitive location due to its landscape character, which will be
much altered by the development.

The development will also be isolated from the rest of the village and quite separate

Page 24 D1.16



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

42.

from the existing built form and may appear incongruous in this context. The site is not
well related to the village and will extend the area of the developed footprint of
Benenden into the surrounding countryside. The additional hard standing / car parking
and access will also extend the built, urbanised form further to the detriment of the rural
location.

Applying the test for major development (in paragraph 116 of the National Planning
Policy Framework) it should be demonstrated that the development cannot be met in
some other way or location. The alternative orchard site is better related to the village,
its built form and less intrusive in landscape terms than this site. The application should
clearly and demonstrably show why that site has not been selected over this more
sensitive and exposed (in landscape terms) location.

In summary, the proposal will introduce a major built form into a sensitive rural location,
detrimental to its landscape character. It will significantly alter the character of this area,
which makes a very positive contribution to the village setting and environment.
Development in this location will thus have significant impacts on the AONB, both locally
and on the long distance views from the ridgeline. Such an exception to policy for rural
areas, recognising their intrinsic value, should only be made in exceptional
circumstances. It has not been demonstrated that the test of these exceptional
circumstances have been made, in particular as regards alternative ways of meeting the
need. The development does not therefore conserve and enhance the High Weald
AONB.

KCC Biodiversity Projects Officer — Has no objection to the proposals and is satisfied
with the ecological information submitted. She makes the following recommendations
which should be included as part of any planning permission:

i. Proposed hedgerows should incorporate the species recommended within the
submitted Dormouse Survey Report;

i. A detailed mitigation strategy to be produced to minimise the potential of
reptiles being impacted by the removal of sections of hedgerow to create new
site access points;

ii. Reptile fence to be erected around the site prior to the commencement of
construction activities;

iv.  Removal of vegetation to be carried out outside of the bird breeding season, or
to be supervised by a qualified ecologist;

v.  Precautionary mitigation to be carried out as detailed within the supporting
information to ensure that no badgers are impacted by the proposed works;

vi. Bats have been recorded foraging with the proposed development site —
particularly within the south western corner of the site. The recommendations
set out within the Bat Survey Report must be carried out to minimise the impact
on bats using the site. Any site lighting must be designed sympathetically in
accordance with Best Practice Guidelines; and

vii. A detailed mitigation strategy to be submitted incorporating the precautionary
mitigation detailed within the submitted Great Crested Newt Survey.

She notes that the measures within the application proposed to offer biodiversity
enhancements at the site, including a green roof, meadow areas and native
hedgerows, are welcomed in accordance with the principles of the National Planning
Policy Framework which seeks to encourage opportunities to incorporate biodiversity
in and around new developments. A management plan should be required by
condition to secure the successful management of these features.

Page 25 D1.17



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

43.

44,

45.

46.

47.

48.

KCC Public Rights of Way Officer — Makes the following comments:

The proposal affects Public Footpaths WC325, WC326 and WC327. Should consent be
granted, the development would necessitate the diversion of the right of way in order to
go ahead. The proposed diversion routes have been included within the application and
move the public rights of way around the perimeter of the main school site. The
applicant should ensure adequate screening and segregation of the rights of way from
the main site so as to prevent any future concerns regarding school security and public
access.

The proposed provision of a 2 metre self bounded gravel footpath along the enclosed
section of WC325 on the southern boundary of the site, is acceptable in principle, as is
the provision of 1.5 metre footway on the northern boundary.

The presence of public footpaths within school sites has caused difficulty elsewhere.
This can follow Ofsted inspection where the presence of a footpath is identified as an
issue in respect of school security. In this instance, strong opposition to the future
diversion or extinguishment of the public footpaths could be expected should they be
considered an issue in terms of school security.

Please note that the granting of planning consent does not entitle the developer to
obstruct the Public Rights of Way. The development, insofar as it affects the Public
Right of Way, must not be started until such time as the Order necessary for its
diversion has been confirmed, and the new route provided. The successful making and
confirmation of an Order should not be assumed.

KCC Sustainable Drainage Engineer — Notes that KCC’s position at present is an
advisory role but will become a regulatory role with respect to drainage approval once
Schedule 3 of the Flood and Water Management Act (2010) commences.

The revised Flood Risk Assessment, in response to earlier Environment Agency
comments, incorporates additional below ground storage to ensure that any flooding
from storm event greater than 1 in 30 year storm, does not result in adverse safety
conditions within the parking area. Notes that as part of the revised parking layout the
applicant has included a swale within the central reservation of the car park which
responds positively to earlier comments and promotes surface water management at
the surface where feasible. A detailed surface water drainage scheme with appropriate
supporting information (including identification of the proposed discharge points from
the system) will be required prior to the commencement of construction operations.

KCC Archaeological Officer — Has no comments to make on the application.
Sport England — Has no comments to make on the application.

Kent Fire and Rescue Service — Has no observations to make at the planning
application stage. The Fire Service will assess onsite vehicle access and means of
escape during the Building Regulations process.

The Ramblers — Has no comment to make on the site chosen, although there are
significant implications for the three Public Rights of Way (WC325, WC326 and
WC327) which currently cross the proposed site.
i. WC325 leads from the Church eastwards to run south of the proposed school
building, then going northeast to meet Rolvenden Road, crossing the

Page 26 D1.18



item D1
New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

southeast corner of the school. We accept that this part will require diversion in
part but consider the planned new route should be altered to avoid being
adjacent to the school boundary, to cross the field boundary at the southeast
corner of the site. This would lessen the visual impact on the path and take it
away from the school, thus improving safety.

i. WC326 The line which has been walked for years has not followed the
definitive line but is the preferable route. We do not see the need for a ‘dogs
leg’ in the middle of the path and consider that the new line should continue
straight across the recreation ground northwards to Rolvenden Road.

iii. WGC327 crosses the field east of the site in a roughly northwest direction to
meet Rolvenden Road. The plan for it to pass through the car park, across the
access road, to Rolvenden Road, we consider to be potentially dangerous with
considerable loss of enjoyment for walkers. This path is part of the High Weald
Landscape Trail, a national long distance path. We consider that WC327
should be diverted to avoid the car park altogether. In any event, this path
cannot be diverted under the 1992 Regulations.

They further comment that all these matters will be discussed in full when the formal
proposal to divert parts of WC325, WC326 and WC327 are published.

These Public Rights of Way matters apart, the Ramblers has no issue with the design
of the school buildings.

49. Campaign to Protect Rural England (Protect Kent) — Accept that a new primary
school is needed and that making an exception to build on a Greenfield site appears to
be necessary as there is no suitable site for it within the Limits to Built Development.
However, we are concerned that the proposed development, being up on a hill, will be
detrimental to the character of the AONB. We recognise that the proposal attempts to
mitigate the harm by careful design, but in our view the alternative site, known as “Site
1” or “The Old Orchard), would be less harmful to the landscape, as well as leaving the
historic Public Rights of Way undisturbed. We understand that the alternative site is
available, and we are not convinced that the problems the application identifies for that
site could not be overcome.

We are concerned that the lighting which will be associated with the school and car park
will be damaging to the character of the AONB in this near-hilltop position, by
substantially increasing the visible spread of the built-up area when viewed on a winter
evening from the Rolvenden Road. We also question whether the proposed site
entrance is in a safe place.

Local Member
50. The local County Council Member Mr Roger Manning was notified of the application in

May 2012. Mr Manning was notified of additional information in August 2012 and in
October 2012.

Publicity
51. The application was publicised by the posting of several site notices around the

application site, a newspaper advertisement, and the individual notification of 186
nearby properties. The site notices and newspaper advertisement identified that the

Page 27 D1.19



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

proposed development is a departure application as it does not accord with the
provisions of the development plan in force in the area. It also indicates that the
application site is close to the Benenden Conservation Area and is likely to affect its
character and/or appearance, may affect the setting of nearby Listed Buildings, and
may affect the setting of three Public Rights of Way (WC325, WC326 and WC327).

52. As a result of several batches of further supporting information being submitted by the
applicant, the application was re-publicised by the posting of several new site notices
around the application site and fresh new newspaper advertisements.

Representations

53. At the time of writing, 53 letters (or emails or online comments) of objection and 175
letters (or emails or online comments) of support have been received. The main points
of objection and support (in one or more of the letters) are summarised under the sub
headings as follows:-

Objection

Building the new Primary School on the Ridge/Pasture site would result in the
urbanisation of an outstandingly beautiful part of the rural Weald, notably through
new built form, site fencing and light spill;

Unacceptable to build on the Ridge/Pasture site when other suitable locations are
available within the village;

The development is contrary to National, Regional and Local Planning Policy
concerning development in the AONB and countryside;

The majority of school pupils approach from the west — it would be more
appropriate to build a new school on that side of the village;

The highway reports undertaken by the applicant’s transport consultant must be
independently assessed;

The proposed new vehicular entrance to the school would be located almost
opposite a private driveway serving two houses (Broughton House and Camellia
House) leading to highway safety and loss of privacy concerns. There is no
mention of this private access driveway within the Transport Statement. Residents
would not be able to get out of their driveways during school arrival or departure
times;

The proposed new vehicular access point has been positioned in the most
dangerous part of any road in Benenden,;

The Transport Statement has proven that cars are already travelling in excess of
40mph along this part of the road (even though the speed limit is 30mph);

The proposed traffic calming scheme fails to mention or make provision for an
existing bus stop 13 metres from the proposed vehicular entrance;

No details of sight lines have been provided for the proposed vehicular entrance;
During winter months residents of Leybourne Dell leave their cars on the road
opposite the new school entrance as they are unable to drive out of their roads
because it is steep and icy — another potential hazard;

Accidents which have occurred recently at the Leybourne Dell junction appear to
have been ‘overlooked’ by the Highway Authority in this instance;

Instead of the currently proposed new vehicular access onto Rolvenden Road a
mini roundabout should be created to serve the new school and Leybourne Dell;
The large area of tarmac car parking would cause considerable runoff water with
nowhere for it to go except people’s gardens — there is currently a problem with

Page 28 D1.20



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

surface water runoff from the application site; this application would only
compound that problem;

The size of the car park is far in excess of what is required for a village school;
Why can a shared access and car park not be developed with the Village Hall?
The proposals would lead to an increase in off-site parking near Pullington
Cottages and in Leybourne Dell during school drop-off and pick-up times;

Walking routes to the new site from the village centre are inadequate;

The application site is always colder than anywhere else in the village, with strong
prevailing winds — it is therefore not an appropriate location for a new school;

A large percentage of children are based outside the village and from other places
such as Cranbrook; the school is an area school not a village school;

Concerns that local democracy has not been listened to — the Parish Poll in 2007
clearly indicated a strong preference to develop a new school on Site 1;

The development appears ‘crammed’ with little space for long-term growth, little
provision for outdoor sport (The Glebe Field is not in control of the applicant) and
yet there are other sites capable of providing much more space efficiently;
Farmland which lies immediately south of the application site could pose a number
of hazards on children attending a new school through farming practices such as
crop spraying;

The proposed building floorspace falls short of the size criteria set out by
Government in Building Bulletin 99;

Concerns raised relating to proximity to current trees on site, a number of which
are covered by Tree Preservation Orders;

The proposed materials are claimed to be representative of local “vernacular’ —
instead it is a monumental structure with a utopian mindset for a village school that
provides each classroom with toilets and garden and break-out areas. The odd
shaped classrooms are difficult spaces and circulation space would be poor;
Concerns raised regarding maintenance costs associated with some of the
proposed school’s building materials;

No proper comparative costs have been provided for schemes to develop a new
primary school on Sites 1 and 8;

Benenden CEP School already enjoys a number of valuable links with Benenden
Girls School. The physical distance between the two schools would be greater if
the new primary school is built on the ridge/pasture site;

Unacceptable impact on the High Weald Landscape Trail (footpath WC327) which
would have to be diverted as part of the new school development;

The proposals would cause unacceptable harm to ecological interests on site;

The proposals may lead to further harmful development in the village; and

The public consultation surrounding this application has been undemocratic and
manipulative and merits investigation.

Support

Fail to understand why some Benenden Parish Councillors and villagers are
against a new school — a new school within this village is long overdue;

Feel very strongly about not just a new school but also the community, its
cohesiveness and future economic and social sustainability;

The current school is unsustainable for the long-term. If a ‘do nothing’ approach
was adopted by KCC then the school would close and a key community facility
would be lost — that is totally unacceptable;

The school is essential to the continuing vitality of the village which faces
increased commercial pressures from surrounding towns. The school is rightly a

Page 29 D1.21



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

great draw to the area;

The proposed building has been sympathetically designed, well-placed and
unobtrusive with proximity to the Church and Village Hall placing the children
where they should be: at the heart of the village;

The designs for the new school are innovative and would inspire future
generations to excel,

Support the designs of an ecologically sustainable building and landscaped
environment;

Support the proposed traffic calming measures to slow traffic on Rolvenden Road
near the new school vehicular entrance;

Considerable time is currently wasted due to the split facilities of the existing
school, making teaching conditions challenging;

Current school buildings are unsafe and unsuitable to modern teaching practices.
Despite this the School still achieves fantastic results — imagine what could be
achieved in a modern, purpose built primary school;

Ideal location near the Church, meaning that the School would be able to maintain
the familiarity and strong links that have been established with the Church over
many years;

Attended the Public Meeting on the 23 July 2012 and witnessed the overwhelming
public support for a new school;

Supports the plans for the new Primary School, however would like to see the
County Council and Harmsworth Memorial Trust working together in the future to
find a better solution to the access and parking arrangements proposed; and
Please approve the plans for a new school and build it at the earliest possible
opportunity.

54. | have also received a letter expressing concerns about the nature of the Public Meeting

55.

held

at Benenden Village Hall on the 23 July 2012. (Note that this was a meeting

arranged by the Local Member and not a Planning Authority meeting). The complaint
relates to the tactics employed by the School and its supporters, which gave them an
unfair advantage over anybody with opposing views. The letter points out that most of
the people who are opposed to the school plans are not against there being a new
school, but have genuine concerns about building on the current site set out in the
application.

A number of letters of representation have been received from the following
organisations, with the key views summarised as follows:

Benenden Amenity and Countryside Society (BACS) — BACS is the largest
village membership group in Benenden and was formed in 1989. The proposed
primary school development is a particularly contentious application as it has
been the basis of a long-running debate in Benenden which has split the
community down the middle. Because the application is for construction on the
highest and most visible point at the edge of the village and in an AONB, we
have asked our members to put in their personal comments. BACS is therefore
not making its own submission at this stage. The Society however is in favour
of a new primary school being built in the parish.

Benenden Village Hall Management Committee — The Committee is
concerned that Tunbridge Wells Borough Council, in making the decision to
site the village school on the Ridge/Glebe Field site, has not given due
consideration to many of the concerns which we, as the Committee and all

Page 30 D1.22



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

people who actually live in the village, have regarding the proposed location.
The proposed point of access for cars and parking provision is far too limited
for realistic day to day use — a simple observation of the amount of vehicles
and the general driving behaviour at the current site will bear this out. This will
undoubtedly result in many parents using the Village Hall as an overflow facility
with potentially dangerous consequences. These consequences need to be
considered in the light of the disruption they cause to other legitimate users of
this facility and the potential harm to children.

The Benenden Village Hall is a business under the auspices of the
Harmsworth Charitable Trust. As a business, we rely on the ability of our hirers
to use our car park for the legitimate purposes. We freely allow other
individuals to use our car parking for their legitimate business; becoming an
over flow car park for the school does not constitute legitimate business.

Siting the school in the proposed location will undoubtedly mean that unless we
close the car park to non-hall users, we will lose control of one of our key
assets. The wear and tear on the car park will increase and the hall will be
regarded as a less attractive venue by potential hirers.

As the guardians and trustees of this important village amenity, we feel it is
high time the consultation process acknowledged the concerns that we have
which are widely echoed among people who actually live in the village (as the
disregarded referendum demonstrated).

The Committee hopes that the proposal to site the school on the Glebe Field
will be rejected and that approval will be given to a site which better suits the
needs of the School and its children and causes less disruption to the
community as a whole.

A letter has been received from a Benenden resident questioning whether the
village hall car park could be incorporated into the applicant’s proposals for the
new primary school on the Pasture site. It fundamentally disagrees with the
claimed statement that a shared vehicular access to the new school through
the village hall could not be entertained due to legal obstacles associated with
the Harmsworth Trust.

Open Spaces Society — Objects most strongly to this planning application for
a new primary school and associated development at Benenden. The site is
located in the High Weald AONB and is on a prominent, elevated spot where it
will be visible for miles around. The development will suburbanise this
extremely attractive village and the lighting will make it particularly intrusive.
We note that there are three footpaths crossing this site and the developers
state that two of these routes will need to be diverted, but there is no
guarantee that such diversions can take place since they will be highly
controversial. The routes are important paths providing easy access within the
village and one of them is part of the High Weald Trail. If the development
goes ahead, the landscape of this recreational route would be significantly
blighted. For all these reasons, we urge the Council to reject this damaging
planning application.

Page 31 D1.23



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

Having considered the further information submitted by the applicant, notes
that the amendments do nothing to change their view on this application.

National Farmers Union — Notes that a letter from the NFU Group Secretary
at Tenterden was submitted to the County Council, accompanying a letter from
a neighbouring farmer to the application site. This letter was legitimately sent
by the NFU Group Secretary’s on NFU letterhead and made clear that it was
on behalf of, or reflecting the views of the local farmer, and not a NFU
objection to the planning application.

To be clear, the letter is in no way an NFU position statement or NFU objection
to this planning application. The comments were general in nature and did not
refer to any site-specific health and safety hazards or farming operations.
Many schools are located adjacent to farmland and the two activities are not
mutually exclusive. Farm hazards are identified and risks are mitigated and
managed by legislation, infrastructure and codes of practice, much as other
hazards would be in cases of nearby roads, railways or factories, for example.

The NFU does not object in principle to locating schools or any other type of
development next to farms, provided the farms are not then subjected to
enforcement action constraining their legitimate commercial operations due to
the proximity of the new development.

The Parish of St. George Benenden Parochial Church Council — The
Parochial Church Council of St. George’s Church, Benenden, values very
highly its links with the Church of England Primary School; representatives of
the Parochial Church Council work as Governors and the school’s affairs
feature as an agenda item of every Parochial Church Council meeting.

The Parochial Church Council has never had any doubts about the need for
the Primary School to have new premises, or about the urgency. During the
processes of investigation and consultation about possible sites, the Parochial
Church Council declined to make any corporate decision, beyond expressing
unqualified support for negotiating an agreement for the continued use of the
‘Glebe Field’ for school sports if this is needed.

The Parochial Church Council has taken notes of the debates within the parish
following KCC'’s planning application, and is well aware of the objections that
have been lodged, including that of the Parish Council.

The Parochial Church Council at its meeting on 22 October 2012 discussed its
stance on the planning application and considers that the application has the
following compelling merits:

e The location retains the centrality of the school to the community facilities
of the Church, the Village Hall, the Recreation Ground and the Green;
and

e The Glebe Field is a significant feature of the village and the application
will permit the continuation of the historic shared use by the school and
community to the benefit of all.

Page 32 D1.24



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

Discussion

56.

57.

58.

Introduction

The application seeks planning permission for the construction of a new 1FE primary
school with associated facilities, together with a new dedicated vehicular access off
Rolvenden Road. The application is being reported to the Planning Applications
Committee as planning objections have been raised by Benenden Parish Council, the
High Weald AONB Unit, Campaign to Protect Rural England, local residents and others.

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that
planning applications are determined in accordance with the Development Plan unless
material considerations indicate otherwise. In the context of this application, the
Development Plan Policies set out in paragraph (35) are of greatest relevance. It should
be noted that the South East Plan remains part of the development plan although the
Government’s intention to abolish regional spatial strategies is a material planning
consideration and the weight given to it is a matter for the decision maker. The National
Planning Policy Framework is also a material planning consideration, as is the Policy
Statement on Planning for Schools Development.

In my opinion, the key material planning considerations in this particular case can be
categorised under the following headings:

the principle of development of a new school within the AONB outside the built
confines of the village, having regard to current National, Regional and Local
Planning Policy;

the impact of the development proposals on statutory designations, including the
Benenden Conservation Area, nearby Listed Buildings and Public Footpaths
(WC325, WC326 and WC327);

the visual impact and design issues associated with the proposals;

the impact of the development proposals on the local road network, highway safety
and the acceptable of off-road vehicle parking provisions;

ecological considerations; and

other issues arising from consultation/publicity.

Principle of Development

59. As stated in paragraph (5) above the application site is located entirely within the High

Weald AONB. This designation washes across the entire village of Benenden extending
(at its least part) some 3 kilometres north east of the village towards Tenterden. The
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) is very clear that great weight should be
given to conserving landscape and scenic beauty in AONBs, which have the highest
status of protection in relation to landscape and scenic beauty. It also states that the
conservation of wildlife and cultural heritage are important considerations in AONBs.
The NPPF goes on to state that planning permission should be refused for major
developments in AONBs except in exceptional circumstances and where it can be
demonstrated they are in the public interest. It states at paragraph 116 that
consideration of such applications should include an assessment of:

- the need for the development, including in terms of any national considerations, and
the impact of permitting it, or refusing it, upon the local economy;

Page 33 D1.25



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

60.

61.

62.

- the cost of, and scope for, developing elsewhere outside the designated area, or
meeting the need for it in some other way; and

- any detrimental effect on the environment, the landscape and recreational
opportunities, and the extent to which that could be moderated.

Policy C3 of the South East Plan states that high priority will be given to conservation
and enhancement of natural beauty in AONBs and planning decisions should have
regard to their setting. It states that in considering proposals for development, the
emphasis should be on small-scale proposals that are sustainably located and
designed. It also states that proposals which support the economies and social well
being of AONBs and their communities will be encouraged, provided that they do not
conflict with the aim of conserving and enhancing natural beauty.

Similarly, Policy CP4 of the Tunbridge Wells Borough Core Strategy states that the High
Weald AONB will be conserved and enhanced, with the Borough’s Landscape
Character Area Assessment (2002) used to manage, conserve and enhance the
landscape as a whole. The Landscape Character Area Assessment (2002, as amended
and subsequently adopted as the Borough Landscape Character Area Assessment: 2
Edition, 2011) forms a Supplementary Planning Document as part of the Local
Development Framework. It identifies the village of Benenden as Local Character Area
6: Benenden Wooded Farmland. A summary of this landscape is stated to be “a
peaceful rural landscape of rolling hills and scattered farmsteads and rural dwellings,
often concealed by woodlands and the topography, but representing a rich built
heritage. The interconnected wooded framework, created by the ecologically-valuable
incised ghylls and field boundary shaws, is one of the defining features of the area. The
landscape also has an ‘ornamental’ overlay created by formal parklands, which can be
glimpsed from the public roads.” The objectives for this Local Character Area are stated
as:

- maintain the essentially wooded and rural agricultural character of the area;

- ensure that well-managed, small-scale agricultural character remains intact.
Hedgerow loss and larger-scale arable farming becoming dominant in some areas
results in the loss of ecological interest and aesthetic appeal which could potentially
destroy the scale of the landscape; and

- ensure that the existing pattern of settlement, i.e. small-scale dispersed rural
buildings which are not visually prominent and are hidden by the landform and
wooded cover, is protected.

It is therefore important to assess the proposed new primary school development
against these National, Regional and Local AONB policies. First, it is important to
establish the need for a new primary school within the village. The case of need for a
new primary school is stated in paragraph (6) above, and essentially is based around
the current split school site being too small, dated and unsatisfactory for modern
teaching practices. The applicant has stated that if a new school were not to be
provided in the village (i.e. a ‘do nothing’ approach), then either the school would
continue to provide an inadequate teaching environment for staff and pupils which
would not be sustainable in the longer-term, or that existing schools elsewhere would
have to accommodate the displaced school provision. The applicant has advised that
the latter solution (i.e. to close the school and displace the primary school provision to
other local schools) would neither be feasible in education provision terms nor suitable
in sustainability terms given the number of pupils involved and the impact upon the
village community that would inevitably follow. | accept these arguments and consider

Page 34 D1.26



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

63.

64.

65.

66.

that there is a strong case of need for developing a new Primary School for Benenden. |
note that as part of the consultations | have undertaken on this application, whilst it is
fair to say that views have been split over the delivery of a new primary school, the case
of need for actually replacing the school with modern, fit for purpose teaching
accommodation, has generally not been contested. | consider that the primary school is
an important and integral part of the existing village community and that there is strong
planning policy support for such community facilities to be retained and enhanced as
well as good sustainability arguments for providing such facilities close to the very
communities in which they serve.

Following a strong case of need having been established, the next consideration turns
on an appropriate choice of site in order to deliver a new Primary School for the village.
The first noteworthy point to make is that it is not possible to redevelop the existing
Primary School site owing to its constrained size and the buildings Listed status. | note
that the process of trying to find an appropriate site has a significant amount of history
attached to it, dating back to early consultations and a public meeting held in March
2005. | also note that the issue surrounding an appropriate site has been at the very
heart of the deliberations in the consultation responses received on this application.

Following initial feasibility work undertaken by the applicant, it became evident that
there were no previously developed sites available within the village ‘built confines’
which could be capable of accommodating a new primary school. All suitable sites were
those located on the edge of the village, falling outside of the Limits of Built
Development as identified in the Tunbridge Wells Borough Local Plan. All suitable sites
also fell within the High Weald AONB designation. The only viable option was therefore
to provide a new Primary School on greenfield land outside of the existing village
envelope.

A process of selecting a number of potential development sites was undertaken by the
applicant between 2005 and 2008, as detailed in paragraphs (8) to (13) above. In
essence an initial six potential sites were narrowed down to just two, with those two
preferred sites being referred to as Site 1 (New Pond Road, also referred to as the
‘Orchard Site’) and Site 8 (the general site now being pursued). These two preferred
sites were recognised by the Borough Council as part of its emerging Local
Development Framework, but the option of Site 8 put forward by the Borough Council
originally included building directly on the Glebe Field, a proposal considered wholly
inappropriate by the School and KCC given the open space and community value of the
Glebe Field to the village. The current application site is therefore a variation on the
original Site 8.

In January 2007 a Parish Poll was arranged by Benenden Parish Council (in
consultation with the Borough Council) which was designed to inform the Parish Council
of local views on which site should be chosen for developing a new Primary School. The
Parish Poll was designed to inform the Parish Council’'s consultee views on the
emerging Borough Council Local Development Framework, and was not binding and
had no statutory power. Some 522 votes were cast, with 56.7% voting in favour of Site
1 and 43.3% in favour of Site 8 (41.4% for Site 8A — the pasture site, 1.9% for Site 8B —
the Glebe Field). During the processing of the current application, doubt has been cast
on the reliability of the results of the Parish Poll and it should be borne in mind that this
was undertaken in 2007 to assist the Parish Council at that time, was not binding and
had no statutory power. Moreover, it should be borne in mind that planning applications

Page 35 D1.27



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

67.

68.

69.

70.

are not determined on the basis of popularity, but rather through a balancing of the
material land use planning aspects.

On the basis of the significant time taken to progress the allocation of a new site for a
replacement primary school within the emerging Borough Council Local Development
Framework, the applicant chose to progress the new school via the planning application
route, holding pre-application discussions with the County Planning Authority as the
relevant determining Planning Authority. The applicant subsequently decided that
building on the pasture site presented the most appropriate location for a replacement
primary school, on the proviso that the Glebe Field remained undeveloped and that a
high standard of design appropriate to the sites AONB siting could be achieved.

Whilst | note that much debate continues within the local community about the most
appropriate choice of site, the replacement Primary School is proposed on the pasture
site adjacent to the Glebe Field. Members should be advised that it is the current
proposals (including the use of the pasture site) which must be assessed on its
individual planning merits; i.e. Members must consider the application that is before
them and not the merits of any alternative proposals or site not currently being
proposed. For the purposes of the NPPF policy test relating to AONBs, | am satisfied
that developing a new school outside of the AONB is neither practical nor possible in
this instance given the wide-reaching area covered by this policy designation. Whilst |
accept that there may be alternative site(s) within the village which could accommodate
a new primary school in principle (assuming that no other issues, such as land
ownership, precluded that) the acceptability of the current application site in planning
terms must be considered first in this instance.

As noted above, the application site is located outside of the Limits of Built
Development, as identified by Policy LBD1 of the Tunbridge Wells Borough Local Plan.
This is also true of any alternative potential development site(s) for a new school within
the village. Policy LBD1 states that outside of the limits of built development,
development will only be permitted where it would be in accordance with all other
policies contained within the Local Plan.

Having considered the policy tests for AONBs set out in National, Regional and Local
Planning Policy, | have established that there is a strong case of need for a new primary
school within the village. | have also concluded that there would undoubtedly be a
negative impact on the community (and associated impact on the village economy)
should this important community facility not be retained within the village itself, and
whichever site is selected it would inevitably be located within the AONB. | am also
convinced that there is no scope for developing a replacement Primary School
elsewhere outside of the AONB, nor meeting the need in some other way. In particular,
the AONB extends well beyond the immediate environs of Benenden, and a site outside
of the AONB would be neither sustainable nor realistically a replacement school for
Benenden. The only alternative solution would be to expand the next nearest Primary
Schools, which notwithstanding the space constraints for any expansion at these other
schools, is regarded as unacceptable to the Education Authority, the School and the
local community. Whilst there would inevitably be some detrimental effects on the
environment and landscape of the AONB as a result of this major development
proposal, | consider that the proposed design, siting and mitigating measures (as
discussed further below), are sufficient to together with the need and locational
arguments, constitute exceptional circumstances to justify setting aside the general
presumption against major development in the AONB in this particular case.

Page 36 D1.28



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

71.

72.

Whilst there may be other development site(s) within the locality which could potentially
used for a new school, it is important to first consider the planning merits of the current
application. The planning merits relating to the impact on other statutory designations,
the wider landscape and visual impacts and other relevant issues are discussed in the
following paragraphs. Additionally, there is strong Government policy support for the
development of schools to cater for the community needs in the Policy Statement on
Planning for Schools Development, and that does not preclude such development in
areas that are within designated landscapes. Accordingly, | would not raise an objection
to the principle of the development of a new Primary School within the High Weald
AONB and outside of the Limits of Built Development.

Whilst it is recognised that the proposed development is a departure application, in so
far as it does not accord with the provisions of the Development Plan in force in the
area, there is no requirement under the Town and Country Planning (Consultation)
(England) Direction 2009 for this application to be referred to the Secretary of State for
Communities and Local Government.

Impact on Other Statutory Designations

73.

74.

75.

A number of other statutory designations exist within close proximity to the application
site. These designation include the Benenden Conservation Area which covers a large
part of the village, including the village green, St George’s Church and extends to a
point along Rolvenden Road just west of Leybourne Dell; a number of Listed Buildings,
the closest being Tudor Cottage (Grade Il) fronting Rolvenden Road on the north side
of the village hall playing field and St. Georges Church (Grade II*) to the west of the
Glebe Field; and three Public Rights of Way (WC325, WC326 and WC327) which all
cross the application site. These statutory designations are all shown on the Site
Location Plan on Page D1.2.

First it is important to consider the impact of this development on the setting of the
Benenden Conservation Area and Listed Buildings. The NPPF states that in
determining planning applications, local planning authorities should take account of: the
desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets (which
include Conservation Areas and Listed Buildings); the positive contribution that
conservation of heritage assets can make to sustainable communities; and the
desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local character and
distinctiveness. It also states that when considering the impact of a proposed
development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be
given to the asset’s conservation.

Similarly, South East Plan Policy BE6 states that support will be given to proposals
which protect, conserve and where appropriate, enhance the historic environment and
the contribution it makes to local and regional distinctiveness and sense of place.
Tunbridge Wells Local Plan Policy EN5 states that proposals within, or affecting the
character of, a conservation area will only be permitted if a range of criteria are met,
including (amongst other matters) that the proposals would preserve and enhance the
character and appearance of the area. Policy CP4 of the Borough Council LDF Core
Strategy similarly states that the Borough’s heritage assets, including Listed Buildings
and Conservation Areas, will be conserved and enhanced and special regard had to
their settings.

Page 37 D1.29



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

76.

77.

78.

The westerly extent of the Benenden Conservation Area extends to a point along
Rolvenden Road just east of Leybourne Dell. The development site for the new Primary
School is separated from the Conservation Area by Rolvenden Road and the existing
village hall recreation ground. Owing to the topography of the land and the existing built
form of the village, views of the development site from the Conservation Area would
only be experienced from Rolvenden Road at various vantage points opposite the
recreation ground. These views would be across ground which slopes upwards
(westwards, towards the application site) and separated by existing boundary
vegetation, consisting of tree and hedgerow planting, located around the edge of the
recreation ground. Taking these factors into account, views of the proposed
development from the Conservation Area would be principally those of the new school
hall building, including its tile hung roof. These proposed views have been modelled by
the applicant and photomontage views will be available for inspection at the Committee
Meeting itself. The external appearance of the proposed school hall has been designed
to appear as a Kentish barn style building, with timber boarded elevations sitting below
a tile hung roof. Photovoltaic solar panels and solar thermal panels are proposed for the
roof of the school hall, although these would be mounted on the south-facing roof slope
which faces away from the Conservation Area. On the basis of the distance from the
Conservation Area, the topography of the land and intervening vegetation separating
both the Conservation Area and proposed development, and the Kentish barn style
vernacular proposed, | do not consider that the proposed development would result in
any unacceptable or overriding harm to the character or appearance of the
neighbouring Benenden Conservation Area. | note that the County Council’s Landscape
Advisor agrees with this view, owing to the proposals being visually well contained and
because of the sensitive design of the buildings.

The nearest Listed Buildings to the proposed development are Tudor Cottage (Grade II)
which is located on Rolvenden Road opposite the village hall recreation ground and St.
Georges Church (Grade 11*) located west of the application site beyond the Glebe Field.
There are also a number of Grade Il Listed memorials located around the village,
including a number within St. George’s Churchyard, outside Benenden Village Hall and
on the road junction between Rolvenden Road and Walkhurst Road. For the same
reasons as described above in paragraph (76), | do not consider that the proposed
development would result in an unacceptable or overriding harm to the setting of Tudor
Cottage. Moreover, it is not reasonable to seek to protect the wider setting of Listed
buildings (other than Grade | and II*) given that many share street space with other non
Listed buildings.

The application site is separated from St. George’s Church by the Glebe Field. A
number of dense boundary screens exist between the church itself and the application
site, notably those located on the boundaries of the Glebe Field with both the
application site and the Churchyard. Accordingly, views from the Churchyard towards
the application site (and visa versa) are extremely limited. Given the separation
distances involved and the boundary vegetation which currently exists | do not consider
there to be any unacceptable or overriding harm to the setting of St. George’s Church,
an important Grade II* Listed Building. | further note that as part of the development
proposals, the existing boundary vegetation (including trees and hedgerow) between
the application site and the Glebe Field would be maintained and protected during any
construction activities.

79. As detailed in paragraph (4) and as shown on Page D1.2, three Public Rights of Way

run across the application site. These are Rights of Way WC325, WC326 and WC327.

Page 38 D1.30



item D1
New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

The High Weald Landscape Trail passes across one of these Rights of Way (WC327)
as it crosses the application site. The High Weald Landscape Trail is a 145 km (90 mile)
route that runs through the High Weald AONB from east to west, taking in the counties
of West Sussex, East Sussex and Kent. In order to facilitate the proposed school
development, all three Rights of Way would be subject to some degree of realignment
from their current definitive positions. These diversions would be subject to a separate
application process for which the applicant would need to apply to the County Council’s
Public Rights of Way Team in order to implement. It is however important to consider
the impact of the proposed development upon the setting of the various Public Rights of
Way as part of the planning considerations of this development. To this effect, Policy
C6 of the South East Plan states that local authorities should encourage access to the
countryside by maintaining, enhancing and promoting the PROW network.

80. The PROW diversions (which would need to be pursued by the applicant following the
successful grant of planning permission) are described in paragraph (28) above. In
summary, these would involve the realignment of footpath WC326 along its current
trodden route to the west of the Glebe Field boundary, diversion of footpath WC325 to
avoid conflict with the footprint of the proposed school building, and a slight re-
alignment of footpath WC327 along Rolvenden Road to the north of the application site,
across the new vehicular access and through the corner of the proposed car park into
the pasture beyond. | consider that the key changes to the setting of the various Rights
of Way would be as a result of the new school building and the proposed car park which
would introduce additional built development into an area which is currently used for
open agricultural purposes. Generally speaking the Rights of Way which leave the edge
of built confines of the village would be subject to some further built development before
reaching the open countryside beyond. Whilst | accept that there would inevitably be a
degree of visual change to each of the various Rights of Way, | do not consider that
these changes would be unacceptable or seriously damage the enjoyment of users of
the footpaths, such that planning permission should be refused on these grounds alone.
| consider that the wider community benefit of developing a new Primary School far
outweighs any slight visual changes associated with the relatively modest re-alignments
of these footpaths and consider that issues such as landscape treatment and fence
details adjoining the various rights of way through the application site, and the surface
treatment of the surfaces of the rights of way, to mitigate some of the detriment to the
Rights of Way can be appropriately secured by condition on any planning consent.

81. Having considered the various impacts of the proposed development on the other
statutory designations, including the Benenden Conservation Area, nearby Listed
Buildings, and the three Public Rights of Way which currently pass through the
application site, | do not consider there to be any overriding significant harm such that
planning permission should be refused on these grounds. | consider that the proposed
development broadly accords with the development plan policies which seek to
conserve and enhance existing heritage assets within the village.

Visual Impact and Design Issues

82. The building design for the new Primary School has followed a ‘U’ shaped form and
footprint, with individual classrooms laid out around a central courtyard and hard play
area. The main ‘U’ shaped classroom building would be single storey, sitting below a
green roof with native species and sedum plug plants, sown with a seed mix containing
a variety of native species grasses and flowers. The main school building would be 5
metres high to the ridge line, with a maximum ridge height of 103.5 metres AOD. The

Page 39 D1.31



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

83.

84.

85.

86.

87.

main school hall is designed to reflect local vernacular, through a combination of a tiled
pitch roof and timber boarded elevations. The school hall would be just under 8 metres
high to the ridge line, with a maximum ridge height of 106.5 metres AOD.

The proposed school buildings would be ‘cut-in’ to the existing ground contours with an
internal finished floor level of 98.5 metres AOD. To put this in perspective, ground levels
at the northern extent of the new school are at approximately 98.5 metres AOD and at
the south eastern corner of the new school between approximately 100 and 100.5
metres AOD. In relation to existing ground contours the new school hall would extend
approximately 8 metres above existing levels, whilst the main ‘U’ shaped classroom
building would extend between 3 and 3.5 metres above existing ground levels. The ‘cut’
materials would be redistributed across the pasture land to the east of the primary
school and car park area to create a natural landform, some 600-700 mm higher than
existing ground contours. This pasture area would be seeded to create a late cut,
species rich wildflower hay meadow.

The NPPF states that great importance will be attached to the design of the built
environment. It states that good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, is
indivisible from good planning, and should contribute positively to making places better
for people. It also states that although visual appearance and the architecture of
individual buildings are very important factors, securing high quality and inclusive design
goes beyond aesthetic considerations. Therefore, planning decisions should address
the connections between people and places and the integration of new development
into the natural, built and historic environment.

Policy EN1 of the Tunbridge Wells Local Plan requires (amongst other matters) that the
design of proposals, encompassing scale, layout and orientation of buildings, site
coverage by buildings, external appearance, roofscape, materials and landscaping,
would respect the context of the site. It also states that proposals should not result in
the loss of trees, shrubs or hedges, or other features important to the character of the
built up area or landscape.

As set out in paragraph (53) above, concerns have been expressed regarding the visual
impact of the new school proposals. Similar concerns have also been expressed by the
High Weald AONB Group (paragraph 41), Campaign to Protect Rural England
(paragraph 49) and the Open Spaces Society (paragraph 55). Generally speaking,
these objections consider that the proposed development would impact on the AONB by
changing the character of the location from an open rural field, which makes a
significant contribution to the setting of Benenden village within the landscape, to that of
major built form, and associated parking, hard standing and formal areas. It has also
been stated that the chosen site is located on the highest and most exposed point of
the village (the site has been referred to by some as the “ridge” site) where any new
built form would be most prominent. Objections have also focussed on the current
application site being far more visually prominent than other potential development
locations within the village, such as Site 1 (New Pond Road).

As previously stated above, this application (including the choice of site) needs to be
tested on its own planning merits. In my view the proposed design of the new school
building has been developed having regard to its sensitive landscape setting, which
arguably has not been the case with other more visually prominent buildings in the
village. The building is proposed to be ‘cut-in’ to the sloping topography of the land
which would reduce its overall built form and visual impact in the wider landscape. The

Page 40 D1.32



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

88.

89.

90.

building would also be single storey in the main, with a double height school hall owing
to its required height to meet educational requirements, such as PE lessons. The
chosen palette of building materials would be wholly appropriate for this sensitive
landscape, including a green roof to the single ‘U’ shaped storey classroom building and
a traditional tile hung and timber boarded ‘Kentish’ barn style school hall, and generally
accords with the vernacular and materials suitable for a High Weald village setting.

The size of the proposed new school car park has attracted objections throughout the
processing of this application. It was previously claimed (by the Borough Council and
other objectors) that the size of the car park was too large for the School’'s own
requirements, resulting in a greater visual impact that would otherwise result with a
smaller car park. After further consideration, the applicant has reduced the size of the
proposed car park by some 22 percent, down from the originally proposed 67 vehicle
parking spaces to 52 spaces. A revised car park layout has been submitted which has
resulted in an increase in landscape planting provisions along the north-eastern
boundary of the car park towards the pasture area, in the area previously allocated for
car parking. | would support the revised car park layout and size, which lessens its
visual impact by adjusting the land take of parking to planting, within the same footprint
of land.

The proposed school development would be set within new landscape planting,
consisting of a mix of native trees and thicket planting together with native hedgerows.
The indicative planting scheme, incorporating hedgerows with interspersed tree
planting, would be generally consistent with other field boundaries within the area as
identified as an important feature within the Borough Council Landscape Character
Area Assessment (2™ Edition, 2011). Existing trees and shrubs along the boundary of
the application site with the Village Hall recreation ground and Glebe Field would be
maintained and protected during construction activities in accordance with the relevant
British Standard and this could be appropriately secured by planning condition.
Additional tree planting is also proposed near the northern boundary of the site with the
recreation ground as well as within the car park and surrounding the surface water
balancing pond located near Rolvenden Road.

As detailed above, the adjacent pasture land to the east of the new school and car park
would be re-graded (some 600-700mm above existing ground contour levels) using ‘cut’
materials, with the land treated and seeded to create a late cut, species rich wildflower
hay meadow. The re-grading of this land would help to soften views across the
application site, specifically of the proposed new car park, from Rolvenden Road when
entering the village from an easterly direction and from houses located at Pullington
Cottages. That said, the County Council’'s Landscape Advisor considers that there
would be some substantial adverse visual impacts from residential housing to the north
east of the site (Pullington Cottages) and from housing along Rolvenden Road opposite
the proposed access and car park. Currently, these properties afford rural views across
hilly pasture and the proposals would cause a significant change in view, particularly
where the proposed access, car park and vehicles would be visible. However, these
views are already separated by the intervening highway and views of both the new car
park and school buildings would be filtered by the proposed tree planting and re-
contouring. Members should also note however that right to a personal view is not a
material planning consideration, whereas a public view more generally across the
landscape of the AONB is. As part of the applicant’s supporting material, photomontage
views of the proposed development have been prepared and will be displayed for
inspection at the Committee Meeting itself.

Page 41 D1.33



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

91.

92.

93.

94.

The site would be secured with a variety of fences, reflecting the school’s rural village
context. The school buildings themselves would be secured by 1.8m high green
weldmesh fencing which would be located in between double rows of hedgerow planting
to the south (adjacent to the re-aligned Public Right of Way WC325), hedgerow and
tree planting to the east (adjacent to the pasture land) and tree and hedgerow planting
to the north and west (facing the recreation ground and Glebe Field respectively).
Whilst the height of the 1.8m high fencing has been questioned by the County Council’s
Landscape Advisor and a number of objectors, | consider that it is appropriate in this
instance given the location of the site. Furthermore, an appropriate colour treatment
and specification of this fencing (which would be secured by condition) together with
strong landscape tree and hedgerow planting would help set any new fencing within the
landscape. New 1.2 metre high post and rail fencing is proposed between the school
and the village hall playing field, together with new 1.2 metre high timber post and wire
fencing along the front boundary of the school with Rolvenden Road and the boundary
of the new car park with the pasture land beyond.

A section of existing hedgerow (measuring some 50 metres in length) would be
removed from the front boundary of the site with Rolvenden Road between the point
adjacent to the recreation ground and the location of the new vehicular access. With the
exception of the space necessary to facilitate the new vehicular access, a replacement
native hedgerow (with interspersed tree planting) would be re-planted further inside the
application site boundary. The need to remove and replant this section of hedgerow is
in order to achieve acceptable highway visibility spays in an eastwards direction,
measuring 2.4m x 66.8m.

| am satisfied that the final details of site landscaping, ground contour levels, building
heights and levels, fencing (including specification and external appearance) and
external materials of the school buildings themselves can all be secured by condition for
later detailed consideration. However, in principle | am satisfied that the indicative
details provided in all of these respects are acceptable and would assist in ensuring that
the proposed built development would sit well within the landscape.

Overall, the County Council’'s Landscape Advisor considers that the proposals would
cause a minor adverse impact on the landscape character of the area. She also
considers that the proposals would have a slight adverse effect on the immediate
vicinity of the AONB, but that the visual containment of the site and the attention to built
form would mean that the impact on the wider High Weald AONB would be negligible.
In my opinion, whilst | consider that there would be a degree of visual change in the
locality, specifically in the form of new built development outside of the traditional village
envelope, | do not consider that the impact on the wider landscape to be so significant
in this case to warrant refusal of planning permission. Whilst | accept that there may be
other sites within the village which may well be less visually prominent, this is just one
factor in a number of important considerations: including the location of the school in
respect of proximity to other important village features (such as the Church and Village
Hall); the need to create safe pedestrian and vehicular access; the relative development
costs; the availability of land; site topography; ecological constraints; and the provision
or availability of building services. In this case, | consider that the school building design
and footprint has been carefully considered to make the most of the site’s sloping
topography whilst responding positively to the sensitive landscape designation of the
High Weald AONB. That said, it is also important to ensure that the Primary School
development stands out as being an inspiring and positive community facility which
adds to the village’s economic and social viability in the long-term. In that sense it

Page 42 D1.34



item D1
New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

should ‘stand out’ to a certain degree within the village context and arguably should not
be purposefully totally concealed from possible views as if it was some type of ‘eyesore’
development best hidden from sight. | would therefore not raise an objection to the
proposals on either visual impact or in design terms.

Highway Considerations

95. The NPPF states that all developments that generate a significant amount of vehicle
movements should be supported by a Transport Statement or Transport Assessment. It
states that planning decisions should take into account the opportunities for sustainable
transport modes and the need to provide safe and suitable access to the development
site for all people. It also states that all development which generate significant amounts
of transport movements should be required to provide a Travel Plan. Policy T4 of the
South East Plan requires restraint-based maximum levels of parking provision for non-
residential developments as well as ensuring the provision of sufficient cycle parking as
part of new development proposals.

96. Policy TP4 of the Borough Local Plan states that proposals will only be permitted if a
number of criteria are met. These include: that the road hierarchy and the function of
routes have adequate capacity to cater for the traffic which will be generated by the
development; a safely located access with adequate visibility which exists or could be
created; outside of the Limits of Built Development, the development would not involve
the provision of an additional access or the intensification of use of an existing access
directly onto a Primary or Secondary route; and that the traffic generated by the
proposal does not compromise the safe and free flow of traffic or the safe use of the
roads by others. It also states that where a proposal necessitates highway
improvements, the developer will be required to meet the cost of the improvements
where these are fairly and reasonably related to the development. Policy TP5 of the
Borough Local Plan states that vehicle parking in connection with development
proposals will be restricted to the maximum necessary, having regard to local highway
conditions.

97. A number of highway concerns have been raised as part of the development proposals,
primarily relating to safety concerns associated with the proposed new vehicular access
from Rolvenden Road and the speed of traffic in the vicinity of the development site.
Vehicular access is proposed directly from the B2086 Rolvenden Road to the north east
of the site, with the access point and bellmouth to be sited between the junctions with
Leybourne Dell and Pullington Cottages. This vehicular access has been designed to
benefit from visibility splays measuring 2.4m x 66m to the south east and 2.4m x 66.8m
to the north west. Concerns have been raised that the proposed new vehicular entrance
would be located almost opposite a private driveway serving two houses (Broughton
House and Camellia House) leading to highway safety and loss of privacy concerns. It
has been claimed that the applicant has not taken into account this private access
driveway and that residents would not be able to safely get in or out of their driveways
during school arrival or departure times. Other highway concerns raised include the
proposed new vehicular access point being positioned in the most dangerous part of
any road in Benenden; that cars already travel in excess of 40mph along this part of the
road (even though the speed limit is 30mph); that the proposals fail to take account of
an existing bus stop located immediately outside of the application site; that no proper
details of sight lines have been submitted; that during winter months residents of
Leybourne Dell leave their cars on Rolvenden Road as they are unable to drive out of
their roads because it is steep and icy; and that accidents which have occurred recently

Page 43 D1.35



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

98.

99.

100.

101.

at the Leybourne Dell junction appear to have been ‘overlooked’ by the Highway
Authority in this instance. It has also been suggested that instead of the proposed
bellmouth junction, a mini roundabout should be created to serve the new school and
Leybourne Dell.

| have specifically sought advice from KCC Highways and Transportation in respect of
these development proposals. Contrary to what has been suggested by a local resident,
KCC Highways and Transportation (as the relevant Highway Authority) have considered
the highway implications of the proposed development on a completely independent
basis. KCC Highways and Transportation has raised no objection to the proposed
development subject to the imposition of conditions, noting that the general
arrangements for the access with a priority junction are acceptable and provide
appropriate clearance from other junctions (including the residential access) within the
vicinity.

The Highway Authority has been in direct correspondence with the opposite residential
property owner regarding his proposals for a mini-roundabout to serve the new Primary
School development and Leybourne Dell. After careful consideration of the proposed
suggestion for a mini-roundabout, the Highway Authority has concluded that this design
solution would not be appropriate nor necessary for the location and the nature of the
traffic flows. It has also concluded that existing access should not be significantly
jeopardised to the private driveways serving both Broughton House and Camellia
House, and that many other accesses are located in similar positions (i.e. two
independent accesses opposite each other) without significant safety or capacity
problems occurring. Likewise it is not uncommon for non-residential development, such
as schools, shops and businesses to be similarly juxtaposed without undue highway
safety risks. Moreover, the view of the Highway Authority is that whilst it may be
possible to design an acceptable mini-roundabout for the location in question, such a
scheme is likely to require additional third party land not within the control of the County
Council.

KCC Highways and Transportation considers that the reduced level of parking (52
spaces, down from 67) is acceptable in principle and that the surface must be bound
with no drainage over the highway. | consider that the reduced level of on-site parking is
appropriate in this instance, taking into account the rural location of the school and the
relatively wide pupil catchment area. KCC Highways and Transportation recommends
that a number of conditions be imposed, as set out in paragraph (38), which in
summary cover: cross sections of the car park; surface materials and drainage details
of the car park; details of visibility splays to be provided and thereafter maintained in
perpetuity for the life of the development; details of off-site traffic calming measures for
approval and implementation prior to the first occupation of the new school; the
submission of a Construction Management Plan; and a School Travel Plan to be
submitted within six months of first occupation. | consider that all of these conditions are
reasonable and relate appropriately to the proposed development and would therefore
recommend that they be included on any forthcoming consent.

The issue of current vehicle speeds along the B2086 Rolvenden Road in the vicinity
of the application site has been raised as part of the objections to the new Primary
School development. The applicant’'s own Transport Statement identified through a
traffic survey that vehicle speeds in the vicinity of the application site are currently in
excess of the 30mph speed limit which is in force throughout the main built up area of
the village. The 30mph speed restriction applies to the entirety of Rolvenden Road

Page 44 D1.36



item D1
New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

through the built up area, starting at a point west of the village and extending to a point
east of the village. The applicant’s traffic survey identified that 85" percentile speeds
were (at the time of measurement) 40.19mph northwest bound and 40.53 southwest
bound, with average speeds being 34.50mph and 34.63mph northwest and southeast
bound respectively. Whilst not uncommon findings, these figures do not presume
against the principle of a new school access here, nor indeed residential accesses, but
as discussed below in paragraph (103) could justify some traffic calming measures.

102. The visibility splays which are proposed for the new vehicular access onto
Rolvenden Road have been designed taking into account the current observed vehicle
speeds (i.e. those in excess of the 30mph speed limit). Contrary to a point of objection
made about a lack of sufficient visibility splays being provided, the applicant has
submitted details of visibility splays measuring 2.4m x 66m to the southeast and 2.4m x
66.8m to the northwest. These visibility splays are considered to be acceptable by KCC
Highways and Transportation. In order to ensure that these splays are provided from
the first use of the school, and subsequently maintained thereafter, | propose that full
details of replacement hedgerow planting to the front of the site be submitted for further
technical consideration. | also recommend that a condition be imposed on any planning
consent requiring these visibility splays to be maintained at all times for the operational
life of the new school.

103. In order to address the issue of vehicle speeds in the vicinity of the application site,
discussions have taken place between the Highway Authority, the applicant and the
County Planning Authority. A package of traffic calming measures is proposed by the
applicant as detailed in paragraph (32) which is expected to reduce 85™ percentile
speeds to 35mph or less in the site vicinity. The precise details of these off-site traffic
calming measures is proposed to be secured by condition and would be agreed by both
the Planning and Highway Authorities prior to implementation. The measures would be
required to be implemented prior to the first occupation of the new Primary School and
maintained thereafter. The costs associated with the delivery of the proposed traffic
calming measures would be met by the applicant. | consider that this approach is
reasonable in this instance, is inline with the professional and technical advice received
from KCC Highways and Transportation, and should help reduce traffic speeds locally
within the village.

104. Concerns have been raised about the proximity of an existing bus stop to the
proposed new vehicular access. | have been advised by KCC Highways and
Transportation that the proposed access is safe and in all respects acceptable and
therefore do not consider that an objection on these grounds could be sustained. In the
event that the existing bus stop may need to be slightly re-aligned, it would be the
responsibility of the applicant (in agreement with the Highway Authority) to agree this
with the relevant bus operator(s).

105. | note that concerns have also been raised over the number of road accidents which
have occurred in the vicinity of Leybourne Dell and whether these have been
‘overlooked’ by the Highway Authority. | have sought advice on this matter from the
Highway Authority, who have confirmed that over the relevant length of Rolvenden
Road there have been no recorded crashes involving personal injuries. | therefore
consider that grounds of objection of highway safety grounds can therefore not be
sustained in this instance.

Page 45 D1.37



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

106.

107.

108.

109.

The issue of resident parking on Rolvenden Road during winter months, when
vehicles are unable to use Leybourne Dell, has been raised as a point of concern for
the proposed new vehicle access. | would point out that whilst there are currently no
parking restrictions on this section of Rolvenden Road (such as yellow lines), should
there be any need for such restrictions to be imposed in the future then this would be a
matter for the local Borough Council to consider in conjunction with the Highway
Authority.

Questions have been raised from members of the public and during the Members’
Site Visit as to whether a shared vehicle access, circulation and parking space could be
developed jointly with the Village Hall, saving the need for the doubling up of facilities
(such as car parking) in close proximity to each other. The issue of shared access and
car parking has been explored by the applicant and the Village Hall Management
Committee, however no agreement on this matter has been achieved at this point in
time. Members will note that the Village Hall Management Committee have in fact
objected to the current proposals as set out in paragraph (55), citing concerns over a
potential abuse of the current village hall car park should the proposals be permitted. |
therefore see no potential solution to developing a shared access and car parking
facilities at this current point in time. However, should this situation change in the future,
I would certainly encourage the applicant to hold further discussions and explore
alternative options with the Village Hall Management Committee. In order to address
this point, | propose that an informative be added to any decision requesting the
applicant to hold further discussions with the Village Hall Management Committee on
the possibility of shared access and car parking facilities prior to the implementation of
any planning permission. Should an alternative means of access and/or car parking
solution be agreed between both parties that might be considered preferable to the
current proposals, an amendment could be considered to the planning permission in the
future.

The current school benefits from a well-established and successful ‘Walking Bus’
which operate on a number of days each week, promoting sustainable transport
measures to and from the school. These measures would be extended to cover the
proposed new school site which could be accessed from a number of routes from the
village green — either along Rolvenden Road following the highway footway or through
the Churchyard and across the Glebe Field. As part of a package of measures to
promote sustainable school travel, it is proposed to require the applicant to prepare and
submit a School Travel Plan within six months of the first occupation of the new school.
This Travel Plan should include measures to be implemented to encourage more
sustainable patterns of travel to/from school, a timetable for the implementation of such
measures and a mechanism for ongoing monitoring of the Plan thereafter.

Taking into account the technical and professional advice received from KCC
Highways and Transportation, | am satisfied that the proposals are acceptable in all
respects in highway terms, subject to the imposition of the conditions as discussed
above. Whilst | recognise the concerns raised by local residents, specifically those
located immediately opposite the proposed new vehicular access point, | do not
consider that these grounds of objection could be sustained in planning terms.

Ecology

110.

The application is accompanied by a Phase 1 Ecological Scoping Report. This report
noted that the most of the application site comprises sheep-grazed grassland fields,

Page 46 D1.38



item D1
New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

which are of limited ecological value, with native tree lines and hedgerows to the site
boundaries. Six ponds within 250 metres of the site were also recorded. Accordingly, it
was recommended that detailed survey work be undertaken to establish the likely
presence or absence of the following species (Great Crested Newts/other amphibians,
Bats, Reptiles and Dormice), based on the habitat potential that the local ponds and site
margins provide. Evidence of badger activity close to the site were recorded, however
the location and nature of this rendered further survey work unnecessary, subject to
appropriate mitigation during construction. Surveys were carried out throughout 2011 at
the appropriate times of year in accordance with best practice. Detailed reports for
Great Crested Newts, Bats, Reptiles and Dormice have all been submitted with the
application.

111. In respect of Great Crested Newts (GCN), field surveys did not record any GCN,
however desktop records indicate recent records of GCN within 300 metres of the site.
It has therefore been recommended that a Natural England Licence be obtained for the
development given the potential impact upon terrestrial GCN habitat. In addition to the
licence, it is recommended that various mitigation measures be implemented, including
grazing the field prior to the commencement of the development, undertake a
destructive search of any hedgerow to be lost, the installation of GCN and reptile
exclusion fencing around the perimeter of the site between November/December to
February, prior to construction. Habitat enhancements in the form of the proposed pond
and additional native hedgerow planting are also proposed.

112. In respect of Bats, desktop research did not indicate the presence of any known bat
roosts within the site, but did identify 15 known roosts within 2km of the site. As such
and given the proposed development and presence of trees exhibiting potential roost
features, further survey work was recommended to establish the likely impact of the
development upon bats. Three dusk emergence surveys and one dawn survey was
carried out between April and June 2011. These surveys were supplemented by activity
surveys during the same period and inspection of trees on and adjacent to the site. No
evidence of bat emergence, re-entry or roosts was noted or detected on any of the
trees within the site. Three species were recorded as foraging within the south west
corner of the Glebe Field, but there was no prolonged or repeated periods of foraging
within the application site and there was limited evidence that the site forms part of a
valuable commuting route within the wider landscape. On the basis of these survey
results, it has been identified that the proposed development may have limited impacts
on a small number of bats. Mitigation is proposed in the form of construction
management during key foraging periods, the retention of all mature trees, protection of
the Glebe Field and the minimisation of artificial lighting across the site. All of these
measures are incorporated within the application proposal, together with enhancements
in the form of bat boxes and new native planting.

113. During the initial scoping survey, the site was considered to have high potential for
reptiles and a slow worm was also found. Accordingly, detailed survey work was
recommended and subsequently carried out between March and June 2011. The
surveys involved distributing 40 artificial refugia across the site and comprised 15
separate visits. During the surveys, 4 slow worms and 2 common lizards were recorded,
equating to a low population size. A juvenile grass snake was also recorded and
desktop research has revealed the presence of grass snakes within the surrounding
area. The results indicate that the site’s marginal habitats provide suitable conditions to
support reptiles, offering potential routes for migration and dispersal. On the basis of
the field survey findings, it is recommended that the site be maintained as grazed

Page 47 D1.39



item D1
New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

pasture prior to development, that the field margins be preserved as far as possible,
and that reptile exclusion fencing be installed around the perimeter of the site prior to
the commencement of development. These measures, together with new native
planting to enhance biodiversity are all provided within the scheme.

114. Given the need to remove and replant the existing frontage hedgerow west of the
proposed access to provide improved visibility splays, field dormice surveys were
carried out during 2011 and 2012. The surveys found no record of dormice and
accordingly no additional mitigation or European Protected Species licence is required
beyond the use of native hedgerow for the proposed realignment as detailed in the
application.

115. The County Council’s Biodiversity Projects Officer has no objection to the proposals
and is satisfied with the ecological information submitted (as noted in paragraph 42
above). She considers that a number of conditions should be imposed on any consent
requiring the applicant to undertake the relevant precautionary and mitigation measures
as set out in the various reports contained within the application. Furthermore, she
notes that the measures within the application proposed to offer biodiversity
enhancements at the site, including a green roof, meadow areas and native hedgerows,
are welcomed and accord with the principles of the NPPF which seek to encourage
opportunities to incorporate biodiversity in and around new developments. She also
considers that a biodiversity management plan should be required by condition to
secure the successful management of these features.

116. | consider that ecological matters have been fully addressed in respect of this
application and that the various mitigation and enhancement measures (as detailed in
the various supporting reports), together with an additional biodiversity management
plan could be reasonably secured by the use of planning conditions in this instance. |
therefore consider that the proposed development conforms to the general thrust of
development plan policy and the guidance contained in the NPPF which requires
developments to contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment by
minimising impacts on biodiversity and providing net gains in biodiversity where
possible.

Other Issues

117. The proposed school development has been designed from the outset to achieve a
minimum BREEAM rating of ‘Very Good’, as required by current DfE standards. South
East Plan Policy NRM11 requires buildings of more than 1000 sq. metres of non-
residential floorspace to secure a 10 percent reduction in CO2 emissions through the
use of sustainable and renewable energy technologies. Various sustainable design
technologies and techniques have been included as an inherent part of the design and
fabric of the building, including good air tightness, improved U-values and energy
efficient lighting design. Further passive measures such as natural ventilation, a green
roof and solar shading have also been included in the design proposals. The green roof
would deliver a number of sustainability benefits in addition to the wider landscape
benefits, including improved insulation and water retention. Various renewable energy
sources have been assessed for their suitability for the site and building and their
financial payback. Three types were selected by the applicant as being suitable and
viable, namely a Ground Source Heat Pump, Photovoltaic arrays and solar thermal hot
water. Calculations undertaken by the applicant at the design stage have demonstrated
that an annual CO2 reduction of at least 10 percent can be achieved by including a

Page 48 D1.40



item D1
New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

Ground Source Heat Pump (supporting approximately 50 percent of the heating load),
40 sq. metres of PV panels and 3 sq. metres of solar hot water heating. These
measures have all been incorporated into the building and site design and | am satisfied
that these measures should ensure that the development complies with South East
Plan Policy NRM11 as well as other broader renewable and sustainable policies
contained in the development plan and NPPF. | therefore recommend that such
measures are required by condition and that the final details of each of these
technologies are reserved out for later technical consideration.

118. Concerns have been raised about the maintenance costs associated with some of
the proposed building materials used to create the new Primary School. The palette of
materials chosen in this instance carefully respects the site’s sensitive landscape
setting, whilst ensuring that the chosen materials are not excessively expensive or
would lead to major maintenance costs in years to come. Most of the school building
(i.e. the ‘U’ shaped block) would be a fairly standard brick and block construction, faced
with through coloured render. Some elements of the main ‘U’ block elevations would be
treated with vertical hardwood timber boarding, whereas the main school hall would be
entirely clad with horizontal hardwood timber boarding. This hardwood timber boarding
would be chosen (as part of a final specification to be agreed with the County Planning
Authority) on the basis of its aesthetic appearance, as well as its maintenance and
durability properties. The roof of the main ‘U’ shaped classroom block would comprise a
green roof, which once seeded and fully established, should require little on-going
maintenance. The roof to the proposed school hall would be tile hung. Having
considered the principal building materials proposed in this instance, | do not consider
that any of these present an undue, significantly expensive or onerous maintenance
cost or requirement on the end user of the new Primary School.

119. The size of the proposed new Primary School has been raised by some objectors
who claim that the new school would not provide adequate teaching accommodation (as
required by DfE standards) and that no long-term solution for a school playing field is
proposed. The proposed school building has been designed to accommodate 210
pupils of statutory school age within seven classrooms. This is larger than the number
of pupils which the current school takes (approximately 170 pupils), thereby allowing for
some growth. The school has been designed to enable flexibility and shared use, a
requirement set for new school developments generally, such that the buildings and
external spaces could be used for out of hours lettings. It is rare for individual
classrooms spaces to be offered for lettings, however facilities such the school hall and
outdoor spaces would be the principle areas which could attract such use. The applicant
is satisfied that the provision of space within the new Primary School is in line with most
other new Primary Schools and would not expect to provide in excess of this,
particularly given the existing provision of community facilities (such as the Village Hall)
within the village that would complement the new school. | consider that the size of the
proposed new Primary School is adequate for the use proposed and is in line with other
new schools permitted within the county. Furthermore, | recommend that a condition be
imposed on any consent requiring details of community use to be submitted for later
consideration.

120. Reference has been made to the Glebe Field not being within the control of the
school and applicant. This is a historical situation which has continued without problem
for a number of years, on the basis that the current school provision which is split
between two sites, does not have its own playing field. The applicant intends that a
formal agreement would be entered into with the owners of the Glebe Field to ensure

Page 49 D1.41



item D1
New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

that the school has long-term use secured. | consider that this approach is acceptable
and would not raise objection to the proposals on this basis. | further note that having
consulted Sport England on the proposed development, it had no comment to make on
the proposals.

121. Concerns have been raised regarding the need for site lighting and the subsequent
urbanising impact that such lighting could have on the wider landscape. The application
proposed a low key approach to lighting, avoiding column lighting and using low level
bollards within the car park. Although no floodlighting is proposed for the Multi Use
Games Area a condition could be imposed stipulating that no such lighting should be
installed. | recommend that a condition be placed on any decision requiring details of
any external lighting to be submitted to the County Planning Authority for approval. As
part of this approval process, a mechanism could also be put in place to ensure that
lighting could be timer controlled such that it is switched off when not in use.

122. It has been claimed that the new school being proposed on the current choice of site
would experience worse climatic conditions than if it were located in a more sheltered
position, such as that of Site 1 (New Pond Road). Whilst | accept that the proposed site
may be more exposed to the elements, such as the prevailing wind, than other choices
of site (for example New Pond Road), | do not consider that such issues are overriding
to the decision making process in this instance. Furthermore, | consider that the careful
layout of buildings and the proposed landscaping of the site will ensure that such
climatic conditions do not cause any significant problems to the future operation of the
Primary School. To this effect | note that the external play space, including the
courtyard and MUGA, are tucked into the proposed built form, being located within the
‘U’ shaped main school building and between the new school buildings and the
boundary screening of the Glebe Field.

123. Comments have been made that the proposed new Primary School development
may lead to further ‘harmful development’ within the village. The point | would make
here is that the new Primary School is intended to meet a proven and long-established
case of need that the current school teaching accommodation is not fit for purpose. The
new Primary School would provide the village with a modern 1FE school which would
meet the needs of the existing village primary school and so arguably is not ‘harmful
development’. Any further development would of course need to be considered on its
own merits and in accordance with the relevant development plan policies either by the
Borough Council or County Council, whichever is the relevant Planning Authority. | do
not therefore consider that an objection on the grounds of potential future development
within the village could be sustained in this instance.

124. Concerns have been expressed regarding the proximity of the proposed new Primary
School to adjacent areas of farmland located to the south of the application site. It has
been claimed that the current farming practices (such as crop spraying) could pose a
number of unacceptable hazards on children attending the new school. This particular
issue is covered in the correspondence received from the National Farmers Union (see
paragraph 55), in which it states that the NFU does not object in principle to locating
schools or any other type of development next to farms, provided the farms are not then
subjected to enforcement action constraining their legitimate commercial operations
due to the proximity of the new development. | do not consider that locating a school
next to adjacent farmland presents any grounds for which a material planning objection
could be sustained. Instead, | am satisfied that any operations carried out by the
adjacent farmer could be reasonably be done so in a manner which would not unduly

Page 50 D1.42



item D1
New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

affect school operations, through the joint management and discussions between the
farmer and school management team (as necessary).

125. The issue of historic water runoff from the application site in a northerly direction
towards Rolvenden Road (and the residential properties beyond) has been raised as a
ground for objection to this application. As part of the supporting application documents
provided, the applicant has undertaken a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) as is required
to do under the guidance of the NPPF. The FRA has been independently assessed
both by the Environment Agency and by the County Council’s Sustainable Drainage
Engineer. The Environment Agency has no objection to the proposals noting that the
revised proposals (i.e. a reduction in the size of the car park) represent a significant
reduction in the hard surfaced area of the car park and an increase in natural draining
land cover. The County Council’'s Sustainable Drainage Engineer (in an advisory role at
present) does not raise objection to the proposals, noting that the applicant has
incorporated sustainable drainage measures such as drainage swales and a surface
water balancing pond. She has recommended that a detailed surface water drainage
scheme be provided for further consideration prior to the commencement of the
development. | am therefore satisfied that the issue of flooding has been adequately
considered in this instance, ensuring that potential flooding impacts arising from the
proposed development are safeguarded against both at the site and also the increased
flood risk elsewhere. Subject to the imposition of a condition requiring the submission of
a surface water drainage scheme prior to the commencement of construction works, |
am satisfied that the proposed development is acceptable in terms of flood risk.

Conclusion

126. The application proposes a replacement Primary School within the High Weald
AONB. Having considered the policy tests contained within the NPPF and other
Development Plan Policies, | am satisfied that there is a strong case of need for
replacing the existing school which is an important community facility, with modern, fit
for purpose teaching accommodation. | am also satisfied that it is not possible to
redevelop the existing Primary School site for the requirements of a new school owing
to its constrained size and the building’s Listed status. Following a search of
developable land within the village, it has been proven that there are no previously
developed sites available within the village ‘built confines’ which could be capable of
accommodating a new Primary School. Accordingly, | conclude that a new suitable site
would need to be located on the edge of the village, falling outside of the Limits of Built
Development. | also note that any new site for the replacement Primary School would
inevitably fall entirely within the High Weald AONB designation and developing a new
school outside of the AONB is neither practical nor possible in this instance, and that
there would undoubtedly be a negative impact on the community should this important
community facility not be retained within the village itself.

127.  Whilst | accept that there may be alternative site(s) within the village which could
potentially accommodate a new Primary School in principle, the acceptability of the
currently proposed site in planning terms has to be considered. | am satisfied that the
proposed development would not result in an unacceptable or overriding harm to the
character or appearance of the Benenden Conservation Area. | conclude that whilst
there would inevitably be a degree of visual change to each of the various Public Rights
of Way, | do not consider that their relatively limited re-alignment would unacceptably or
seriously damage the enjoyment of users of these footpaths, such that planning
permission should be refused on these grounds.

Page 51 D1.43



item D1
New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

128. In terms of the overall landscape impacts of the proposed development, | consider
that whilst there would be a degree of visual change in the locality, specifically in the
form of new built development outside the traditional village envelope, | do not consider
that the impact on the wider landscape to be so significant in this case to warrant the
refusal of planning permission. Whilst | accept that there may be other sites within the
village which may be less visually prominent, | conclude that the proposed school
building and footprint has been carefully designed to make the most of the site’s sloping
topography, whilst using a palette of materials which is wholly acceptable to the
sensitive landscape setting in which it would sit. | am satisfied that the development is
in the public interest and meets the exceptional circumstances test required for
development in the AONB as set out in the NPPF. | would therefore not raise a
landscape objection to the proposed location of the new Primary School within the
AONB in this instance.

129. Having taken account of the various highway concerns received as part of this
application and the professional and technical advice from KCC Highways and
Transportation, | am satisfied that subject to the imposition of conditions, which include
the provision of off-site traffic calming measures, the proposed new school access
would be safe for users of the new facility and for other highway users, including those
residential driveways which would be located opposite the new school access point.

130. Taking all matters into account which have been raised as part of the application
consultation and publicity process, | am satisfied that the proposed development
generally meets with the objectives of national planning policies, including Planning for
Schools Development, together with more specific development plan policy, is
sustainable, and that there are no overriding material planning considerations that mean
that planning permission should be refused.

Recommendation

131. | RECOMMEND that PLANNING PERMISSION BE GRANTED, SUBJECT TO
conditions, including conditions to cover the following aspects:

- 5 year implementation period;

- the development to be carried out in accordance with the permitted details;

- details of all external materials submitted for approval;

- submission of off-site traffic calming scheme measures and implementation prior to
the first occupation of the new school;

- submission of details of visibility splays (including details of hedgerow planting),
implementation prior to the first occupation of the new school and maintenance in
perpetuity thereafter; and

- details of car park surface treatment submitted for approval;

- vehicle and cycle parking (as proposed in the application) being provided prior to the
first occupation of the new school;

- details of all fencing (including specification and colour treatment) submitted for
approval;

- details of public right of way surface treatment(s) submitted for approval;

- details of site levels, finished floor levels and building heights submitted for
approval;



item D1
New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

- details of sustainable energy measures (including Ground Source Heat Pump, PV
and solar thermal hot water) be submitted and thereafter implemented prior to first
occupation;

- submission of School Travel Plan, its implementation and ongoing monitoring;

- submission of a Community Use Scheme (covering proposed hours use);

- details of reptile mitigation strategy to be submitted and thereafter implemented
prior to the removal of hedgerow;

- erection of reptile fencing prior to the commencement of construction activities;

- removal of vegetation to be carried out outside of the bird breeding season (or to be
supervised by a qualified ecologist);

- full implementation of ecological recommendations for precautionary mitigation
carried out prior to commencement and during the construction of development;

- submission of site biodiversity management plan to cover the green roof, meadow
areas and native hedgerows;

- submission of detailed landscape/vegetation planting and seeding scheme,
implementation within the first planting season following the completion of the
development and maintenance for a period of 5 years thereafter;

- tree protection details implemented (as detailed in the application) in accordance
with British Standard 5837:2005 (as amended);

- submission of lighting details for car park/general areas for approval;

- no external lighting to be installed on or around the Multi Use Games Area;

- submission of foul and surface water drainage schemes for approval;

- submission of a Code of Construction Practice (including measures such as wheel
cleaning equipment, parking and storage of materials during construction activities)
for approval,

- hours of construction (08:00 to 18:00 hours Monday to Friday and 08:00 to 13:00 on
Saturdays, with no working on Saturday afternoons, Sundays, Bank and Public
Holidays);

- measures to prevent mud and debris being tracked out onto the public highway;

- parking being made available within the site for construction operatives vehicles
during construction activities;

- removal of Permitted Development Rights.

132. | FURTHER RECOMMEND that the APPLICANT BE ADVISED, that notwithstanding
the conclusions that access and car parking arrangements considered as part of this
application are considered acceptable in planning and highway terms, there is merit in
the applicant exploring further with Benenden Village Hall Management Committee the
possibility of shared school access and parking arrangements within the Village Hall.
The applicant is therefore requested to initiate further discussions with Benenden
Village Hall Management Committee to consider again the options for such a possibility
and to inform the County Planning Authority of the outcome before any development is
commenced.

Case officer — Julian Moat 01622 696978

Background documents - See section heading

Page 53 D1.45



item D1
New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

APPENDIX 1

APPLICATION KCC/TW/0151/2012 — NEW PRIMARY SCHOOL WITH ASSOCIATED
HARDCOURT PLAY AREAS, ACCESS, PARKING AND LANDSCAPING AND RE-
PROFILING AND LANDSCAPING OF RESIDUAL LAND SOUTH OF ROLVENDEN ROAD,
BENENDEN

NOTES of a Planning Applications Committee Site Visit to the site of the proposed new
Primary School, Benenden on Thursday, 27 September 2012.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Mr J A Davies (Chairman), Mr C P Smith (Vice-Chairman), Mr C
Hibberd, Mr P J Homewood, Mr J F London, Mr S C Manion, Mr R F Manning, Mrs P A V
Stockell and Mr A T Willicombe.

OFFICERS: Mrs S Thompson, Mr J Crossley and Mr J Moat (Planning); Ms M Parker (KHS)
and Mr A Tait (Democratic Services).

THE APPLICANTS: Mr C Gabriel (KCC Capital Projects) with Mrs J Reich (Head Teacher),
Mr W Martin (Governor), Mr M Page (DHA Planning), Mr M Hanton (Clague, Landscape
Architect)

TUNBRIDGE WELLS BC: Ms A Raymond (Planning)
BENENDEN PC: Clir J Clarke and Clir G Reynolds

(1) The Chairman opened the visit by explaining that its purpose was for the Planning
Applications Committee Members to familiarise themselves with the site and the issues
involved in the application. He added that he would not be chairing the Committee meeting
when this application came forward as he had expressed his views on the subject.

(2) Mr Crossley introduced the application by saying that the current school was some
400 years old, located in the centre of Benenden village and not suitable for modern
learning. He pointed out the house which was used for Foundation Stage teaching and the
provision of hot meals as well as the memorial Hall, Village Hall and Church which were all
part of the split site. The village green and Glebe Playing Field were also used by the
School for outdoor activities.

(3) Mr Crossley went on to say that there had been no objections raised to the principle
of erecting a new school. There had, however, been considerable discussion about its
location and detailed layout. Twelve sites had been examined over a period of some 8
years. The Education Authority had eventually narrowed these down to two before applying
for the application site.

(4) Mr Crossley then explained that the Committee’s task was not to consider the
alternative site which some people preferred. Nor should it consider the need for a new
school, which was accepted by everyone. The key issues were the landscape impact of the
proposed development within the AONB in the context of local, regional and national
policies; the site layout including the design and appearance of the car park and the position
of the access point; as well as the impact on trees, wildlife, lighting, drainage, residential
amenity; and the impact on the local road network (including highway safety).

Page 54 D1.46



item D1
New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

(5) Members then walked to The Glebe Playing Field, the use of which was shared by
the School and the Village. Mrs J Reich (Head Teacher) said that Village use of The Glebe
Field consisted of activities such as dog walking and “Keep Fit” exercising. It belonged to
the Church, which was happy for the school pupils to continue to use it for sports.

(6) Mr Martin (School Governor) said that the School intended to formalise
arrangements for its use of the Glebe Field. Local events such as the Scouts’ bonfire would
not be affected in any way.

(7) Members then walked to the site of the proposed new school, where Mr Moat set
out the details of the proposals themselves.

(8) Mr Moat said that the application site lay approximately 250 metres east of the
existing school, adjacent to the Village Hall playing field and south of the main Cranbrook to
Tenterden Road (Rolvenden Road). It measured just over 2 hectares and was to the east of
the village church and next to the Glebe Field (open pasture). Land to the south was in open
agricultural use, whilst the village sports field was situated directly to the north. The
application site was bordered by native hedgerow, with tree cover lining the western
boundary with the Glebe Field and surrounding the sports field to the north. It had a sloping
topography, rising southwards from Rolvenden Road. There was currently no dedicated
vehicular access, however three Public Rights of Way crossed the site.

(9) Mr Moat went on to say that the application site was located wholly within the High
Weald Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). The Benenden Conservation Area
covered a large part of the village, including the village green, St George’s Church. There
was also a substantial number of Listed Buildings within the village.

(10)  The application was for a new one Form Entry (1FE) primary school with associated
facilities, together with a new dedicated vehicular access off Rolvenden Road. The
proposed building would be ‘cut-in’ to the existing slope, reducing the overall height of the
building in the landscape. The spoil taken from this ‘cut’ would be evenly distributed across
the residual land to the east, retaining a natural topography some 600-700 mm above the
existing field contours.

(11)  The front (north) of the site would be occupied by the proposed new vehicular
access onto Rolvenden Road and landscaped parking area. The parking area would be laid
out in rows, interspersed by grassed drainage swales and new planting, with the main
surface consisting of bonded gravel. A new pond was proposed for the roadside, which
would act as a balancing pond for the site drainage and provide an enhanced area of habitat
wildlife that could also be used by school staff as a teaching aid.

(12)  Mr Moat then said that the proposed site boundaries would generally be marked out
by new and existing hedgerow with interspersed tree planting. A mix of fencing design was
proposed between the hedgerows to provide the necessary level of security whilst reflecting
the site’s rural village context. The site fencing strategy would consist of a mix of 1.8m high
green weldmesh fence in the area around the school itself; a 1.2m high timber chestnut post
and rail fence between the school and village hall playing field boundary and a 1.2m high
timber post and wire fencing along the front boundary of the school with Rolvenden Road
and the boundary of the new car park with the pasture land beyond.

(13) No trees would be removed as part of the proposals. Proposed hard play areas
would be contained within the area occupied by the buildings. There would be direct access

Page 55 D1.47



item D1
New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

out to The Glebe Field, which would continue to be used as playing field for the school. The
outside area of the site would be laid out and treated to perform distinct functions, including:
a growing zone, outside study areas, a courtyard zone with an amphitheatre seating area,
an equipped play area, a Multi Use Games Area (MUGA) and a designated play area for
younger reception class pupils, landscaped to provide natural shading. The remaining land
to the east of the car park would be re-profiled as part of the wider ‘cut and fill' operations
proposed. The extent of the ‘cut’ proposed would follow detailed consideration of a number
of alternative levels and would balance the visual effect with the need to retain sensible
levels across the remainder of the site, so that a natural appearance would be retained, and
the need to export materials off site would be avoided.

(14)  Mr Moat continued by saying that adequate space would be retained on site to the
south west of the proposed school building, allowing for the potential future provision of a
nursery building (which does not form part of the application under consideration).

(15) The proposed building would be a ‘U’ shape in form and footprint, laid out around a
central courtyard and hard play area. The main ‘U’ shaped school structure would be single
storey, with the main teaching area exhibiting a modern design that utilised a mix of
traditional materials and more contemporary building techniques. These would include a
green roof with native species and sedum plug plants, sown with London seed mix
containing a variety of native species grasses and flowers.

(16)  The school hall had been designed to reflect the typical rural barn vernacular found
in the area, utilising a tiled pitch roof with timber boarded elevations. The hall has been
designed for assemblies and PE which would remove the School’s existing reliance upon
alternative accommodation provided by the village hall and Church.

(17)  Mr Moat then said that the main school building would be 5 metres high to the ridge
of the green roof, with a maximum ridge height of 103.5 metres AOD. The school hall would
be just under 8 metres high to the ridge, with a maximum ridge height of 106.5 metres AOD.
Mr Moat put these levels into context by saying that, in relation to existing ground contours
the new school hall would extend approximately 8 metres above existing levels, whilst the
main school building would extend between 3.5 metres and 3 metres above existing ground
levels.

(18)  Vehicular access would be directly from Rolvenden Road to the north east of the
site, with the access point and bellmouth being sited between the junctions with Leybourne
Dell and Pullington Cottages. Its design would enable it to benefit from visibility splays to the
south east and north west. The existing hedgerow alignment to the north west of the new
access would be amended and re-planted to ensure that these splays were secured from
the outset.

(19) Parking on site would be provided for 58 cars, with an additional dedicated drop-off
area for up to 7 cars aiding circulation and making the most efficient use of the space. This
provision has been designed by the applicant to exceed the applicable standards in the light
of the local rural context and likely demand. A service area to the west of the main hall
would include access through to the play area for occasional maintenance and emergency
vehicles.

(20)  Mr Moat then informed Members that a formal diversion of the Public Rights of Way
(PROWSs) crossing the site would be pursued if planning permission were granted.

Page 56 D1.48



item D1
New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

(21) The application had been accompanied by studies covering landscape and visual
impact, trees, transport, ecology, flooding, sustainability, educational need and community
involvement.

(22) Mr Moat then said that as a result of initial consultation responses, the applicants
had provided further/amended details of a scheme of off-site traffic calming measures for
the B2086 Rolvenden Road in the vicinity of the proposed school entrance as well as further
details of landscaping, site fencing; changes to the definitive PROW layout; and a summary
of other issues raised.

(23) Mr Moat said that the proposed traffic calming measures for Rolvenden Road aimed
to assist in lowering traffic speeds in the vicinity of the school access. The measures
included a Red ‘school zone’ entry surface shading east and west of the school access
which would incorporate the triangular school/parent child sign; edge and centre white
thermoplastic gateway features within the red entry surfacing, which would give the effect of
a gateway narrowing feature; white edge of carriageway line markings, giving a narrowing
impression of the carriageway running lanes, thereby slowing vehicle speeds; modifications
to the roadside 30mph repeater signs; and additional 30mph painted road marking roundels.
The applicant had identified (based on evidence of other such schemes) that these types of
scheme could reduce traffic speeds by between 3mph and 15mph.

(24) Mr Moat confirmed that the additional supporting information had been provided to the
Borough Council, Benenden Parish Council and other statutory consultees for comment. All
interest parties who wrote in expressing views on the application were notified of the further
information submitted and had been offered the opportunity for further comment.

(25)  Mr Moat then summarised the responses from consultees. Tunbridge Wells BC had
objected at officer level on the grounds of the prominence of the building and car parking
area, given the sensitive nature of the site and the access arrangements.

(26) Benenden PC had also objected on the grounds that there was an appropriate, less
sensitive site available (supported in a Village Poll) which meant that the case could not be
made that the need for the development outweighed the need to protect the AONB. The
Parish Council had also objected to the size and scale of the building, the lighting proposals,
road safety and the access point.

(27) KHS had raised no objection subject to the details of the visibility splays and other
traffic calming measures and recognition of the need to tie the proposed pedestrian access
with existing footways. They had also drawn attention to the need to update the Travel Plan
and for a Construction Management Plan to be approved prior to operations commencing on
site.

(28) The County Council’'s Landscape Advisor had advised that that the development was
generally acceptable and that the impact on the AONB would be negligible.

(29) The High Weald AONB Unit had objected on the grounds that the proposed
development would impact on the AONB and that it had not been demonstrated that the test
of exceptional circumstances had been made (particularly with regards to alternative ways
of meeting the need).

(30) KCC'’s Biodiversity Projects Officer had no objections subject to conditions.

Page 57 D1.49



item D1
New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

(31) No comment had been received from the KCC PROW Officer, the KCC
Archaeological Officer, Sport England and the Kent Fire and Rescue Service. The KCC
Sustainable Drainage Engineer and The Ramblers had commented but had not objected.
These comments would be taken into account.

(32) CPRE did not consider that the site was suitable as it would be on a hill and
detrimental to the character of the AONB by virtue of its prominence. This included the
lighting arrangements which would increase the visibility spread of the built-up area.

(33)  Mr Moat then said that 45 letters of objection had been received. These had raised
issues including the sensitivity of the site (AONB); the urbanisation of the rural Weald by its
construction on the Ridge/Pasture site; the greater suitability of the alternative location; road
safety; and the access arrangements.

(34) Letters of support had been received from 150 local residents.

(35) Mr Moat then referred to representations from organisations. Benenden Village Hall
Management Committee (on behalf of the Harmsworth Charitable Trust) had raised
concerns that the proposed parking arrangements were too limited and would result in
parents using the Village Hall car park as an overflow facility. The Open Spaces Society
had strongly objected on grounds of site sensitivity and had raised concerns about the
proposed PROW diversions. The National Farmer's Union did not object on principle
providing that the neighbouring farms were not subjected to enforcement action constraining
their legitimate commercial operations due to the proximity of the new development.

(36) Mr Moat concluded his presentation by setting out the determining issues. These
were the principle of development of a new school within the AONB outside the built
confines of the village; the impact of the development proposals on the Benenden
Conservation Area, nearby Listed Buildings and the PROWs; the visual and other impacts
of the proposals on the character of the wider landscape; the impact of the development
proposals on the local road network, highway safety and the acceptability of off-road vehicle
parking provisions; residential amenity considerations; ecological considerations; and any
other issues.

37) Ms Raymond (Tunbridge Wells BC) said that the Borough Council would be
reviewing its position once the additional information requested had been received. (Mr
Moat undertook to provide this information to both the Borough and the Parish.)

(38) Ms Parker (KHS) said that speeds along Rolvenden Road were generally higher than
30 mph. The proposed traffic calming measures would lead to a reduction in speeds, whilst
the signage (when properly set up) would indicate to drivers that they were approaching the
School.

(39) Mr Page (DHA Planning) asked the Committee to bear in mind the provisions of the
National Planning Policy Framework in respect of AONBs. This set out that permission
should be granted if it could be demonstrated that any substantial harm or loss was
necessary to achieve substantial public benefits that outweighed that harm or loss. It was
also ministerial policy that the information that should be required by those determining the
application should be proportionate to the nature of the application itself.

(40) Mrs Reich (Head Teacher) said that three alternative access points had been
considered. The School Governors had preferred the shared access option. The access

Page 58 D1.50



item D1
New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land
South of Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook - TW/12/1442
(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

point set out in the application had been chosen as a result of consultation with Benenden
PC.

(41)  Mr Manning explained that although he was the Local Member, he was also a
Member of the Planning Applications Committee and had maintained an open mind
throughout on the planning merits of the proposal. He said that he did not believe that there
should be two large car parks in Benenden and asked why Benenden PC had opposed
them being amalgamated.

(42) CliIr Clarke from Benenden PC replied to Mr Manning by saying that the reason for
the Parish Council’s stance on this matter was that they considered that this would lead to
an unacceptable expansion of the car park and the loss of part of the football pitch.

(43) Mr Martin (Governor) confirmed that the contractors would use the proposed access
when working on the site.

(44) Mr Moat responded to a question from Mr Willicombe by saying that the reason the
application did not propose a separate entrance and exit was that there were already two
other access points onto Rolvenden Road on the opposite site of the road to the application
site and that the new school access had been designed to be located between these two
road junctions. Ms Parker added that it was also necessary to have a separate vehicle and
pedestrian access point as this would ensure that pedestrians and vehicles were kept apart
from one another.

(45) ClIr Reynolds (Benenden PC) said that the Parish Council was split over the
application. He said that there was huge support for the application in the Village and that he
believed there would be scope to negotiate with the Harmsworth Charitable Trust over the
car park.

(46) CliIr Clarke said he was opposed to the application because of its detrimental impact
on the village and the countryside. He believed that it would harm the High Weald AONB.

(47) Mr M Hatton (Clague) showed members a number of montages giving the view of
the proposed development and landscaping from various angles. The Chairman asked for
these to be displayed in the Council Chamber at the determining Committee meeting.

(48) Members walked to the northern part of the site where they were shown the location
of the proposed car park and new vehicular access. They then walked along Rolvenden
Road in an easterly direction in order to observe the proximity of the site to the nearest
properties as well as the view for drivers approaching the site from that direction.

(49) The Chairman thanked everyone for attending. The notes of the visit would be
appended to the report to the determining meeting of the Committee.

Page 59 D1.51



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land

South of Rolvenden Road,

(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

TW/12/1442

Cranbrook

Benenden,

APPENDIX 2

Views of Benenden Parish Council

Benenden Parish Council Letter dated 6 September 2012

setot[od Suruueld DML 0}
Arenuoo aq pinom eore adeospuey [eroods ST} UMYIAM [00Y0S € SUIP[ING ISAOMOY [00YOS MIU
e 10§ pasu Sutssaxd oy poddns Ang [rounoy) ysueJ uspuoudg et posiseyduwo 9q pnoys if

"UOTIRIYIS JOPLLIOD B SN 0} PAOIOJ UOYM J09JJ0 QAIOLISAI € dALY ued pue joedwr
OATIE3OU B SBY ST Tyl MOWY SIaSN [1ed]oo,] "IOYI0 Sy} U0 0FPoy WIG'| MOUE PUB IPIS JUO
uo 98pay wig' | Junstxe oy Jurary Sze MOUd JO 1ed sMOYs 9IS sy} 10§ swayds adesspue|
S ‘e 10J anfeA Ajuswe oyl Jo yonur Kese oye) [[Im o1oy SUIp[INg pue SIS Y} SSOI0
1ey) syredioog o1qnd ¢ aTe 1YL, “GNOV [NJ1INESq € UI SY[EM OIUS0S AUt dy} Jo 93ejueApe
a3e} 03 “oBeqpiA oy Sunisia sdnoid pue ajdoad [eoo] £q pasn [[om A10A st oy pasodord oy,

*o8e[1A WSI] 10918 OU © ST USPUAUAY JEY} PIJOU
9q pmoys 11 ‘aus jusuriold SIy) uo SJQISIA 2q [IM Suroud) pue SIYSI SY) VANOAYS 2q 0}
‘pareaou0d ST 3UIp[Mq S} JI USAF "LIGOUOD I0J SSNEO OS[e a1t Jurouof AJLmnods pue Sunysr]

RSILYN
HS YHM UonB)nsuod 1$988ng [BMAUI PUB UONESNSOAUI OAISUIXO POSU [[IM PUB PEOI
Jo yoens ooy syl 3uoe d[i3ei] A[OWLNXD oIk SUTRIP O], "Bale ST} JO oFeurerp [eiousd
pue IojeM 9dBJINS JO [BSOASIP aImny oY) YIM TSR} 9q 0) SPASU ased 1ealrr) ‘sAemysi
Juoy 01 paprodax Apremn3oar st ansst urpooyy jussexd oy, *o8eyia oy Jo eaxe uIA] Mo[ SI)
ur wajqoxd poopy Sunstxo oy ajeariSde [ yred Jeo o1y 01 sduLHUD A1) Je puod pesodord
o Sunig “Surpooyy reyndar 0) suoxd Apeafe st Jey) voIe Ue Ul payrs st yed 1eo pasodoid oy,

"OWAYOS
oy JO s[1e1p [euy ot uo sAemydiy 1uey] s juowafesus jo Ayunpioddo ayp enfea pinom
TIouno) ysued Yy, eouenus pasodord oy je moredpay pue sierds AIqIsiA Jo sSurmeip
PaTIEIdp papraoid 10U A1UNOO Y UT SIYIS [LINT JR[IUIS JOYI0 18 USAq SABY ASY) QALNILFO MOY
Aes 10u op K9y Inq JuowUBITEaT Mo1aTpay pue semsesw Furmreo oyyen pesodord ayp jo sn
paurour quesijdde ay) WOy PoAISddI [Ty 1] 10eo] AI0SIAPY olJel], Surpnjour Juewnoop
UONBUWLIOJUI [BUOLIPPE SUJ "Yied Ie) [[BH 93e[IA OYJ pue peoy ISIUYYEA ‘BSnoi
orqng [ing 9y, 1e syutod gourd yim sdoys oy opisino sied paspred Sunenodou uonsafuod
9y} 9589 J0U puB WS[qoid OLJel) SNOLIS B ASNEO P[Nod a)Is sy} 03 douenuo pesodoid oyj
08 ‘UdsID) 9y, punose pue 93e[[1A 3y} ul uonsaSuoo sesnes 011s J00Yds Junsixe oyl woly dn
Bupyord pue jyo Surddoa( 'sdojs snq 0m] pue SKeMIALIP ONSOWIOP ‘GouIIuS [00yds pasodoid
oYy ousoddo so1LIss BUISNOY 0) SIOUBNUS 0M} OIB 2ISYJ, J08JJ0 NI SEY Surwes oyger)
BUnSIXd YoIyMm U0 ‘9807 dY) ‘PrOI JO Yo1omS ASnq pue jsej & wolf SuleIus 8q SI0JOIOY)
pInom oyger], i ydwge oyl unpim isnf ‘puaq purjq & uo paosed usdq seY 2UBIUS YT,

'SJURAS Lyrunurwod paysijqeise Suoy ayy o} sordde oures
ay} pue s oY) uo 2oed e} [[IM sowreS wWLs) Jer) uesw Jou saop sny jng JuroS-uo are
SUOISSNOSIP [e39] 18y} purIsIopun oA\ ‘DD JO dIYsIouMO 1) UT JOU ST ST} g POUOTUSU
u2dq sey PRk 2q9[0) Y, 1S o) uo pake|d oq o sowreS wres) 0§ uorsiAcid ou sI oIy,

‘aatsuadxo L[qrssod
pue AIojoejspesun uoneSHIW Iopusl ABWI pue PajewNSOIOpUN Uedq sty joedum [ensia
oy 1ey; steadde 3] 'SNONProSp S8 [[e INg ‘0S SSO o [[IM T JBO] UL 2JE $9a1) JUIPUNOLInS
oy} o[ym pue jusurwoid £19A pue Jool oy} Jo o3pu oy 0) W ST [[ey 9JAls ureq oyJ,

‘odeospuey oY) ur uoISNIUL
U aq p[noM 31 SUNITIIPE SNy “9[0Y WG'Z € UT USPPIY o 0} SI J9s]I SUIP[Iiq [007ds Sy,

*BOTY UOTBAIOSUO))
oYy 0} judwdorpasp oy Jo Ayumxord oyy o) UsAIS ST uonuow oN oedun oY) ejeSnIw
0} S110JJ9 s1ouurR|[d 9} idsap 9[qIsTA 2q [[ns [ pasodoid yred 1es pue Surpring oy, yed
180 pasodoxd oy Jo 9z1s o1) pue uoneoo] Jaurold sIT Jo oA £q GNOV U JO I0)0BIBYD
a1 uo joedw ojqeidooorun Uk SABY PINOM pue 1oad10j adeospue| oy dJueyo (1M IS
sty uo Bupring -apis£nunoo uado ur aSeqyia oy 0} yoeoxdde oy uo “yurod [qrsIA Jseydiy
o) 18 93pLL B U0 ‘OFB[[IA 9y JO BAIR dATISUSS € Ul paoe[d usaq sey Surpymg pasodord oy,
[odeospue] Jein1 s ,ySnorog ot soueyue pue dAsesard 03 s30s YOIyM - +J0)] 0107 A8orens
2100 DEM.L pue [edeospuer femns oy Surospye oD [oxuod Juswdo[aAa(] -SZNA] 9007
ue[d 182077 DML O} 0} ATenuoo ST a)Is SIy) Uo Surpfng °oseo oy} j0u sem STy} A[es[)
‘3]qB[lBAR SBM S)IS SANBUIS)[R OU JBY) UMOUS oq 0} 2AeY pPjnom 31 pasooid o} spnyrudew
s Jo Juewdoraasp B 10, *oys uondooxs ue J0u ST SNy Juowdo[eAs(] PlIg 0} SHWIT Y}
SpISINO ST pue Ajneag JeimnjeN Surpueising Jo eary DML oY) UM ST a3pry / amised oy,

*9)1s patiayaid J1oy) se a3pry/aImsed oY ], — g8 OHS 9S00 DI JOASMOL] "PIEYdI)
9y, — | NS JO INOABY uT Arofeur © a10m ST JO SYNSAI oY, DML UMM uornounfuod ug
[unoy) ystred a1 £q pesiuedio ‘[od ysiied oty ySnoxy) eowjd ode) PIp UOT)EHNSUOD I[N

‘€ 0] S9J0A G £q Paj0dfoI SBM J1 PUB SJUSITHOD
S[ouno) ysued &gy 105 DO £q paprugns uoneordde Suruuerd ayy jioddns jou prnoo
9M ISASMOL] 'JOOYDS MU & JO JNOARJ UI Z[(Z SUn[ §] UO A[SNOWIUEUN PIJOA pUB [0OYOS
Arewnzd o3e[IA Sumsixe oy} Jo SSUIWOOMOYS OUL JO SIBME SI [IOUNO)) YSLIE] USPUSUOE

170dal pasiaal A[[nJ Ino pury aseayq
"210T Amf €z uo proy Suneawr orqnd D)3 oY1 Surmofjo] osuodsor posIAdl & JTwqnsal pue
10T dunf g7 payep SIUSUWILIOD JISU) MRIPYIM O} PAAJOSSI [IOUNO)) YSLIEJ USPUSUS ‘7107
AInf 91 uo Sunesur [rounoy) [[h] Y Je SuIsIApe ‘7107 AL 6] Porep [emwe Aul 0} JSyun{

NP LINL ‘Uapusuag ‘peoy] UIPUIA[OY JO YINOS Puery ‘uOLEd0]

SBurpping jooyds Arewrxd mau Jo uondaay qesodog

TI0T/ISTO/M L/DD — woneonddy Suruuerg

JROJA IAL Tea(]

T10T Toquivydeg 9 XXT vTHA U]
QUOISPIBIA

TeH Ao

ASNO BI0IAU]

I00[] 3SI1]

dnoup) suoneor(ddy Suruued
003

JROJN WeIIng N

HAP LINL yuadf WO ISONTE AP UIPUIUWIPLIID
Yooaquer)) ‘uspusudg 1LEOPZ 08STO
1IBH 93B[[IA UopuduAg UBAI[[NS Auuogy
-3y JO-AIFUNEINEC ) - D

NAANINTLI 4O TIONNOD HSIIVd

D1.52

Page 60



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land

South of Rolvenden Road,

(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

- TW/12/1442

Cranbrook

Benenden,

NIBTD) YSLIe uspusueg
UBAI[[NG Auuog

KJo100Urg SINO X

*3)IS QAIBUIS)[B UB PAIOPISU0O DI Ji ST urefe 1013030}
a3e[q1A o BurSuriq Jo soueyd AJU0 Sy 1B} S[99F [IUNOY) YSLIEJ USpUSUSg Jo Ajofewr oy,

‘TI0d YstEq % ‘UONLI00SSY sIs[quey ‘A1e100g sasedg wad( ‘TAdD WU ANOV Pl
ySty ‘w0 odeospueT DEML Odd DAV JEMI Wol sosuodsor uonoalqo ym
uorurdo orqnd api pererousd sey uoneordde sy, “poseasour sey uerd ay) Jo swsoddo pur
siayioddns oy usem)aq uorsuy oty woneordde Sutuuerd DO oyl Jo uoneonqnd oY) SOUTS

‘uoreorjdde Sutuuerd
sy o3 uoprsoddo o SBurYD 0) UOSEAI OU SN UIAIS AUIELISO SEY PUB SN 0} SN PayI|
Jousoq seq $(6//HIN TUSWNS0P SUIPN[OUT D) WOLJ PIAIS0AT HONEULIOFUI [EUOTIPPE oY ]

D1.53

Page 61



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land

- TW/12/1442

Cranbrook

Benenden,

South of Rolvenden Road,

(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

Benenden Parish Council Letter dated 20 November 2012

'SISIA4D Aq pasn aq jou

PINOYS 9ALIP 3y} Ay U0sEaI OU ST 210y} “refnoned U “JjBws are sanssy Ajoyes Aue Suroq auop
30 pooynayy 3y pue Fuwaow Mofs S1 ‘fewruiw st aFesn 9[9reA Jo Junowre ayy, “sopasdosd
£ SOAISS [OIYM OALID Pasn I © SI 190N OYJ WIOJ SS9008 uetnsopad pasodosd oyj,
$§300Y APA) 7 weLsIPAg

‘SoInseaur

Bunupes oygen Joy enusjod oy Jnoqe ey i se0p ‘peoy puog MoN O} Sulugjelr usym
“aded sy u1 Jurod ou 3y “pajosar aq Apises aymb pynoo soan SuiSuvyoso Aq posnes wojqoad
Aue pue uone1adSexo ss0.3 € s sIy, ‘sown (e e Yrep oymb s1 | oyg ‘preqoiQ ot o) sseoow
pasodoxd jo jurod oyp 18 yep pue SAOIAA JO paads oy pue uonoisas poods [euoyeu o
Jo asnuasq swojqoad renusjod vy “s3uny 1oyio sFuowre sopels 3 podax sy Jo uonoos sIyy Uy
S5V IAPIYIA

peoy puog MmaN

$SI0DY UGLSIPI 7 I[ONAA
LIOJSNVAL VHA

*§50001d UONOS[AS Y UI ME[J SHOLISS © 3q 0} UOISSIWIO §IY} IOPISUOD
2M "Op 03 djqeun u3dq Y IM YOIYM SFus]jeYd 0) uado oxe “9AdIAq M 51500 paseasour oy
Fukgnsn swoyt oy, g oNg A | g 10y uonismboe puw| Fuipnjour s)s00 vonONYSUIOD 1iny oyp.
UIMOYS ¥30q JOASU Sey [[DUN0)) YSHIBg UPUSUIE "PIJSI] WSY [enpIAIpul yoes o) pamqrme s)s00
U MOYS J0U S30p IS8T SIYL'Z[1°C Ul PAISI] Swolt Sy AQq paynsnf sem sy "00-000°0£9% 3o
J3pI0 A} UY 8q pInom ‘1 g prego() sy Suidogoasp 10J S}JS0 BYXS 3 JEY) SEM UOISH{ONOD
9y, "ssa001d uonasjes os oYy Jo wed se goz ur paredord Apuaredde arom suosuedwos 1500

UONINIISUOY) TT°T vARY

"oadsal st up Ayrunuiwos a3 0} Jysusq
Aue Suioq 210t 908 210J010Y) JOU O B sjreq Supsixa ayy Jo Anfiqera sy vo oedun fm
SN0 JO Joquiny oy uy aseasous Auy “sjjey pooS soxq) sAey o) ysied oy UYL 2)BUNLIOY I8 O\

Arummmo) oy 0} syyoug [T vreg

“ydesBered snp ur swrepo oy woddns 0y 9OUIPIAS OU ST
I3 310501 PUE ‘T AYS PIBYIIQ) oY Jo Ayisioarporg 7 A30[0og au Jo sAoams Pajreiop oN

Aysaoatporg pue A30j00y 9°7 vaeg

*op 0} poxmbax
a1e Koy YoM ‘gGNOY 9t 109103d 0} Bufrey axe [oUN0) Anoy) sy pue [1ounoy) yEnolog o
q1oq Je1} 0Ad1[aq A\ “odesspue] Surpunosms ayy aaoxdwr pue soueyus jou [TtM ) ‘eore sip
ur Bugpjing Aue jo juowr jempeyYore pouIre[o ot jeym Jopeur ou uoturdo ano uy “adeospuey
[ensiA oy o3ueyo [jm ‘g opg ‘eimiseg oy uo Suipjing ey seSpapmouyoe Jy ysued ap
ut jutod 3soyBry oy Ajpeniia uo st olis uesoyd oy 1203 £uS )1 S0P QUGYMON “Ameag [eImEN
Suwipueising Jo vory ue wr jooyos mou e Surpying jo joedun oyy gum syesp ydeiered SIYL

GNOV PUnols sanssj p*z vaeg

:sydesdeied Surmopjoj oy uo JuswmOd
sim om JoAdMOH “Jaded si uo Juowios jurod Aq yurod PAIIEIOP € INO POLLIED JOU OABY O

T 2N 1940 § OIS Jo 20107
ONINNV1d VHA

J}ounoy) ysyreq uspususgy
vBuIRy)
NIV AIRIAT STIAT

AJo1s0uIs SINO &

"PRYSEHE S18 SJUSWIOD Jn0 $53001d UORIS|S
s Y1 uo odsues]Buruuely VHQ pue sopg uojueH YW woy sioded oty FuipreSoy

sq1edjo0) pajosjge s JO UOISIGATP oY} UO OYRUI 0 JUSWIWOD ou XN YN
sypedyooy -z

‘u0213
oBef[iA ay3 30 s33pa oy} Jo uoIS0IS [EnprIS oY} pua pue o8e[[IA o) U UONSAFU0D LI} SITOIGO
Ajrep 201m3 oY) Keme oy pjnom pue SOBI[IOR) PAUIEIN0D J1oS AARY PINOM [OOYDS MU ST} JeT)
adoy 1o uaaq pey ¥y oSeyia oy uy a1aymasio Fupjred s1eo dJow 10 ] 5q M 219y} ySnoyppe
adeospue; sy wo yoedwnr [eyusunyOp s3] ApySs ueow seop dyed 1eo oy uy uononpar oy,

yeg re) °f
ISMO[]0J SB JuoWIoo om syjediooy

pue yjied 120 oy 0} predor M sn 0) JuSs wOREULIOYM TeuonIppe o JO ‘7107 Joquisydog
9 J0 104 0} Jaya] Jno ux 30 Jos sk surewar uoeodde SIY} 0} uoNDR[GO Mo Jo siseq oy,

NQ¥ LINI, ‘uspususg ‘peoy uopuasjoy jo ynos puery suopEIeY
Suiping [ooyas Liewud mou ¢ Jo uondaay :pesodoug
TT0Y/ISTO/MI/DDM ~ wonesiddy Suyuaerg

1RO I Jea(]
C10T 12qUBAON __bN ’

pO.CRARCINELS) |
SUOISPIBIN

[IeH Ayunop)

= S OSNOH BIOIAY]
B 100[ 35317
. Al dnoip) suoreorddy Suuve)g

) &0 J;//Aw i A JEOA uBIAr JA

i
3
%

¢

|
FApLINLWOY |
Noosquer) ‘uopusudg T
IIeH 23eIA uspuauag

230 Aunwwo)

 1LE0VZ 08STO
1IPg waey
R )

NAANANTE 40 TIDNNOD HSIIVd

“ waNLZ

D1.54

Page 62



item D1

- TW/12/1442

Cranbrook

Benenden,

D1.55

Page 63

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land

South of Rolvenden Road,

(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

5} pue[sseisd j[ey d JO SSO] ® UT JINS3I PJNOM SWOYDS SN,
2301114 2441 J0 243420 213 wof omp pans U22q 2avYy pup U2S AL
Jou a4 $33pJpa 1D20] Wy SjOOYIS FNg Amau Jsow Kupoy pup o Ppaaouw aavy souty paugno sua)qoad ayp suoo.140
‘s pasodo.d oy sp 28vjpa 2y1 fo 241100 2yt wosf 20upistp auws ayy Kpapwuirxosddo ‘uopurdo ano uz pnod sayionf su pup ans ayg fo modvy U} O] UOHDIIPISUOD UYL
S2° o1 pavyod() 2y ‘ov dn Jjing ayt fo Aituauxa 1sam ymos ayj uo st g “a8oppa ) .
) fo 102y 1 up Jou S1 g 2N ‘2nISDF Y ‘Porwss Appuonbay st wym or &wauor ‘A 94} UL PISSISSE SEM )1 UDYM,
o) a1y 0) paledwios Juswdo[oadp 0 S SIYY JO ANARISUSS oYy saseasou; A[qepasur
*0Be[[1A 91 JO AMIONYS [B100S UeqIN pur Anpqi8a] ueqin o MOU SIGT, "MEIS SIOMAIF JO PUBIPOOM MEYS pue [[Ay3 oy jo Jopereys Suons oy
JO uoNRIOLIANIP oY) W NSO [JIM | S UO PaEI0] JI UOKBIOOSSE JO 3or] puw aFefjiA 30I0JUIAI 0} USIS 3 ULD YOIYM [PUB[POOM SNORPIOSP SINBUI [WAS PZITeIngeu] saInjeay
43 JO UIY 3t} 38 SN SUIP[Ing [00YDS JUSLIND SUY, “USAS AES[D 9q PUB WLOY ueqm o) adeospue| penjea pue JuBOYIUTIS JO SSO] Ay} UT JNSST PINOM IS ST JO juswdojordp oYy,
Jo Aqoresony ay) ut snyels ySry v oAey pnom AfjeonoIsty pue Buipying stjqnd uepoduy ’ o
ue SI [00Uos Sy, -9Te[[IA O} JO JXOJUOD Y} UI UGS 9q J0U pue ‘WOl payorIep oq ‘Pow3ynu 2q Aj1sva ALaof
1A\ JOOYOS 343 YEtf} UESH S0P 31 JOASMOH “BaIE UOHBAISSTOD ST} U0 Joedun ojqeaonou Pnod pasivd uaaq aavy 1oy suutod aaywSou ayi fo awios 1y uoturdo ayg fo 2.0 am E._E
oy u Subnsar ops oy Jo Ampunoq WIHINOS oy Suope sonpadord Supsrxo UOHDAIPISUOD L2414 01 uado St 2115 s Jo modv] pup uBisop oy ‘o omood ou
Punjoq UappIY AJjensia pue Jeong S, oy} woy payeredos Ajpeorskyd St as ayg, 1t SDY pup pADY2I0 UMOLZIIA0 PISASIP dif} SI OF pasiafol yaud pajuvyd djasuap ay
‘a31s 2y 3urjoopado satsadosd “UIBWION PINOM 1S 91} ojux djnox wersopad pajeduoe smp
2y uo tondu ponsia upoyfiuSis v awy [ yiod up> pup 2oup4ud pasodoad ayj pue paxy st sang A, 01 Juipjing 9y jo Ayrrxoad ay asopexayy pue Yoedur _u=w_>
8 S ‘24D 241 U0 250Y1 UDY) 421248 OU 2q plnom 1vduit AU pUp [oNSIA 2y ] SZIWIUIW 353q 0} Payeooy s Suipjing oyy ‘qdq oy o1 Furpiosdse “royuny u&mu_w_.ma
2q ues Jnofe] ay) jo uBIsap oy} YBNOYI[Y "SIUO [ENIOE Jou J1 soussI AJES panioorad aaeyy
"SUOIIEIO] SS300B MU JIf} PUNOIR PUE YIN0S oY} PInOM SIY, JUSWHOIAUS pajure[d [osusp  urgyiam 3os aq o} sieadde pwe Suoy st [qdQ
0} sappadoud jusoefpe oy o spoedur Ajuoure pue [ensiA Juesifusis oq pinom do1oYyy, 01 oy wo [esodoxd oY) uo umoys se] souenus Suipfng sy o} oys oy oyur JOYUNY OMOIdY], ‘¢
“OHS Sty uo sypwdioof 40 &y Jo sSSP oyqn g ou a4v 2oy Y1 wLafiuod a Paw4233vx2 A2l ‘aaaifaq om ‘a4v pviap
MO Ul N0 JaS SOUMMIUIIP Y[ “oWno0U SI ,, ADMIALP O YOI2UIS MOLIDU YDD D, SD
AdU 3502 puv yy10u Y1 01 SA3jwa 14Y3 a7 ss0.00 2q1ssod 2.0 smata 24LIp 341 2914050p O panuLt] aq 01 Aax1] St [00YIS 01 SuryPM ULPIIYD fo AquINU Y]
JuDISIp 240Ul JWOS Inq ‘HINOS 2Yj 0} UOLDIIBIA Aq PaUTLINOD lom 51 IS DY, . IS
iy 400 Aoy fo sySRy onqnd ou puv aps gy omr smot papuy] a4p 249yJ, 6 “Kea s5300% ey} yo sojoeseyd [mbuen pue syeard Sunsixe
Ay U1 vopeIoNSlop © Ul Sunynsal sanxedoid Funsixo o} swey oy dn wado E:o.o pue .@r&
“suoyptjdu 1502 40 suia1qoad tofbu &up asod j0u op sanbpuyoay Ayred parg uo Ajjenuerod ‘soar) pue smoseBpay unsixe Jo ssof ay) ur Jnsal Aewr siyp pue
Bupying puv Juvid wispow wyp pasiapo u22q 240y oM ‘UdAIMOY dapoadsiad ss000e uelnsoped Arewiad  se posn aq o3 st 31 31 pammbor oq M wiak yuowoAoxdur
Bupping v wodf papr uvyy ssa) puv doass st uwaisy a1 oYy a3pajmoyor 2y e Apoyy s1 91 "soradoid Jo Joq) v Aq §50908 T y T4oA JOf m»m._ SI pUB JOUIOD E:E
B M Opim wie Alajerxoidde je KemoAlIp JO [0JO)S MOLIBU YIEp B SI STYL, .hm>6>_.€
‘uondo jnoke| pasodoid g4 oy uo umoys 10 Yjorx) $53008 Fupsixe ue Fuoje Joang Ay, 3Jo paxmbai s1 ssa0or uesopad moUuy g
UBH JUEDYIUTIS 210W SJqUIOPISUOD 9 ABuT oYis ST Jo dxmeu dooys o ‘s3nsst ssoa08 i ’ ’
HAM PIUIGUIOS YOTYMm pue ‘seore UOY d jo01 payer pue uoneleSaA A1epunoq Sugpvaysiu
amewr Sunsixe Aq paurensuod aq [im Jurperd-ax JO Juelxa JYJ, '|9A9] AjeAnejer 2D AOJODOYI 2UD] [odnd Y] uO fovdut, pmom oyl 2oupLud Y1 wEm.Ew.E
3q 03 paoul [im Yolym saganrd spods pue Jupised o Jo sesurdxs s31e[ pue Bumpying sanssy adpaspuv] Auy “1snyajdvis o1 uy d P ISinypung ‘uopuasjoy &3..\,\. anoa
® 3)1s 0} Asessaoou Suporno) 1o Fuppyoad-ax puey JuBoRIUSIS ur ynsex M ST Surio) utow 241 131 PrO.L g v 0 10y} 40m 240 11 Sutsn Yoy fo yumoutd ay1 pun ypim ot mq
adeospuey uy ‘sonsst ss300e pug Juowdojersp onewsiqoid oymer s ops dooys o, ‘? oL ) v papuBisop st iy “oun] Agunod v sp paqridsap djapp.moovut st ppoy ?Sm MaN
‘adpaspuv) yspnd ‘peox
U} fo 4100404 2y o Jovduy 11243 v 241y I Jfiesn Buiping jooyos ayp pu 91} JO SPIS WIGISES S} 0} SI21) AINJEUL JO JaqUInU € puw safIoA pue moedpoy Junsixs
110y 100Y3s mau ayy ‘Supyod avo ayg Suipnjous ‘g ayg ‘aunisog ayp fo awdopanap ay | Jo y3ua| ojqeiopisucd v Jo [ofeurep 1o] sso| au Ul nsal os[e pur POy puogd BmZ. Jo
uoneZIteqINqnS SUDNSAI J0}OBIRYD ouw] [eins Fursixs oy uo joudur [[1m Pue| Kemyaiy
"PUB[POOM JUSLOUE MBS SISMAIE JUSOBIPE OY) JO JE) pUE JR)0RIBYD 10 pouMO UIPIM J[qeASIYOR oq Jou Aeul YOI ‘SYIoM AemySiy Aessooou o JO Jnsax
adeospur; Buysixs sqy uo joedu JueoyuSIs © oAwy 14 opisAnunoo Sunsixo Jo sore SYL "sean) axmpew pue sa3pay Aq safps sI pue sue] Anunoo & pajeudissp st peos oyl
apw e Jaao s3uipiing pue spjay Suikerd ‘Buppred eo ‘SPROI $S000B ‘SOSSO00E MON ‘L *[pSusj wozz Apyewrxordde] Joang 2y, 03 ‘pecy puog MoN Jo opis woIses oy Suope
‘aauenuo oy} woy yredioof opim uigg mou  pue Aejds AIqIsia WGz X W'z X WG[g
'8 ons “aamisod 2y 01 Ajponba satddo ruauuos suyp © 9pNjoul PINOM SIYJ, "PEOY PUO MON JJO PaJEaId 9q O} POSU PINIOM SSOO0E MOB '  °f
'S991) M0133pay sonss| adeospue Aoy
aampews o316 pue smoioBpay Sunsrxs awos Jo ssof Ay ux Jynsar pInom swsyds sy, 9 [PreqauQ 9y 1] § 9IS uo sajop uSisaqg
OIdNLS NOLNVH SUVIN

8 21 ‘oS dayvuLoNw Y} 01 Ajpnba sayyddp aampsod fo ssof oy



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land

TW/12/1442

Cranbrook

Benenden,

South of Rolvenden Road,

(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

“uoyDuLIOfuy
mopf uo pasng jou puv uomisoddns s 91 o smomod ayp dysioaporq pun
ABojooa uo ‘7 ayg ‘pawysig U} 4of uaypriopun uzaq aavy sdosns papiap ou oy
SOIDIS 1 SIS 2AUDULIIND fO 20104 1O JuBMNIOP Buunld VHQG oy fo 797 vavd up

"qIUIOS YIM PIEYOIO pasnsip
€ SeM oIS oy} uagm (14 e1es By Aq paSesiaus Ajsnoard uey soyweid aq 03
KoYy mou st Joedur ey, [adaj .sansvau uoyvsuduosMonvSue wi2)-3uoy “£of
paunbas aq Kou aus pofijuapr 21 Wit puv poainbad aq 0y A1ayy 24n uoNIMASUCD
doyp pup Supnp ‘auofsq amsvowm uonnSyme puv svaip swos u ,Em.:ic\?u%
worsar o1 djayyy st d3oq0or, -ays oy uo A301000 10§ odoos pue Ayszoaipoiq
fenuelsqns opiaoxd ‘oys oyy punose pue wr spuod ¢ 3 Sunuerd

ch i B i |

a1 pue o3pay smjewr ‘puejpoor oy Jurpnpour ays sy Jo sainyeay u%omv:gw o_*w.

8 21§ ‘2msvd 2y uo juswdoqaadp ayy 2103y o} pa.anbau wyp onba oy Ajayiun s
1 fiosit ons ayr-uo Supuyd mou £0f Spaou ay1 of pavBaa yny soupius a9 “S:ea,_
pros ayp Supuolpy uswdopanap pasodosd 2y fo 1onduwt Guo sy puv pooa pasn
1[4 P10 1 11 5D 2)qVNBaD 51 POOY PUOY MAN 1O Bupuvyd mou sof ruswz.anbad sy,

ladal .pooy puog map uo ssovduy
2y w3ynu o1 auop 2q uvs 041 o] st a0y, spiey Suikerd pue speor ssaoow
‘Bunyred jo sosuedxe o] ‘syiom Suyosd punosd [eyuesqns o 3o 1rdwr o
donpal o) Sunueyd mou Jo suuo) w uore3nIu Sjqerspisuod axnbox PInom sayis sy

‘20UDAD2LY UD 2q 0 STy
2021129 244 140U 21 0] LoyLinf prOY puog maN suiofpp Ko yorym Juygas | suop.avry
P S0 oIS, 23 250ddo 0u 5] ‘PO 241 ] S 01 2oUDLUD pasodoad ayy

“HOLEISPISUOD JSLINY SPaAU PEOY PUOg MON JO 9pIS
Jusdelpe oy uo  suopien Sied SLIOISIH,, oty Jo Sumes oy pue ‘a)s a1} Jo ynos
3 03 [ZZNA] pouepoduy sdeospuery Jo seary,, payeusisap ot 03 Joedun oy

10 0 pasn fi ‘paonpa yonu 2q pm 11vy 23vjp14 2y asn 03 paou ayy Y1 2421129 am
11y j00yds b sapnjout juardopsadp pasodosd 24 sy “Abp jooyos oy Suranp n:.e.ns&
fouor P2 SNOLIDA 12q 124044 01 Spdnd 40f spuswainbas Suysom ouyy ayy

P1oap o1 spa juatudolaasp jooyos mau ayy fo Saay22[40 wdioupad oy fo supy

“fooyos oy
4q pasn Apseudor s yorym ey 98w o woxg poyowiop Afjenbd s oy oy

sawal duvt 4of asv2 ayz usaq SOy 11 pup ssauisng Ajop v uo 192,
] fo Butssou> anmbas sSuppng 100428 Zupisixa Bwﬂh“gq EOIA .%Ne.“%%u sp MHE,M.M
241 fo asuadia 2y} 1w auop 2q ‘uoturdo uno us jou PIMoys 11 ‘papt aq prrom Ncafq.h:a
Y2.ny2 v fo uoyw w21sdyd asop> ayp Sus PHOM [02p1 up ul 15114 44 yo.ny>
%1 01 250[> poyis uaaq 2avy SaSvjjia o] up spoYds Jung Ajusoo. ayy fo auopy

“HOINYD ST M [00YOS ST} JO UOHBIDOSSE
[eonoIsTy Buons ayy o joedun M STy “omy oy oyeredos os[e [[IM peos urew Asnq
V "Qdd oy uf Suimep syesodoxd oy u umors se P00y s1 [00Y0S 3 J1 m.:v:?._ Buil
O Smpel Wy S SISO [[B) [ 08F UI Pue GaIMYD oty WOy poyoEIap 51 o115 oy,

o1

B!

4

€1

K4

APPENDIX 3

D1.56

Page 64



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land

TW/12/1442

Cranbrook

Benenden,

South of Rolvenden Road,

(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

Views of Four Supporting Benenden Parish Councillors

11 JBY) MBIA INO SWUUOD UoISSIWWO) AJBYD 8y} Ylim 8ouspuodsaliod 'jsni] ay)
pue abej|IA 8Y) Yjog JO S}saiajul 8y} Ul 89 pjnom yled Jeo paoueyus ue Buleys
Jey) |99} pue ‘ebe||IA 8y} JO }Sow op ‘aAdljag am ‘se aalbesip (sea)snil | INH

se os|e) o\ “ied Jeo ||ey abe|jia ay} Bulieys pasoddo sAkem|e aney ‘saajsni)
|eows yuomswieH se Ajoedeo Jisy) Ul ‘sio)|iouno) ysiied mojigs inO 6
SS90V pue jied Jed ayjl

‘ays (uoneoidde)

ainjsed 8y} 8s0Yo DY 8002 UdIBIN Ul "4ddN @i 4o 91 | ydeiBesed ul jeyy

0) |eonusp! aq 0} sieadde 1s8) sIyl "gGNOY @Y} ul Buieq |e ‘palepisuod Ajjeulblio
$9)Is Z| ayj Jo suondo (Buibewep jses)) }s8q 8y} 89 0} PAISPISUOD SJaM SBYS OM)
pue ‘papssu Aliesjo sem [00UydS MaU Y "gNOY 8U} Ulylim juswdojaasp Aue 1o}
Alessaoau BlIS)LIO 1S8J8)ul 01[gnd pue S80URISWNDJID [euondaoxa ay) pa|y|ni 8)is
uoneolidde sy} jeus pejejs seolnes Buluueld DGML 9002 Jequisides Ul ‘8
GNOV @yl

‘looyos 8y} Jo S}S09 [)0} 8y} jo uonodoud jueoyiubis e ‘uoljiw L3 0} 0000083

10 19pJ0 8y} JO 8q PINOM }SOD |euolippe 8y} oS “uonedldde Buiuuejd mau

© JO }S02 8y} punj 0} ABUOW 8y} puly 0} dABY PINOM DY UOHIPPE U] "S}SOD 8y} 0}
ppe pjnom uonebniw pue Buo| 0s Joj pagunisipun ule| sey )l 8snedssaq ainjysed sy}
40 Jey) ueyy Jaybiy ApaxJew si sjis jey) Jo anjea |edlbojods ey "Aepo} 000'00.3
awos 0} Jus|ealinba seoud 00z Al1ES Y8 000'SE9F O) JUNOWE 8say| “d)s pJeydlQ
ay) Jo s}s02 Jaybiy Apueoniubis sy} wlijuod 9o SoUls sasAjeue }sod pajie}ap
asow ay] ‘Buipuny jeuoiyippe Bujubisse ul swajqold Juasaid pjnom pieyaiQ

Y} Y)IM peieloosse s)js00 [euolippe ayj jey) pejedlpul 9OM 9002 Ul L
s}so)

-abe||in ay) Ul sanuswe Jayjo o} Ajwixoid/ssadoe

O swus} Ul J1ejaq Yiom 0} paseadde pue 8)is pJeydiQ Sy} 0} Ssed0e

uenysapad |ediound ay) Buiwioy peos ajeald /eynod uelysapad paleys ayy buoje
1N220 JYBiw Yydo1ym JUsWSAOW S[0IYSA pue uelysapad usamiaq JoIuod |enuajod
oy} paonpal ‘sadojs/siuaipelb Bunsixa Jo swia) ul swajqoid |enusjod Jomay
pajuasald )l 9sneoaq |ge)INS 8I0W PaIdPISUOD sem 8)is uofjedljdde ay | ‘9
9)S dAljeuld) |y Uy

‘pabeinoous

|le aJe sBuip|ing Uogleo Mo| pue saluNWWod Ayyesy ‘Wodsuel) s|qeulelsns
4ddN 8y} Japun ‘aAi30ayse ssa| aq pinod Buljeay Je|os }ox00d jsol) B Ul S| 8}
pJeyoIQ 8y} asnessgq ‘passold ag 0} dABY pjnom peol Asng e pue a|gnop pjnom
9OUEJSIP 8} 8SNE0aq 8)Is PJeydiQ ay} Yim Ajgyilun aq pjnom siy] “enuiuod

0} snq Bupyiem usals) uap| a8y} a|qeus pjnom ayis uoneoldde ayy uoiippe u| ‘G

‘. sabe||IA ul sanijioe) Ayunwwod pue
S90IAI8S 00| JO JuswdojaAsp pue uonuslal ay) sjowold, 01 SI 4ddN @Y} Jepun
Aa1j0d Buluueld jo swie ayy jo auQ “Ajunwwod s|qelA SS9 B uapuauag bBupew

pue ‘saljianoe abej|ia ul ajdoad BunoA Jo JuswaA|oAul 8y} pue ssauisng abe||in
Joj Joddns Buionpal ‘eouejeq [BID0S pUE DIWOU0DS 3y} Joaje pinom abe||ia ay)
10 8JjUd9 8y} JO N0 [ooyds 8y} Buiye] ‘sysebbns Ja}lo| s,10}0a(qo ue se ,wlo} }ing

Y} WOy payoauuodsIp, Jou si i ‘abejia ayy jo Jed pajeindod Ajasusp jsow sy}
0} 9S00 S| 8)IS 8y} Jey} Jesjo saxew sdew ajeos abie| Jo a)||8}es e 3oo| B
'980¢d

8y} Jo apIs swes ay} uo ‘Ajjuepodwl ‘pue Jayiabo) 8sojo aie S}ssSe Ajunwwod
|le @sneoaq Ajabie| abe||ia [eloads e se sjuapisal s}l Aq Usas sI uspuauag
'sqnd om} pue ||leH [elows|y 8y} ‘usalb abej|ia ay) ‘younyo ay} ‘|ley abejia

ay) ‘punoibAeld ayy ‘punolb uoneaioas ayy ‘|ooyas ayy jo Ajwixold asojo ayy
sulejulew }i yey) si ays uoljeslidde auy Jo JNOAB} Ul UONBISPISUOD ASY By ©
uoneso]

:mojaq swuiod ulew
8y} 0} puodsal pue ‘pileAul A|9AI08Y8 810218V} pue PajepIno aie SUolOa[qo JIBy}
analag o\ “uoneoldde Buluueld ayy 0y Bunoalqo ‘Apuadas uiebe pue ‘Jaquiaydes

9 U0 DD 0} 8J0IM ‘SAl JOGUINU OYM ‘SIO|[IDUNOYD YSlied MO||9} INO z

‘|l8M |00Yos By}
pue 8)is 8y} Yi0g Mouy pue |iejep Ui sue|d ay) psulexs aAey o)) "uoneoldde
sy} yoddns Ajjnj oym s1oj|IoUN0Y YSUBd INoJ JO AJLIoUIW B 818 AN ‘L

NA¥ ZLNL ‘uspuauag ‘peoy UsapuaA|oy JO YInos pueT :uoijedso’]
Buip|ing jooyss Atewd mau jo uonoaig :jesodoid
Z10Z/1LSL0/ML/DOM — uoneadyiddy Bujuueld

1eON JIN JBeQ

3al LN ey

auo)splep

lleH Ajunod

9SNOH BJOIAU| 00| }Sdi4

dnoig suoneolddy Buluueld DO
JeON uelnf I

¢10C J9quIBAON €¢

Vv LINL
AIN3IX * NIANIN3IE ° 133¥1S NIANVLS * NIANVLS 37ddiN

‘woyj sy

D1.57

Page 65



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land

TW/12/1442

Cranbrook

Benenden,

South of Rolvenden Road,

(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

‘uolpuod Ag ainsus pjnom pue siesodoid yum
Addey SH :21°80°¥'2 TeOW Uelinr o} [lew3

Jswubieal moiabpay @ Buiwied oiyel]

awn

wJa) Buunp sAepyeam uo oyjel) eixa Aep e
20Im) yum adoo sabel|in Jsow ‘Jussaid je ueyy
9slom ou ‘siy} yuanaid o} paubisap sed 1ed

uoisabuod g ole. |

‘wojqoid e 99s

10U Op SHY "SS920E aAleuls)Ee Aue pasnjal
‘yied Jeo ey abejia 8y} umo oym ‘(LINH)
1Sni| [eLOWS|N yHomsweH se Bunoe Ddg

puag pullq uo souenu]

‘Mou

SE - SJuaAS AUNWWOD pue [00YdS Yioq 1o}
903|D Jo ash mo||e ' me| Ul 8onoeId suLysus
0} Aem Japun uoljenobap -juswaless Ajjis

‘saweb wea} Joy uoisinoid ON

‘anss| Bujuue|d e jou s| asuadx3 ‘ao0uapInd ON

‘onsuadxe
Ajqissod pue Alojoejsiiesun uonebin

"ado|s ay} ol BuIbBIp s|eus siyy pue punoib
|oA8| uo JIs 0} sey Buip|ing v "Juawalels Ajis v

"ajoy Ul USpPPIH

Baly UONBAIISUOD
0} yoeolidde anoidwi o} padeospue| aq
pINod } uaym ‘pateys yJed Jeo i Jueas|al Alug

©Baly uoljeAlasuod

paieys yJed Jeod ey
abe|iA j1 aqissod uoponpal Jayuny (%eeg Aq
az|s 8y} 8onpal 0} paaibe sey yueoldde ay )

yed 1eo pasodoud jo 8215

peoy UspuaA|oY WO B(qISIA
Alpsey pue abpl 8y mojaq si 8)is 8y} ‘aniun

uoneso|
juaujwoud “4uiod a|qisia 1saybiy e abpu uQ

"}N0 PaLLIBD U SBY B)IS Ydleas
|ennuanbag 'paJapisuod says |je o} salddy

agn episino g gNOY

'siy} Loddns jou op ainsed ay} asoddo oym
slojjlouno) ayi Ing jjod mau e pasodoid aney
siauolysiied "a)Is ainjsed ayj 1o} yoddns tes|o
AKian moys ‘paysiignd sem uoneoldde buiuued
ay} aouls sbunesw Ddg xis pue sbunasw
ognd om} ‘uonos|e-Aq 010z SUL “uonewIoul
punosun Ajenioe; uo Suimelp Bulubredwed
‘Buniebuow-a1es paspul ‘annebau

uo paseq Sem pue ‘Odg JO uoluaAIaiul

oy} Aq peseiq sem ‘ajep Jo Ino s |jod L00g UL

llod usiied

‘Buneaw jeyy je pajesysuowap uojuido aignd Bunoub
‘2102 Joquaydas 9 Juas 1ana] uonaslqo puodas ‘Ainp gz uo Bunaaw algnd O Jo sHNsaL
yeme o} A|np 9 uo Bunsaw Jd Jale UMBIPYIM (ZL0Z dunp g JUas J19H3| uo1}dalqo isiig

(0d4) 11Puno ysied

asuodsay

uonoalqo

SHOTTONNOD ONILDOArg0 OL ISNOdS3H
TOOHOS AHVINIHd MAN - TIONNOD HSIYVd NIANIN3g

unoY ysled uspusuag

AjoJoouls SINOA

‘uspuauag ul uoiuido 2lignd uoc pue ‘DY 0} siapd| sio|Iuno) Buisoddo
8y} yim saibesip am Aum ‘jejep alow ui ‘Buiienoo seoipusdde yoepe spy vl

‘uoneoldde sy} yoddns o} noA abin em

pue Ajunwwod jeins Buialy) 1no poddns pue ebejia sy arcidwi pue soueyuS
[IIM [00UOS MBU B JO UOHONISUOD 8y} 9A319q om Alewwns U] ‘adeaspue| [einjeu
3y} Yum [|am sajejanisiul yaiym ubissp jusioie ABiaus ‘s|qeuteisns ‘Ayjenb

ybiy e si pue ‘sanjioey AUNWIWOD BUSIXS YIM J08UU0D ‘SB}IIoe) [BUOIEINPS
anoldull ||im [00Yos 8y ] “pawodiem Ajapim Alaa aq [|im sueld auy jo [eaoidde ey
pue afe||iA 8y} JO SMSIA 8y} UM YINOo} JO INO Aj[euBjsgns MoU a1e SIOJ|Iouno))
ystuieq Buisoddo auy 1ey) 9asijaq am Jng uojuido Jo SaouBIBYIP 8] [jiM d18U)
‘apnyiubew siy; jo suoneordde Buiuue(d jsow yum se ‘jey) esiubooss sy gl
uoisnjouon

s)osse pue 8y abejjia uo

S}08J8 JUBHWODUO0D BU} ||B yim ‘|8 Je jooyos mau e BuieBb jo Ayunpoddo sy 8soj
WBIw 1 ‘pancidde jou si uonealdde ay} i ‘yeyy psusaouod Auesio aie Asy; ing
sue|d sy} poddns o} A|Buljaymiano seadde mou abe||ia ayy ssop AjuoJoN  ZL

‘fesodoud jusuno ay) poddns o} sBuesw |1DUNOY ysiieq Buipusye

a|doad jo siequinu abie| sy} pue ‘s|ounog Aunod pue ybnolog ‘ysied

8y} 0} s1aua| pue sjrews ‘sbunesw 21gnd Je passaidxe suoiuido ‘suoiPse

-Aq Jusnbasans jo synsas sy} Aq pspoddns s mala siyy jjod Jey) sours sieak
any sy} ul pabueyo Ajleusiew sey uoluido oignd jey) peouinuod s1e gy (L)

‘uolje|os) ul a)is uonedljdde ayj uo 9j0A o} Ajunuoddo ey} usaib usag Jeasu
aAeY sjuapisas ‘Ajjeronid ‘pue usy) aouls pasaye Appeasb aaey eys uoneordde
8y} 1oy sjesodold psjielap 8y} J9A8MOH %G 0} %GG Inoge Aq ayis uoijeoidde
3y} Jan0 pIeyiQ By} painoAaey BuloA yolym Ut 2002 YoIel Ul piay jjod ysued syy
o} Ajpeyeadas Jgyai sispoddns slsy) pue siojjouno) ysued buisoddo ayy gL
uojuidQ a1qnd

‘BaJy uoljeAlasuo) ayj 0} yoeoudde

ulsjsea ay} anosdwi pinod ‘Buidesspue| upm ‘pue syyedjooy 8inol-a1 0} pesu

8y} eonpai pjnom ‘uonedldde ayy ut uanib yied 1eo ay) Jo 8zis sy} BoNpaI pjNom
Buneys Jepew siyi uo 1PUNOY AJUNOD JUSY YIM suoissnasip uado o} ajgissod s

D1.58

Page 66



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land

South of Rolvenden Road,

(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

TW/12/1442

Cranbrook

Benenden,

‘PeoY USpUaA|0Y WOl 3|qISIA ey ajAis-uleq
ysnuay ayy Ajuo ‘ebpay punoib uoneaidal Aq
paplalys pue ainjsed jo wiod ybiy mojaq 18s
1pINg jooyos ey ob paysinbunsipun
Ajreanoanyole ayy 0y umelp si ajdoad jsow jo
aks ay pue syjedioo} 8WOS WOl Udss ag Aluo
ued 8IS ainjsed 8y ‘Udas aq UBD } JOYIYM
nq ysied ey} ut 1sa8ybly ayi si BS 8y} Jayeym
10U s1 A8y ‘gNQY 2y} seoueyus ubisep poob
pue adeospue| ainised ojul 31} 0} paubisap
|00yDS {pIeydIQ UO d¥e} pue| Jajealn)

‘ysued ayy ui uiod
1s0ybiy ayi A[EnHIA e [00YDS {pIeydIQ Uey}
JayeaIb ainysed jo adeospue| ysiied uo joedw|

‘saaJ} Buibueyiano Aq yuou
wouj paonpal AlgISIA ‘peod Jo yolais wybrens
B UO ||Iyumop SI suonioalip yioq woij yoeoiddy

snosabuep jou aouenuy

abej|IA uo Joedw)

'$9SS9008
uelisepad pue 8jo1ysA 8y} yiod je a)s
pJeyolQ Je pajoaye saipadold alow ‘eniy JoN

ainised Joj uey} Jojealb ou saipadosd
Juaoelpe uo syoedwi Ayuawe g [ensip

‘Bunybi) 10841s yum sdeylad

‘speoisso.o abe|in ay) 0} yredioo; e jonisuod
0] Alessa0au aq Jybiw )i pleydiQ ay} 104

*9}S aInjsed Je UMOp I 8q 0} S8a1} OU
{|00YoS UspusuUag 0} 8s0| ‘sabpay pue saal)
alnjew yum pabpa aue| [eins pajeubisep v

"a)is a.njsed e uey} Jejealb

0OU 90UBIIUB 10} S881} 9 SMOIBBPaY JO SSO|
{(o1OISIY) BB d |00YOS UBpuUBUag 0} 9S00 10U
90UBJIUS ‘BUB| AIJUNOD B J0U PEOY PUOH MON

saiuadouad BurinoqybioN uo joedw)

QoueuT AS

's|idnd ayy Jo paiyy e ueyy
alow ‘snq Bupjiem, uo Apualind ualp|iyo 0/-09
‘BuijoAo/Buniiem sebeinodus 4ddN 8yl

|j00yas 0} Bupjiem uaip|iyo
JO slaquinu pajwi| 8sneoaq pajelabbexs
19911G 9y o SS800k UBlISapad Yyim swa|qoid

¢ xipuaddy - uonosjes aug pue | xipuaddy - sanss| adesspue]

199.1S 9YL WOJ} SSI0Y UBLISAPdd

‘uoneoldde Bujuueld ayy

10} POAISSBI SI SIYL "|IeI9p JO [9AS] SWES dY} Ul
S8)IS OM] JE 00| O} SAIJOBYS 1SOJ JOU S }| "auop
S| UONOB|aS 8IS MOy Jo Bulpue)siepunsiw
[ejuawepun) SMoys W

-~ slobpeq ‘syeq ‘eoiwlop ‘spi
‘swiom-mols Ajjeroadse ‘sandal 1oy [enusiod
sey pleyolQ "ainised sy @ pJeyaIO sy}

10§ |9A3] Pa|e}op 10W B Je Usy) SaYs g| 10}
1814 ‘pao Ajolgnd pue suop asem sAaains Ing
‘pJey2IQ uo Juenodwi 810w BUNE) pUE BIOJ)
ey} uosiadAe| ay} 0} usAd SNOIAGQ "anJ} JON

pJeyolQ o JuswdojeAdp yYim paonpal
aq |Im Ausianipolq ey uopasse poddns
0} 92UBPIAS OU 0S BUOP SABAINS pajielsp ON

‘u@aib 8y} asn oym

SIBAUP AjU0 By} 10U BIe SlUBIEd "ssed 0} Sied
10} 99oeds MOJ[E J0U Op YdIym usaib ay} punol
sauolsqley Bumnd uoy s|qisuodsal ale Ddg

uaaib abe||iA Jo sabpa Jo uoisol]
:aA0(e apew sjulod o} uolippe uj

uolew.ojul [euoippe uo Bunu

DWIWOD ZL0Z J9WIAAON (g JUSS Ja)13] Jayung

R CTEN) -]
ou s/ @18y 1eyl ‘0dv3 OEM.L JO uonoejsiies
ay} 0} ‘pejelisuowsap sey jueoldde ay |

]IS aAleUIBYE UY

‘Aped Bupjiom OOW/0dE
ol Ag obe sieah aAl) palapisuod Apeally

swa|qoid swoa19n0
0] pabueyo aq pinod ayis Jo InoAe| pue ubisaq

ji.,osuodsal uonoalqo, ue ayew jouued

llod ysked @y “uoipeoydde sy yum Jeijiwey
10U dJe pue a}Is 8y} PayISIA Jou aney A}8100S
seoedg uadQ ‘JHdO ‘HUN ENOV Pleapm UbIH
j1ena| uonosiqo ayy Bunum si 0dg

108[qo Jou $90p Odv3 DGML

Sesuodsal uonoalqQ,

‘Juswissasse aA}a[gNs A|[e10} v

abej|iA ulyum uoisua]

"9IN0J $S8999€ I8BUo|

pue |ley jooyos Jab61q ‘pialy buike|d apinoid
0} pleyolQ UO e} pue| 1sjealr) ‘[losdo}
papeibap sey Aloisiy Buiw.ey pue euney
10} paysinBulisIp jou a)is ainised “Ymmoib
991} [UOISSBOONS PUB PUBIPOOM JUBIOUE
‘spuod UHm a}1|p|im 10} JIaW d|qelapIsuo)

"alnjsed 10} Uey}
1918016 OU pue|sse.b |leyeinised Jo SSo| Jiew
Je|noied ou yim preyolo umoiBieno pesnsiq

‘sjesodoud ay) yum Addey aunb sem isoi0
yredjooy, umo s,0d 8yl "uonenobau lapun

SMOHd U0 10edwi asianpy

‘uoipuod Aq pajjoiuod aq uen

Burouay Aynoas g Bunybi

Ausianipoig » A6ojoog

‘suonoslgo

ou sey Aousby Juswuolinug ay] ‘wajqoid
bupsixe paniadlad e no Hos o} aoe|d

ay} jou s| uoneoldde Buiuue|d v ‘Buipooyy
Juanaid 0} paubisep puod "eys uoneoldde
8y} 0} 8S0J0 Jou S| peo. 8y ul Buipool4

Buipooj} eyeqiaoeXa ABW PUOH

asuodsay

uonoalqo

asuodsay

uonoalqo

SHOTTONNOD ONILIArd0 OL ASNOdS3IH
TTOOHOS AHVINIHd M3N - TIONNOD HSIYVd NIANIN3g

TTO0H

SHOTTIONNOD ONILO3rg0 OL ISNOdS3H
OS AHVINIHd M3N - TIONNOD HSIHVd NIANIN3g

D1.59

Page 67



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land

South of Rolvenden Road,

(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

TW/12/1442

Cranbrook

Benenden,

o

‘paseyoind Ajuosindwod aq pjnom ied Jes |jey abe|jia sy}
‘Buipea|siw

alojaiay) a1om pue padojaasp aq jou Jybiw sueld 3daouoo ay)
‘punoJb 8y} Ul 8joY B Ul uns ag P|NOM [00YIS dU}

‘siobe||IA 8y} Jo} 8|ge|ieAe aq 1abuo| ou pjnom aga|s) ay)
{UMOP IND Bq PINOM S8} ainjew

O 0 0 O

0s aq 0} panoid souls aAey 10 Wi}
8y} Je BuoIm JByle BIem B)IS ainjsed 8y} jsuiebe suoseal Jisy} JO SO

‘Alannebau paubledwed dnous) uoiosjold abpry pue aga|9

oy} seAjosway} Buijeos sieuolysued jo dnoib psejuiodde jjos e pue Odg
‘sue|d 1deouod s}l JO UORIqIYXd 8y}

0} asuodsal o1ignd ay} Buisiseydwsa ‘Ajoaisod paubiedwes jooyos ay ]
*8)IS PJeydIQ dY} JO JNOAEY Ul

Jlod 8y} paselq A|SNoIAQO UOIIUSAISYUI JIBY ] "aIn)Sed ay} jsulebe ja)jes)
Buiubiedwes abed unoy e Buinquisip Aq jjod ey} a1048q way) aouanjjul
0} 1n0 J8s Asy] "ysiied sy} JO SMBIA U} USI|qe}sS O} JIEM Jou PIp Odg

.’pouad uone)nsuod

JXau 8y} Je way) Jussaidal Aadolid pinoo 1oUno) ysiied ay} jeyy

os ystled ay} Jo smala ay) 306 o), sem |jod ay) Buip|joy Joj uoseal s,0dg
oamMmL

Aq pajonpuod pue [1oUNo) ysiied uspusuag Aq pajeniul sem |jod ay)
‘pieyolQ auy) ‘| 8)Is pue 8)Is

ayy jo ped ainjsed ay} 40 8g8|9 ay} Jayya uo Buip|ing Joy suondo ypm
‘alnised ay) ‘g alis usamiaqg asooyo 0} siabe||in payse |jod abej|in v

2002 yaien

‘sue|d ay}

Bunoddns 9,06 Yim saireuuonsanb pauinjol Zog ‘pepusie SIo)SIA 0gE
paqiyxe a1em 8gs|9

8y} 40 }sea ay} 0} }snf ainysed ay} uo |ooyos mau e Joj sueld }deouo)

100z Asenuep

"INOABY Ul %0 ] pue
pasoddo %,06 swia} abejuaoiad Ul {INOAB} Ul BUO AjUO pue ainjsed ay}
0} pasoddo Jybia pasidwos 31 0s [PUN0Y 8y} 0} pajosle aiem Jybie eyl

"JEDJD SMAIA 1Y} 9YBW Jou pIp 8say ]

'S}o|Jea| UoIjoa|e JO UolNgUISIp pue uononpoid 8y} pajeulpiood Aay L
a}Is ainjsed ay} asoddo

0} ,Aled, peounouueun ue wioy 0} Jayiabo} padnoib sajepipued ybig
‘PIoY SEM [I0UNOD Ysiied mau e Ioj UONOS| Pa}sajuod

900z Aey

"looyos Asewd ayj Jo UOIEO0| DY)
0} pseBal yym uspusuag Ui uoluido o1ignd 4O UOIIN|OAS BY} SMOYS 8JON SIYL

N3IAN3N34 NI NOINIdO J178Nd NO 310N

‘obe s1eak any

payse usag aABY pINoys suolsanb asayl ||y
‘abels sius 1e paynsnl

Jou sBusod ae|dwo) 'ss800.d UONDB|BS SIS
8y} Jo Bulpuejsiapunsiw [eyuswepuny e ‘ureby
"9¥E)} pue| Jajealb sy} Jo asneodaq pieyoiQ

8y} 4oy Jayealb aq pinom ing [eRUSPILOD

ale 51500 uonisinboy ‘anoge 8as — anJi JON

.’S8lIs yjoq o} uoisinboe pue| Buipnjoul s}s00
UOIIONIISUOD ||N} UMOYS USB( JoAdU Sey Ddd,

‘way}
1senbaJ 0} pajie} pue Way) 9A199a1 Jou pip Aay)
10 ‘way} 10| aney Asy) Jo ‘A)ney aie salowsw
J1eyy Jayng 'sBunsod usss Jana aney Aayy yeys

Auap dnoJb siy} uo S10||IDUNOY BY] ‘SBNIS OM}
8y} Joj subisap pue s}S09 Je |1e1ep Ul payoo|
18U} 80/200g Ut Aued Bunjiom Odg/00M ol e
Jo sBun@aw Jo syluow XIs MoYs senuiw Ddg

’ssao01d uonosjes

BU} Ul MEBJ} SNOLISS B"**"0Op 0} 8|qBUN Usaq
aney am yolym abuajieyo oy uado ale ‘ansijaq
am ‘s)s09 pasealoul ay} Buikysnl sway,,

ayis p4eyaiQ uo Buipjing jo suonesidwi 31s0D

"4yoInyod S)i 0} 9S00 [00YOS
MaU e Jo} d|qe}ns a}is ou pey }sinybuissis
BurinoquBiaN "UOIIaSSE SIY} 10} 80USPIAS ON

4oInyo s 0} 9S00
|00Yyos mau e }jing sey abejia Bulinoqybiau oN

‘goueleq
|eroos poob e desy pue ‘|ley abejjia ayy

Se yons sjesse abe||in pue sassauisng [eo0]
4O @1niny 8y} ainsua djay (1M SIy ] ‘so|
J1ay} pue sjualed BunoA 1oy abe|jia 8y} jJo
Awreindod ay) 8ousy pue |00yds 8y} JO aininy
wie}-Buo| 8y} 21nsus ||Im }| “SNOWIOUS 8 [|IM
Ajunwwod 8y} 0} |00YOS MaU B JO Jl}euad ay |
‘pauonuaw JoN

1oedw [e1onQ

jlueydaia apym e aq o} JyBnouy
- BWI} S} Ul [BISISA0IUOD SEM |[BH 9Bz
QY] "SIy} uo Juswbpnl e exew o} Alies 00|

‘Iiey
|00YDs Mau 8y} Wwody abeyiA 8y} 0} Jyauag oN

“abe||IA 8y} JO 813U80 Y} Bk 9SOy "YoInyd
8y} pue |leH [eLows|y a8y} ‘uaalb abe||in
8y} ‘and |Ing 8y ‘|ley aBejiiA 8y} ‘punoif
uol}ealoal 8y} 0} 9S00 S| 8)IS aInised ay |

“abe||IA JO 813uBd Je Jou J)IS dinjsed

asuodsay

uonoalqo

SHOTIONNOD ONILOAMrg0 OL ISNOdS3IH

TTOOHOS AHVINIHd M3N - TIONNOJ HSIYVd NIANIN3g

D1.60

Page 68



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land

South of Rolvenden Road,

(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

TW/12/1442

Cranbrook

Benenden,

pies Jieyo Bunoy ay pasoubi sem ‘(suonoalqo gz isnl pue poddns

Jo suoissaldxa ¢/ pPaAIadal Ddg) [IoUNoD Y} 0 s|iewa pue siapa| Aq
pue ‘aunp g uo Bunssw 21gnd ay) e umoys ‘siabe||ia Jo uoluido ay |
‘sjuswiale)s usplm ‘pasedaid-aid yum awed ‘Jieyd

Bunoy ay) Buipnioul ‘s1o||IoUNOY JNOY PadpU| “UOISSNOSIP OU SEM 818U}
pue ‘jueoiidde ay) ypm passnosip sueld ou ‘apew sem JISIA 8)is julof ou
‘uonealjdde ayy o |1e}ep 8y} Yim Jeljiwey Jou Alues|d a1em SIoj|louno)
‘9381y) 0} oAl Jo Ayuolew e Aq ‘uonjeoldde

ay) 0} pajoalqo 1puno) ay) Buneaw [10uno) yslied Alyuow ayj 3y

¢loz aunr gL

‘uspuauag jo ysued ay) wouy alam Jussaid sidoad ay} Jo %08 :Buoim
sem siy] ".abe||In ay} Jo aallejuasaldal Jou, sem Buljeaw ay) asnesaq
SPUBY JO MOYS B Jo} }sanbal B pasnjal [IounoD 8y} Jo JIeyD uay) sy
‘uonjesljdde ayy jo

INOABJ Ul %08 YlIM ‘paniaoal A[lenjuana aiem sasuodsal Q| Uy} SI0|\
‘Buijrews Aq pue Jaded jo sdijs ui Buliy

Aq ‘Buryeads Aq suojuido Jiay} [19Uno) ay) aAIb 0} pabeinoous alem
Aay] "awed ajdoad paipuny e jJnoge wis} jjey |0oyss sem )i ybnoyly
‘ssald ayj ul pue abej|In 8y} Jnoybnoly)

pasiyanpe ‘Buiesw oljgnd e paj|ed [1oUNo) ysiied uspusuag

clogsunrg

00 Ag paniwgns sem uoljeoldde Buiuueld sy
zLoz ke

-anijebau Ajpaua a1om Jnoy AluQ “sued

1011dX8 % /6 YNIM pauinial 81om SPIED JUSWIWOD 987
'sAep oAl 1o} ues uoniqiyxe ay] "ysiied ayj u asnoy A1ona 0} palanllop
puey a1em sja|jes| ‘seolou 1|gnd Ym pasiueApe Ajspim Sem }|

‘looyas ayy Aq

play sem [ooyos mau ay}y Joj sue(d pajiejep Buimoys uonigiyxe algnd v

1102 dunp

‘ynsal jjod 200Z du} 4o

|eslonal B )Sed S0 B} JO %GG UM UOM 8)epipued a)is ainjsed oyl
‘pieyoIO Byy

Jay}o 8y} ‘a)is ainysed ey} papoddns ajepipued auo uoiosje-Ag ayj uj
"9)Is alnjsed oy} Yoddns

0} pawinsse alam oym ‘uonosle Aejy ayy ul dn sisuund, 8yy wWoly
JojjlounoD mau e }do-09 0} ainssaid Jopun Buleq ploAe o0} Algewnsald
‘uonoale-Aq e wield 0} (DgGAAL) Aloyine [BJ0}oa|a ay) 0} S}ldm

0} slauolysied /| padjay pue pabeinoous Jieyd 8o1A pue JieyD syl
‘suoseal [euosliad Joj paubisal Jo|||ouno) v

0102 49qianoN

‘payos|e Anp asem oym ‘bl

ayj ueyy ysued ay) Jo abeI1anod ssa| pansiyoe Jnoy ay) A|Buisudins JoN
‘sanjswiay} 4oy (A|[enpiAlpul) pusy 0} Jnoy Jayjo

ayy Buiaes| sayjebo) paxyiom jJybie ay] 's}o|jes| uoljos|sd Jo uolnguisip

pue Bunuld sy} 8}eUIPI00D O} SEIEPIPUED BAjOM] By} Buowe Jusweslbe
JewJojul ue uo pabsuai diysiopes) [1ouUNoY oy} obels sl e Y o
'900Z Ynm paledwod %0¢ - GZ Aq doup 910 Jiay)
MES 4)oq A8y "e0usia)el PaIoA B Ul — SMBIA JIoy} pauoiuaw om) Ajuo
INg 8Ys uasoyo s, 8soddo o} Jeyjeboy padnoib serepipued oI .
'S8l0UBOBA
BUIU JO} POO}S SOJEPIPUED BAJOM ] "PlOY SI9M SUOIIOD|S [IDUN0D
010z Aen

‘uaye]
Jou sem 3j "01L.0gZ Ul pa1inooo siy} op o} Ajunpoddo uy "paisal-al Buiag Inoym
uoluldo Jo aunsesw e se Uaye)} 8 Jouued p|o sieak jey e pue aAl Aluesu

sl jey) |jod v awly Jano abueyo suoluido pue suonendod yjog asnesad si SIyL
‘JusWUIdA0B [BO0| 10} SIEDA UNOY AIBAS SUONDB|S S8epueWw AoBIOoWSP INO

‘Reuow siokedxey
pue awj s,8/doad yjoq pajsem Agaiay) Aay ] “ayis ayj 0} uolyisoddo [ejo}
119y} pajeanal JeAsu pue sueld jooyds ay} yum Buoje ob o) paseadde
A2yl DO Yim 198w pip Aay) UBYM SUOISBOI0 Md) AIBA BYL UQ
"looyos ayy 4oy sueld sy}
‘Buiouanjjul 1o ‘ye Buoo| Yim paAjoAul 8q 0} sjdwa)e pajsisal Ayl e
‘uolisioap 8y} }deooe 0} pasnyal |IDUN0Y ysiled 8yl e
‘ainysed 8y} - 8)IS JO 8210Yd Sy} UO UOISIOdP JIdY} apew OOY
8002 yatel

'0G:0S
91| a1ow - s1abe|(IA Buowe UOISIAIP 8y} JO8)484 JOU pIp ‘P4BYDIQ By} JO
INOAB} Ul 01:06 PBPIAIP ‘|IoUN0D yslied 8y} jey) AjJeajo pamoys |jod 8y]

‘|Ins 18sofo
Buiubredwes Buriebuow-aieos pue aAieBau JnoyIM 18S0j0 Yyonw usaq
aABY PINOM }|NSaJ 8} [I2UNOYD Yslled 8y} Aq paonpoujul selq ay} JNOYIAA  «

(8

B)IS 10} %€ JOAO |EJO} Ul) 8GRI BU} 10} %Z :9IN)Sed S} 10} %L i
{(p1eY21Q d9Y}) | SIS 10} % /G :papIAIp Ajuons Aliie) a1om SI9JOA  ©

‘(pajoA 8)e10}08I8 BU]} JO %9¢ Jo ajdoad ZzG) @9 p|noys |ooyos
M3U 8y} 818UM JNOCE PaUISDUOD Jou sem abel|IA 8y} Jo Jsow  ©

‘pamoys |lod 8yl

" pajoadsal ag pinoys abe||iAn ay} JO ||IM dljeloowap
ayy, :ainised ay) 0} uoiysoddo J1ayy Ajsn( 0y Japio od s1y} 80Aul
Alpajeadau siapoddns Jilayy pue s1o||1ouno) yslied Buisoddo ayl

" Jooyos mau aAneulBew Ue, 8q PINOM }i Jey) pue ‘Ajyoinb aiow alay}
}INg g PIN0D [00YDS B Jey) :pSjeIjUB}SgNS JBY}aU ‘UINOAR) S Ul Opew
a1oM sjulod OM} 1SN "PIBYDIQ BY} 4O Jleyaq uo paubledwed suo ON e

‘pajesabbexa
K|ss0Jb a1oMm S8)IS OM} BY} USSM}ST SSOUSISYIP }SOD pajewyss o

D1.61

Page 69



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land

South of Rolvenden Road,

TW/12/1442

Cranbrook

Benenden,

(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

‘sueld jooyos ay) spoddns uojuido 21ignd asneoaq uoios|e

ue 9s0| Jybiw Asy) yeyy paiesy Jo ‘way) Juasaidal 0} BUO OU puly JaYys pjnod
uoneoldde ay) Buisoddo esoy] ‘uoneoldde Buuueld ayy jo poddns ul os|e si
J0]1oUNod Mau 8y “uoleoldde sy} JJoddns oym sI0309|8 US) AQ pawied usaq
pey Jey} uoios|e-Ag ay) Joj pajeuIllou sem a)epipued auo AjUo uaym ‘)Sejuod
B Jnoym ‘pajily sem Ainp ui uoneuBisal s dieyD ayy Aq ya| Aoueoea sy

Z10Z Jequiydag £

" poau burssaid, wis) 8y} JO 8Sh UMO J1day} dulyap 0} d|qeun aiam Aay]
‘uonoale ue ybnoiyy

olignd ur uoiuido Jiay} 1s8) pinoys Asay} jey} uonsabbns e pajsisal Aoyl e
'SM3IA J18Y} JO JUNODDE 8.} PINom DD Jou DgML

Jay)lau asneoaq pies Aoy} Jleym Jajiew jou pip ) Jey) pauasse Aoyl e
"'SM3IA 119y}
9)eJjSUOWAP 0} S|IBwd JO S19)I9] puas 0} d|qeun usaq pey Ajuolew,
siy} Aym urejdxa jou pip Aay ] ‘ejeqap Jo paleds alom Aay) asnesaq
sbuneaw [1ouno) Jo sbuidaw o1jgnd Jayja 0} W02 Jou pey Ing

Q)Is ainysed ay) pasoddo ab ay) ul Ayofew e jey) paulejulew Asyl
*8)IS Mau e 10y uoljeo)dde
Bujuueld e aoueul pIN0D oYM JO 8g PINOM 8saY) d1aym Alies|d Buimousy

JNOYJIM PBISPISU0D 8 0) pey Sa)is SAljeuIB)(e Jey) pajsisul Aoy e

‘sBuimelp |euonoas puejsiapun jou pip Aay) jeyy ©
‘PIaY 3G9[D
2y} Jo asn Jo Buiwied oyjely ‘ebeulelp ‘Buiousy Ajunoss ‘Buiybi|
uo aouapIAe uapMm sjueoldde ay) ydeooe jou pip Asyyjeyy ©
‘8)Is ainjsed ay)
pasoddo sAem|e pey Asy) ‘Ajuedo os BuiAes jou ybnoyye yeyy o
‘@yep Jo jno sem |jod £00Z dUi jeyy ©

:paniwpe Ajiolew Buisoddo syl e
‘pajoalel aiom
asauy} Jo ||e AlueaN uoljesljdde ayy Buiuoddns si0||10UN0D Y} JO oM}
Aq a1em pasodoud sjuswpuswie AJuo ay} (SI0|IouNo0D oMy Ag USHLIM)
DD 0} J8}18] Mau e aalbe 0) Buliesw [1DUN0) AJeuiploesXx3 Ue )y
210z Jequiaydag ¢

. 'SpJeoq ao1j0u ysied ay) pue

doys ayj ul 8o130u & Wouy pede abe||iA sy} ul Ayolgnd ou, noge Buiuie|dwod
puy ,'uspuauag jo ysied ay} jo anllejuasaidal A|piey si ‘jooyds ay) Aq
pajelnsayolo ‘sjuased Buiheq jo |Iny ||y v, :swia) Buimojjoy ayy ul yI Buissiwsip
‘Bunesw sy} Yoeje 0} PapIOSpP MOU dARY S1O|[1oUN0) yslied Buisoddo ay )

‘pue)s 0} Buishyal pue ||om jou uiebe ‘ayods Jojjlouno)
Buisoddo Jayjo suo AuQ "peyoslgo jussaid asoyy jo Ajuofew ay) yoym o)
‘aloam Aay) yeym mauy Apealje abe|jia ay) Buiwieo ‘[jom smala Jay uiejdxa jou
pIp pue yeads 0} juejonjas Ajlpwalixe sem Jieyd bunoy syl (Aepijoy uo aiam
OM}) JNOAEB} Ul BUO pue jsulebe aaly) ‘Bundaw a8y} 0} SWED SIOJIDUNOYD JNOH o

‘uoneoldde

Bujuueld ay} uo smala [ENPIAIPUL Jay Jo SIYy aAIb 0} Buneaw sy} ssalppe
0) pasedaud aqg 0} J0||1OUNOD YSLiEH YOEBS PaySE pey JojIouno) AJuno) 8yl e

‘(siequiaw Ddg Buipnjoul jou) jsuiebe ayods aaiy} ‘uoealdde ayy

10 InoAey Ul axjods g1 ‘Yeads 0) pajsenbai oym ajdoad g oy JO uonesldde
Bujuueld ayy Jo Jnoaey Ul sem Buiieaw 8y} Jo asUas BUIBYMIBAO Y]

‘(puaye 0} a|geun alom

sjuased Auew pue sAepijoy jooyds ay} Buunp sem j1 ybnouyye) yuasaid ajdoad
002 YIIMm ‘papuayie ||om Ajpwallxa sem Bueaw s Jojjiouno) Ajuno) ayl

zLoz Ainr gz

‘uonyeoldde ay)
0} pasoddo Joj|louno) ysied e si oym Aiejasoas sbuiyooq ey abejjia
8y} usaq aAey pjnom Bureaw ay) Jo a91jou aAey 0} uostad jsily 8yl e
'spJeoq 99nj0u ysied uo pue ssaid
ay) ul sa21j0u Ind 0} swi ybnous ‘sAep us) Sem S91}0U [ewO JOU SEM
}| "Hoys oo} Buiaqg Buiieaw ayy 104 801}0U JNOCE SpeWw SeM UOIJUSW ON
(o18), be]|1A 8Y} OJUI YoR]
wnqIinba Jo Wi}y SWOS 0} PadU Op dM PuUB [00YdS B pasu Ajgjesadsap
om aaibe ||e ap) "ysied ay) ul aoead pasu am pue ‘aisydsowsie
ay) anoidwi pue sbuiyy wied pjnom )i ‘eapl poob e s Buieaw InoA
199} op |, Bu@sw s Jojouno) AJunod sy} pawooem Jieyd bunoy ayl e

‘Bunesw s, buluuely Job0oy Jaye ‘Junodoe ojul usxe)
ag mou pjnom uoluido a1jgnd jey) pue pajpuey Apadold usaq jou pey
uopeolidde Bujuueld ay) jey} Sem uoisioap siyj jo uoneoljdwi Jesjo 8yl
'|looyds 8y} Jo uoljed0| 8y} uo uoluido algnd 3ss} 0}
Alleayioads ‘Buiuuely Jjaboy ‘lojjiounod Ayunod ayy Aq pasiuebio Buieq
sem ey Bunesw o1ignd puodss e Jaje DO 0) JUSS SJUSWWOD MaU
pue UMBIPYYIM 8q p|noys Jaja| uoioalqo ay) jey) paaibe uay) sem | e
‘paubisal Jiley) ay) Bugaw [1oUN0YD Ysed IXau au} Y «
zLoz Ainr 9y

-abeseb e pjing o} uonesldde ue o} uaalb usaq aaey pjnom ueyy Jybnouyy

$S9| YIm pajoalal usaqg pey uoneoidde ay) jey) Aewsip Jiay} pue paioubl usaq
pey uoluido o1jgnd jey) 1snbBsip Jiay} yjoq ssaidxa 0} ‘d|A JNO O} PUE [I2UN0D
Aunod ay) 0} ‘leyd Ddg dy} 0} 8j04m Uy} oljlgnd 8y} Jo sIaquusW [BIBASS

‘|ooyos Jayjoue 0} paje|al yeyy Buiyiewos uooalqo ue se aneb usaa
pue ‘spew usaq jou pey jey; sjuiod papnjour ‘Buijesw 8y} Je pies sem
1ey) | 8Y) 1991J01 JOU PIP }| WO} [eUly S) Ul JO JeIp Ul Jaylie way)
UJIM POIES[O JOU SEM PUE SIBYJ0 8} O} 80USI8}8) JNOYYIM SIO||Iouno)
om} AQ USHIIM SBM }I JOB) U] "UOIOB[JO S} Ul SNOWIUBUN SBM [IDUN0D
ystied ay} jey) palidwi sunp gz Uo DO 0} Juas Jad| uonalqo ayl .

‘uoneoljdde ayj Jo JnoAe} ul BSOU)

alam ajoym e se abe||In 8y} uo (3oe| S}l JO) |00YIS MaU B JO S}oayd
ay) pauonuaw oym sio]jiouno Ajuo ay] - awi Buoj e aiay paal| aaey
am, asneodaq abe||in ayj jo uoluido ayy mauy Apealje [1ounod ay} Jeyy

D1.62

Page 70



item D1

New Primary School with associated infrastructure works at Land

South of Rolvenden Road,

(KCC/TW/0151/2012)

TW/12/1442

Cranbrook

Benenden,

"oljeoowapun
Kideap pue ‘Juswnbie jeuonel o) snoirsadwi ‘ebe||iA 8y} JO SMBIA 8} Uiim
4oNno} JO JNO 89 0} J|9s) UMOYS SBY [10UN0) ystied ay} jo Ayiolew syy ‘Aipeg

‘Al@yuyapul pjoy uo |ooyos
mau ayy Ind |im uoieoldde Buluueld sy} jo uoijoafal v "sieak jey e pue
1IN0y uee) pue 000'S/ L3 dWos }s0o sey uoneoldde Bujuue|d Jualind ay) — a)s

pJey2IO Y} JO UON}OB1INSSI OU 8 ||IM 31ay} Ajjeonsiieay uoleoldde Bujuueld
sy} Bunosles Jo suoneoldwi SNOIAGO 8Y} YIM 8|10u0dai 0} 8|gissoduwl si (91s)
JUspuauag ul [00yds mau e 1oy pasu Buissaid auy) Jo JInoAej) Ul Aisnowiueun aie
9\, JUBWaleIs 8y} DO O} JUSS S1ays| UoNs(qo puooas pue Jsiiy 8y} Yyjoq Ul

‘llod ysued mau e Joj o1ignd ay) woly S|jed pajsisal aney Aoyl e
‘SuU01309|89-Aq Jusdas om) Ul sajepipued dn ind Jou aney Aay] e

'SMaIA paulwJajepald J1ayy yim aaibe jou op jey; Jueoldde
ay) Aq apew sjuawsaje)s ay} jo Aue jdeooe 0} pasnjas aney Aoy e
‘anJiun A|qesjSuUoWap aJe SUOILaSSe Ulog o

‘Buiyesw puooas ay} 4oy UBAID sem

2o1jou ajenbapeul pue abe||IA 8y} J0 aAleUasaldal Jou a1em sbueaw
ay) Buikes ‘asay) passiwsip sey [Iouno) ysiled ay) uo Ajofew ayl

‘uonjeoldde Bujuueld ayy

10 JnoAey ul abeyIA 8y} Jo Ajuolew e moys Ales|o ‘uoneoldde Buiuued
Y} 90UIS POAISJaI S|Ilewd pue sIa)ie| pue ‘sbunesw olignd om]

"a)Is ainjsed 8y} Jo
JINOABJ Ul UoIUIdO JO BoUB|Eq B PAMOYS (10Z JOqUIBAON Ul Uolos|e-Aq e
g suonos|d 010z Aeln 2y} je uoluido olgnd }s83-a1 0} JoU 8S0YD ABY]
"abe||IA papIAIp
Aluens alow 8y} 1081}84 J0U PIp [IDUNOY By} UO Uoluldo Jo soueleq
aU3 Jey} pamoys ‘paselq pue pajeniul Asyy yoiym ‘lod L00Z UL e
(‘$:G mou s| pue |:g sem siy]) "a}is alnjsed ay} asoddo
oym Aplofew [10UNoD ysued e ‘900z AN @ouls ‘pey sey uspuausg
:Arewwns uj

‘paydacoe sem aj)is ainjsed ay) Buisooyo

DD o} suoseas Aay 8} JO BUON "881y} 0} SBJOA N0y Aq paaibe sem gL
0} DY Aq Juses uonewlojul mau 0} ssuodsal e Buiesw [1DUN0Y yslied ay) Iy
Z10Z 13qWidAoN 61

‘pajos|e Usaq sey ‘uoneoldde ayj spoddns oym ‘JojlouNoD Mau y “UoI08|e
-Aq pajseajuooun Ue sem a8y} Joj1ounoy Jayjoue jo uoneubisas ayy Buimoljo
2102 1390320 61

'SJ0|[I0UN0Y
Buisoddo ayj jo suo Aqg rewoe|q, se paquossp sem pue dnolb Buisoddo
Ay} Jo siapes| om} ay) Ag paubis jou sem siy] ‘jjod ysued e |jeo 0y uoniad

e paye)s Bunesw ay) Je esald sisuolysued “¢: Aq pejesyep sem Bunesw

Jaquiajdag ayj Je pasodoid winpusppe, 8y} Buesw [Puno) ysiied au} I
210Z 1990320 S1

‘uonjesljdde ayj asoddo jey} abejjia ay} ul sdnolb ||lews om) jo slopes| ay} 1o
j1ouno) ayy uo Ayuolew Buisoddo ayy Jayyie Aq pawodjam jou sem |jod ysued
Jayjoue [[e2 Jybiw siabej|in yey) uonsabbns ay] "SIy} J08|ja4 0} Jaya| uonos(qo
113y} O} Wwnpuappe, ue ssnasip o) paaibe pue uoleo)dde Buiuue|d ayy
painoaey uoiuido o1jgnd jeyy paydasoe Jieyd ay Bunesw [10UN0D ysied ayy Iy
Z10zZ 1oquiaydag /|

D1.63

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 72



Agenda ltem D2
Item D2

Extensions and alterations at St. Katherine's School,
Snodland - KCC/TM/0273/2012 (TM/12/2777)

A report by Head of Planning Applications Group to Planning Applications Committee on 11
December 2012.

Application by St. Katherine's School for extensions and alterations to existing office,
swimming pool and nursery buildings at St. Katherine's School, St. Katherine's Lane,
Snodland, Kent, ME6 5EJ - KCC/TM/0273/2012.

Recommendation: Permission be granted subject to conditions.

Local Member: Mrs Sarah Hohler Classification: Unrestricted

Site

1. St Katherine’s School is a primary school located in St Katherine’s Lane to the west of
Snodland. The school site is shared with a nursery to the east of the site. Holmesdale
Technology College is to the south east of the site and residential property adjoins other
areas of the school field. A map showing the location of the site in relation to its
surroundings is included.

Background

2. This application seeks to improve existing facilities at the site and to modernise the
teaching environment. There are three elements to the current proposal: an extension
to the existing school office allowing revisions to internal layout, reconfiguration of the
reception area, provision of a lobby, meeting / office area, kitchen and toilet facilities; an
extension to the existing swimming pool allowing a starter pool, improved toilet and
changing facilities and an extensions to the existing nursery buildings. The existing
nursery block, external play area and car park with new vehicular access was permitted
in 2004 (TM/04/02277).

3. Other recently approved planning applications at the school site have included the
erection of a staff planning preparation and assessment building and an extended hours
activity centre (TM/09/00263) which according to the applicant was completed in 2011;
a canopy (application reference TM/05/3666) and double garage (application reference
TM/06/4009).

4. The location of each of these three elements of the proposal is as shown in figure 2.
Proposal

5. It is proposed to extend the existing staff office block. The existing building is a single
storey flat roof building finished in brown brick and white UPVC windows with UPVC
weatherboard cladding above. The proposed extension would be approximately 7.5m
wide by 8.5m deep with a curved outer wall and would result in an additional footprint of
55m? which would also be single storey with a flat roof designed to match and naturally
assimilate with the existing building.

Page 73 D2.1



Item D2
Extensions and alterations at St. Katherine's School, Snodland -
KCC/TM/0273/2012 (TM/12/2777)

Figure 1 General Location Plan Figure 2 Location of proposed development

&;_\ .2 w
7 [RGTES
2\

imq 17y 5
' &
_lLlfr:mIJir Hmm"

. \///4/ Wiy {7 }I—//
“\Q\T:ﬁ%’% / e }q é@\t

Technology,
College
-~

S
— Sihipson poas
7 —==-. |

Uriance Sirvey, 4 fromn Copyrkds B, AL rihie ressrees Liencs minber. 59653443

6. It is also proposed to extend the existing swimming pool. The existing pool is detached,
single storey and a predominantly a white rendered building with red brick columns,
white UPVC windows and a gable end corrugated roof. It is proposed to extend this
extending approximately 5m from the south facing elevation across the full length of the
existing building (approximately 20m), thus providing an additional 100m? floor area in a
style designed to appear as a natural extension of the existing building.

7. It is also proposed to extend the existing nursery building. The existing building is
purpose built, single storey building with a mix of red and yellow brick, white UPVC
windows and gable roof with grey concrete tiles. It is proposed to extend the existing
building to the east onto a grassed area which is part of the school field. The extension
would provide additional internal floor space of 50m? for the nursery area which would
lead to a new glazed link allowing access to a new external play area (90m?) and also to
a further extended nursery area (80m?®) which would include additional toilet facilities.
The proposed extension would protrude 14m from the east elevation of the existing
building and would measure 13.5m from north to south. The ridge height proposed
would be 4.3m and it is proposed that the building would use matching materials,
massing, form and architectural design to the existing nursery building with the
exception of a glazed link at the rear and two curved feature windows extending from
the floor to the ceiling at the front of the proposed extended areas.

8. The application originally proposed that part of the nursery extension would be a
community hall for community use. The community use aspect is no longer proposed
and the description of the proposal has been amended accordingly. That part of the
proposal is now referred to as an “extended nursery area”. However, in relation to that
part of the proposed nursery extension it is intended by the applicant that the facility be
used during on weekdays only and not after 6.30pm. The applicant stated that during

Page 74 D2.2



item D2

Extensions and alterations at St. Katherine's School, Snodland -
KCC/TM/0273/2012 (TM/12/2777)

10.

11.

school hours it would be used by the School, serving as a dining space for the nursery
at lunch time and that it would also be used for reading groups and existing school clubs
and by the existing mother/toddler groups run at the school The applicant states that
these activities are not new and already occur at the school.

No increase to the existing school roll or teacher numbers is therefore being proposed
by the applicant. There are 28 part time staff and 55 full time staff and the applicant
states that the majority of these walk to school, whilst some get the bus and a minority
drive. The on-site parking provides for 25 spaces (including 1 disabled space) for staff
car parking in the upper school and 8 spaces (including 1 disabled space) at the nursery
(33 in total). There is no on-site car parking for parents to drop off or pick up.

There is a school roll of approximately 530 pupils (ages of 3 and 11). The proposal does
not include alteration to existing parking or access arrangements at the site.

Elevations have been submitted for each of the three elements of the proposal.
However, only elevations showing the proposed nursery element are included in this
report to aid discussion and consideration of the key issues raised by the proposed
nursery extension. Additional elevational details will be displayed at the Committee
meeting.

Figure 3 - Views of the front (northern elevation) and rear (southern and eastern
elevation) of nursery

Page 75 D2.3



Item D2
Extensions and alterations at St. Katherine's School, Snodland -
KCC/TM/0273/2012 (TM/12/2777)

Figure 4 Existing and proposed north and south nursery elevations

1T

Existing South Elevation Existing North Elevation

Froposed South Clavatfon

Figure 5 - View of the eastern elevation also showing the front of the building

Page 76 D24



Item D2
Extensions and alterations at St. Katherine's School, Snodland -
KCC/TM/0273/2012 (TM/12/2777)

Figure 6 Existing and proposed east and west nursery elevations

Existing east elevation

Existing west elevation

Proposed East Elevafon

Prapossd Wasl Eleation
1

Page 77 D2.5



Item D2
Extensions and alterations at St. Katherine's School, Snodland -
KCC/TM/0273/2012 (TM/12/2777)

Figure 7 Proposed nursery floor plan

Enclosed V_—:\’?f-—'—————l Fieceived - 30 July Z07Z |

lobby at front Flanning Applications Group Two curved feature
of nursery \ gr

'

o

| windows on North
elevation

BHNED JTeEE 1Y 0 @

C il
LSRET | )

g
i A

Two extended
areas to the
existing nursery
building

Planning Policy

12. The most relevant Government Guidance and Development Plan Policies are
summarised below and are pertinent to the consideration of this application:

(i) National Planning Policy and Guidance — the most relevant National Planning
Policies are set out in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) where
there is a presumption in favour of sustainable development. In relation to this
particular development proposal the following NPPF guidance is particularly
relevant:

Chapter 1 — building a strong, competitive economy
Chapter 4 — promoting sustainable transport
Chapter 7 — requiring good design

Chapter 8 — promoting healthy communities

Page 78 D2.6



item D2

Extensions and alterations at St. Katherine's School, Snodland -
KCC/TM/0273/2012 (TM/12/2777)

(i)

Chapter 11 — conserving and enhancing the natural environment

Planning Statement on planning for schools development - where there is
commitment for planning to work in a positive manner when dealing with
proposals for the creation, expansion and alteration of state-funded schools and
that there should be a presumption in favour of the sustainable development of
state-funded schools as expressed in the NPPF.

Regional Development Plan policies, contained in the adopted South East
Plan (2009):

Policy CC1 Seeks to achieve and maintain sustainable development.

Policy CC4 Seeks to encourage development that incorporates sustainable
design and construction

Policy CC6 Seeks to create sustainable and distinctive communities

Policy BE1 Seeks to promote development that contributes to local character and
sense of place.

Policy S1 Supports the development of healthy communities.

Policy S3 Supports adequate provision and access to education facilities.

Policy C5 Seeks to encourage increased and sustainable participation in sport
and recreation.

Policy C6 Seeks to encourage mixed use of community facilities where
appropriate.

Borough/ District Local Plan / Local Development Framework policies,
contained in the Tonbridge and Malling Borough Local Development Framework
development plan document (2010) and the Core Strategy (2007)

Policy OS1a Seeks to prevent the loss of recreational open space.
Policy CP1 Encourages high quality development.
Policy CP2 Seeks to encourage more sustainable transport patterns.
Policy CP24 Encourages development designed to respect the site and
surroundings.
Policy CP26 Safeguards land for provision of community needs and
recreation.

Consultations

13. Tonbridge & Malling Borough Council (TMBC): Raises objections to the proposals
due to concerns about exacerbating existing traffic concerns in the vicinity.

Snodland Town Council: Requested the deletion of the wording for community use of
the hall from the application and raised concerns about lack of parking. (Note the
community use is no longer part of the proposal).

Kent Highways and Transportation: Does not object to the proposal subject to
conditions regarding the provision of construction vehicle loading/unloading and turning
facilities prior to commencement of work on site and for the duration of construction;
provision of parking facilities for site personnel and visitors prior to commencement of
work on site and for the duration of construction; provision of measures to prevent
discharge of surface water onto the highway; and provision of wheel washing facilities

Page 79 D2.7



item D2

Extensions and alterations at St. Katherine's School, Snodland -
KCC/TM/0273/2012 (TM/12/2777)

prior to the commencement of work on site and for the duration of construction.

Sport England: No objection.

Biodiversity: Comment that the proposal has limited potential to impact protected
species and that there are small trees on site which may be used by breeding birds
which are preotceted under the Wildlife and Countryside Act. Works would need to take
account of that. They also suggest enhancements to biodiversity might be incorporated
such as bat bricks or tiles, bird boxes.

Environment Agency: No objections

Force Crime Prevention Design Advisor: No comments received.

Public Rights of Way (West Kent PROW Team): No comments received.

Local Member

14.

The local County Member, Mrs Sarah Hohler was notified of the application on 21
September 2012. Mrs Hohler responded that in her opinion parking is an issue which
she would like to see addressed and that the application is an opportunity to address
traffic congestion in St Katherine’s Lane. Mrs Hohler also requested that the community
use of the proposal be clarified. Further information on the proposal from the applicant
and the removal of community use, have clarified the matters raised by Mrs Hohler.

Publicity

15.

The application was publicised by the posting of two site notice(s), and the individual
notification of 56 neighbouring residential properties. It has also been advertised on the
County Council’'s website. Following additional clarification and information from the
applicant, further neighbour notification was carried out to those that originally
responded.

Representations

16.

17.

In response to the original publicity, 6 neighbour letters of representation have been
received. A response was also received from the Borough Councillor for Snodland
West. All neighbour responses expressed concerns about the traffic, congestion,
parking and highway safety. Three responses also related to the original proposed
community use. One response also had further concerns about visual impact of the
proposed community hall and one additionally had concerns about the extent of public
consultation. That is addressed above.

With regard to traffic and highways matters, neighbour concerns were about traffic
congestion; volume of traffic and the potential for increased impacts from the
development (in particular community use); the need for additional car parking on site
and off road and before further buildings are allowed on site; inconsiderate parking and
congestion; adequacy of current on site parking arrangements for the number of site
personnel and use of on site street parking for this; emergency services access to the
school; effectiveness of parking enforcement.

Page 80 D2.8



item D2

Extensions and alterations at St. Katherine's School, Snodland -
KCC/TM/0273/2012 (TM/12/2777)

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

With regard to the community use of the proposed hall, concerns were about the need
for the facility, potential impacts of noise, anti-social behaviour, hours, usage and
impact on highway.

With regard to visual impact the concern related to the need for the proposal, the
change in view and the adequacy of screening of the proposed extension to nursery
building.

In addition, the Borough Councillor for Snodland West regarded the proposal as an
opportunity to look at current and future parking issues at the school and alleviate the
very worst of the problems, including by provision of a child drop off point within the
school or creation of a lay-by in St Katherine’s Lane.

Following amendments to the application further notifications were carried out which
resulted in further comments from the Borough Councillor regarding the
appropriateness of addressing parking and highway issues, and urging KCC to address
these issues at the same time as improving the school environment and to use this
application to improve highway safety at the site.

One further comment was received as a result of further neighbour notification following
amendments to the application. That related to the visual impact of the development
from the properties at 32 and 34 St Katherine’s Lane.

Discussion

23.

In considering this proposal regard must be had to the Development Plan Policies
outlined in paragraph 12 above. Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act (2004) states that applications must be determined in accordance with the
Development Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Therefore the
proposal needs to be considered in the context of the Development Plan Policies,
Government Guidance and other material planning considerations arising from
consultation and publicity. In my opinion, the key planning considerations in this
particular case can be summarised within the following headings:

Need

24.

25.

The overall proposal aims to improve the existing facilities at the school to allow
continual improvement of what the applicant describes as “outdated” facilities and to
improve the teaching environment. The School seeks cost effective, attractive and
durable development which improves upon the existing accommodation at the site and
which therefore contributes to improvements of the teaching and learning environment.

The original proposal included community use (by community groups and non school
affiliated groups) as part of the proposed extension to the nursery building. That aspect
of the proposal has been removed from the application and so addresses neighbour
concerns regarding the need within Snodland for an additional community hall. The
proposal does not include wider community use of the proposed swimming pool
extension, beyond the current school use.

Page 81 D2.9



item D2

Extensions and alterations at St. Katherine's School, Snodland -
KCC/TM/0273/2012 (TM/12/2777)

26.

Planning policy seeks to encourage Schools to adapt and improve their facilities and for
the planning system to operate in a positive manner when dealing with school
applications. In my view, this objective needs to be balanced against the likely impacts
of the proposal in the decision making process.

Location

27.

28.

29.

Planning policy seeks to promote healthy communities and open space together with
opportunity for sport and recreation as this contributes to the health and well being of
communities. Planning policy also seeks to prevent the loss of recreational and open
space. In particular, TMBC planning policies seek to prevent the loss of outdoor sports
facilities and parts of the St Katherine’s School site fall within the scope of this policy.
However, TMBC do not object to the proposal on these policy grounds. Sport England
has also considered the proposal in the context of playing field policy which also seeks
to protect playing fields and outdoor sports facilities from development. Their view is
that the proposed office extension is on a small site area not big enough to
accommodate playing pitch and that an appropriate policy exception applies in this case
in relation to the proposal to extend the swimming pool and nursery buildings. The
benefit to sport provided by the proposed swimming pool extension in their view would
outweigh any detriment caused by loss of potential sports facility where the proposed
nursery extension is located. Sport England therefore does not object to this proposal.

Balanced against policy which seeks to protect open space from development is the
need to support healthy communities and to provide adequate educational facilities. In
my opinion, this proposal contributes to both of these policy objectives and the location
of each of the three aspects to this proposal is acceptable in these policy terms.

The location of the proposed extension to the existing school office and swimming pool
has not attracted any neighbour objection. However, the location of the proposed
nursery extension has attracted neighbour concern in relation to visual impact of the
proposal and screening. The impacts of the proposal are further discussed below.

Impact of this proposal on the highway

30.

31.

St Katherine’s Lane is a busy suburban road running between Malling Road and Birling
Road. It is also a bus route. Figure 8 below shows the general setting and illustrates
that travelling west from Malling Road along St Katherine’s Lane there is a bend in the
road beyond which there are double yellow lines, “on road” parking areas, the nursery
entrance where there are yellow zig zag lines. Further beyond there is another “on road”
parking area, the main school entrance, further zig zag lines, a bus stop and keep clear
signage on the road.

Figure 9 shows that from the west travelling towards the Malling Road there is a mix of

single yellow and double yellow lines, a bus stop and the junction for Orchard Way,
close to the nursery entrance.

Page 82 D2.10



item D2

Extensions and alterations at St. Katherine's School, Snodland -
KCC/TM/0273/2012 (TM/12/2777)

Figure 8 Views of St Katherine’s Lane from the east to the west

Figure 9 Views of St Katherine’s Lane from the west to east and the main school
entrance

32.

33.

Inconsiderate driving and illegal parking issues are well illustrated by neighbour
representations received, which also describe issues such as poor access for buses
and emergency services. Neighbours indicate concerns about the potential increase to
traffic impacts including congestion, access difficulties and concerns that the existing
situation would be made worse with this proposal. Some of these concerns were
expressed at the early stages of the application when it included proposals for
community use of part of the nursery extension (referred to at that stage as a “proposed
hall’) although other concerns related to traffic and congestion generally at the school
and as such represented what neighbours perceive as the existing situation, which in
their view would be worsened by the proposal.

TMBC raised objections to the proposals because in their view there is potential for the
traffic concerns in the vicinity to be exacerbated and there was insufficient information
about the use. However, in response to these concerns the applicant has amended the
proposal and confirmed that it would not be used as a community hall by the general
public. The applicant therefore proposes that the development would have negligible
impact on the existing parking situation and traffic generation at the site and that the
existing on site car parking spaces together with the existing on street car parking
provision would comfortably accommodate this. In responding to the concerns about
highways issues, the applicant has stated that the proposals are not intended to

Page 83 D2.11



item D2

Extensions and alterations at St. Katherine's School, Snodland -
KCC/TM/0273/2012 (TM/12/2777)

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

accommodate any increase in pupils, teacher or other staff at the school and that the
existing school and nursery roll would not change.

The School is already well aware of current issues in relation to parking at the beginning
and end of the school day and of complaints from residents about their driveways being
blocked by inconsiderate parking, difficulties with using the footpaths and also the
reliance on the car. The updated school Travel Plan submitted describes these issues
which appear to have been ongoing for a number of years.

The Travel Plan also includes general aims to reduce the volume of vehicles on the
school run, improvement of the safety of children as they walk to school and to raise
awareness of the benefits of walking. It includes targets and monitoring for the
reduction of car use and to increase walking and cycling to school. This seeks positive
and ongoing improvements.

It has been suggested by the Borough Councillor for Snodland West that this planning
proposal provides an opportunity for addressing the existing parking issues at the site
and to explore new ideas so as to alleviate the very worst of the likely future parking
problems. Suggestions have been made that a safe child drop off point might be
provided within the school grounds or that that a lay-by could be formed outside the
school so as to allow two way traffic to use the road at peak times. These additional
works would involve significant additional engineering works and are not part of the
current proposals.

The applicant in considering these suggestions submits that it would be unreasonable in
planning terms to request construction of new car parks or drop off zones within the
school grounds as part of this particular proposal as the proposal has no bearing on
pupil or staff numbers or on increased traffic generation. The applicant has not
therefore included any amendments to the existing parking regime at the school within
the proposal. The application will therefore need to be decided on this basis.

National planning policy guidance on promoting sustainable transport is that
development should only be prevented or refused on transport grounds where the
cumulative impacts of development are severe.

Local planning policy CP2 seeks to ensure that new development likely to generate a
significant number of trips is well located and is compatible with the character and
capacity of the highways network in terms of the volume and nature of traffic generated
and provides any necessary enhancements to the safety of the highways network.
Whilst this proposal is new development it relates to existing use as a school site and is
not likely to generate a significant number of trips. This proposal would not lead to any
long term increase to the number of highway users to and from the site and the existing
access arrangements (ie design and function) have already been granted permission by
virtue of previous development.

In my opinion, in deciding this application, consideration needs to be given to whether it
is reasonable to withhold planning approval based on a desire for the proposal to be
much more proactive in addressing concerns regarding the existing traffic and highways
environment. This needs to be balanced against national planning policy to deliver
facilities needed by the community, such as improvements to schools and policy
encouragement for planning to look to solutions rather than problems; seeking to

Page 84 D2.12



item D2

Extensions and alterations at St. Katherine's School, Snodland -
KCC/TM/0273/2012 (TM/12/2777)

41.

42.

43.

approve applications for sustainable development where possible and working
proactively with applicants to secure developments that improve the area. In this
context, the applicant has amended the proposal to exclude any additional traffic that
may have been created by community use of the hall and provided an updated School
Travel Plan.

The advice from the Development Planning Manager (Highways and Transportation) is
that whilst there is already significant congestion and indiscriminate parking at the start
and end of the school day on St Katherine’s Lane and neighbouring roads, the proposal
is unlikely to lead to any substantial increase in traffic flows during the peak school start
and finish times. That is because the information within the application indicates that
there would be no increase to the school roll, the school numbers or the visitors arising
from the proposal. Furthermore the advice is that there would not be sufficient grounds
to recommend refusal on highway grounds because of this and that conditions could be
used to control the provision of construction vehicle loading/unloading and turning
facilities prior to commencement of work on site and for the duration of construction;
provision of parking facilities for site personnel and visitors prior to commencement of
work on site and for the duration of construction; provision of measures to prevent
discharge of surface water onto the highway and provision of wheel washing facilities
prior to the commencement of work on site and for the duration of construction. Should
the school numbers increase additional information on the parking and access
arrangements for parents and guardians would be required.

On balance therefore, the proposal would not be likely to result in a material increase to
traffic needing to access the site, other than for the short term duration in relation to site
construction works and | am satisfied that this can be adequately controlled via
condition. The applicant has made amendments to the proposal removing community
use; clarified the purpose of the proposal and provided assurances that there would be
no impact to the school roll and therefore no additional long term traffic generation as a
result of this particular proposal.

In considering the scale of the proposal in this location and the potential for additional
impact, together with the technical advice from the Development Planning Manager
(Highways and Transportation), | am satisfied that the proposal is in accordance with
Development Plan policy and that it would not be reasonable to refuse permission on
the basis of the highway impacts of the proposal in this particular case.

Impacts in terms of good design, healthy communities, visual and residential amenity

44,

45.

46.

The visual impact of the proposed extension to the existing school office and swimming
pool has not attracted any neighbour objection. However one neighbour indicated
concern about its visual impact and adequacy of screening of the proposed nursery
extension. This issue relates to good design, visual and residential amenity.

The existing school and nursery buildings are set back from the highway and are largely
screened by a mature hedge and tree line, although in places particularly at the newer
entrance to the nursery which was permitted in 2004, screening is less well established
and there are clear views to the existing nursery and entrance arrangement.

The proposed extension to the east of the existing nursery is single storey and would be
set back from the current principal elevation. It would protrude 14m in two staggered

Page 85 D2.13



item D2

Extensions and alterations at St. Katherine's School, Snodland -
KCC/TM/0273/2012 (TM/12/2777)

47.

48.

49.

50.

sections (6m and 8m). The ridge height would be lower than the existing nursery and
the proposal uses matching materials, and design in massing and form. The two floor to
ceiling curved feature windows would be modern but well positioned. The existing
nursery porch would be enclosed by a new lobby which would update the appearance of
that building.

To the east of the proposed nursery extension, the nearest properties are approximately
40m from the proposed building. However, between the school field and these
properties is close board fencing and a mature tree line which in my view provides
adequate screening to the east elevation.

To the north, the nearest properties are numbers 36, 34, 32, and 30 St Katherine’s
Lane. These are approximately 45m from the proposed buildings (measured to the front
of the building). Numbers 34 and 32 are directly opposite the existing nursery entrance
and the current views would change as a result of this proposal. The main effect would
be to reduce the extent of open school playing field visible beyond the existing access
gate. The current view of a relatively open green school field would need to also
incorporate the proposed nursery extension building. However, planning policy does not
provide a right to keep an unaltered view. The proposed extension would be largely
within the same line of vision of the existing drop kerb and access and in my view would
not be out of keeping with the street scene.

National planning policy requires good design and positive contributions to making
better places for people and this includes making developments visually attractive as a
result of good architecture and appropriate landscaping. In my opinion, care has been
taken to ensure that the proposal is well designed. It incorporates the existing building
form as well as introducing a more modern appearance by use of curved glass
windows. It would be set back and subservient to the existing frontage and would not
result in a bringing forward of the current building line.

However, no new planting has been proposed by the applicant as part of this proposal.
In response to concerns about screening, the applicant has advised that whilst it would
be willing to implement further natural screening in the form of hedges and trees along
the boundary of the field with St Katherine’s Lane, in their view it is not necessary as the
proposal would not detract from the visual amenity of the area. However, given the
change in aspect, and also the apparent failure of previous planting in the bank of the
school field alongside the nursery access, in my view additional screening should be
encouraged as a positive improvement to the proposal. This can be dealt with by
condition requiring further submission.

Page 86 D2.14



Item D2
Extensions and alterations at St. Katherine's School, Snodland -
KCC/TM/0273/2012 (TM/12/2777)

Figure 10 View of school field from the corner of Orchard Drive near to number 36 St
Katherine’s Lane, looking south east towards the existing nursery building

Figure 11 View from the school field toward property on St Katherine’s Lane

51. Concerns have also been expressed about increased potential for increased anti-social
behaviour as a result of the proposal. This relates to planning and promoting healthy
communities. Given the location within the school grounds and the removal of
community use from the proposal, in my opinion the amended proposal would not
undermine the quality of life or community cohesion as a result of increasing the
potential for crime and disorder.

Conclusion

52. In summary, | consider that on balance the proposal accords with the general aims and
objectives of national and local planning policy in relation to transport, requiring good
design, and promoting healthy communities. It respects the character and quality of the
area and the location, scale, design and quality of each element of the proposal would
not, in my view, be significantly detrimental to the built environment, highway network or
to residential and visual amenity. The parking and highway congestion in the area is an

Page 87 D2.15



item D2

Extensions and alterations at St. Katherine's School, Snodland -
KCC/TM/0273/2012 (TM/12/2777)

ongoing issue of concern but one which in my view should be addressed outside the
determination of this particular planning proposal as the development would not result in
an increase in the existing school roll or teaching staff. | consider that this proposal
accords with the development plan and that there are no material planning
considerations that indicate that planning permission should be withheld. | would
however recommend the inclusion of various planning conditions.

Recommendation

53. | RECOMMEND that PERMISSION BE GRANTED SUBJECT TO the imposition of
conditions covering (amongst other matters) the following:

The standard 5 year time limit,

That the development be carried out in accordance with submitted details,

That a scheme of landscaping be submitted prior to commencement of the nursery
extension,

Restriction on the hours of operation of the proposed nursery extension from
07.30am to 6.30pm Monday to Friday only,

Restriction on the hours of working during construction to between 0800 and 1800
Monday to Friday and between the hours of 0900 to 1300 Saturdays with no
operation on Sundays or Bank Holidays,

Restriction of the development to school use only as described in the application,
Submission of details of construction access, construction vehicle loading,
unloading, turning, circulation and parking for the duration of the construction
works, prior to commencement of work on site,

Restoration and making good of any disturbed areas of field or planting,

Provision of parking facilities for site personnel and visitors for the duration of
construction works, prior to commencement of work on site,

Provision of measures to prevent the discharge of surface water onto the highway
prior to the commencement of the development,

Provision of wheel washing facilities prior to commencement of work on site and for
the duration of construction,

Implementation of the School Travel Plan, and

Protection to breeding birds.

| Case Officer: H Mallett Tel. no: 01622 221075

| Background Documents: see section heading

Page 88 D2.16



Agenda Item D3

item D3
Retrospective application for two chalet style buildings -
Cliftonville Primary School, Margate - KCC/TH/0291/2012

(TH/12/755)
N

A report by Head of Planning Applications Group to Planning Applications Committee on 11
December 2012

Application by Cliftonville Primary School for the provision of two timber framed chalet style
buildings for the specialised mentoring of pupils away from the main stream teaching
environment at Cliftonville Primary School, Northumberland Avenue, Margate — TH/12/755
(KCC/TH/0291/2012)

Recommendation: Permission be granted subject to conditions

Local Member(s): Mr C Wells and Mr M Jarvis Classification: Unrestricted

Site

1. Cliftonville Primary School is located off Northumberland Avenue, which in turn is
located off Northdown Road, to the east of Margate Town Centre. The school opened
in January 1976 and now has 630 pupils and 52 children in the nursery. The school site
is surrounded by residential properties to the north and east and to the south is located
Laleham Gap School. To the west of the school site is the school’s playing field which
is effectively split by the old Margate tram track, which is now a path used by
pedestrians.

2. The school buildings are located to the middle of the school site with the juniors
playground located to the north of these buildings. The distance from the residential
properties in Northdown Road to the school’'s boundary is between 18 and 20 metres.
However there is a high boarded fence and mature trees and other vegetation, including
evergreens, which provides a good level of screening between the rear gardens of the
residential properties and the school.

3. There are no site specific land designations within the Development Plan in association
with the site.

Background

4. An email was originally sent to Thanet District Council regarding the number and quality
of out-buildings that had been erected at the school, seemingly without planning
permission. This email was forwarded to Kent County Council’s Planning Applications
Group, where this query was investigated. It was found that the School had indeed
erected in total seven such buildings, albeit incrementally (one in the north-west corner
and six in the north-east corner), without applying for planning permission.

Page 89 D3.1



item D3

Application for two timber chalet style buildings at the Cliftonville

Primary School, Margate- TH/12/755

Cliftonville Primary School, Margate

School

, & Laleham Gap
T

Survey 100019238

Crown Copyright and database right 2011

Ordnance

100

0 25 850

D3.2

Page 90



item D3

Application for two timber chalet style buildings at the Cliftonville

Primary School, Margate- TH/12/755

D3.3

Page 91



item D3

Application for two timber chalet style buildings at the Cliftonville
Primary School, Margate- TH/12/755

/ /
//
/ /
/ Fi
/
y
S / 4
/ / /
/ /
/ /
Q
) ¢
L > S
k| ) ) B
L)
1
. ®)

Lol

Page 92

D3.4



item D3

Application for two timber chalet style buildings at the Cliftonville
Primary School, Margate- TH/12/755

However, it must be pointed out that Schools do have certain permitted development
rights, which means that some buildings can be erected without the need to obtain a
specific planning permission, subject to certain parameters. Those include (in this
particular case) that no building should be within 5 metres of the school boundary;
should not exceed 5 metres in height and the cumulative gross floor area of any
buildings erected should not exceed 100 square metres. There are other parameters
but they do not apply in this particular case.

Therefore, out of the seven buildings that have been identified on site, four of the
buildings would fall under the permitted rights as they are located more than 5 metres
away from the school boundary and consequently do not require planning permission.
These four buildings include one small sectional garage, one small sectional concrete
store and two small timber buildings. These four buildings measure approximately
between 9.3 square metres and 16 square metres and therefore do not exceed the
gross external floorspace of 100 square metres. One building, a small sectional
concrete garage was granted planning permission under planning permission
TH/07/681 and was relocated from another location within the playground The
remaining two buildings are located within 5 metres of the school boundary and are
therefore not covered by the general planning permission bestowed by the permitted
development rights. These two buildings are both timber framed chalet style buildings
and a specific planning permission has now been sought for them.

Proposal

7.

Cliftonville Primary School is applying for retrospective planning permission for the
installation on site of two timber framed chalet style buildings. One chalet is known as
the ‘Behaviours Mentors’ building and measures 3 metres by 4 metres and is 3 metres
in height to the apex of the building. At its closest point it is located only 2 metres away
for the school’'s boundary, which backs onto the pedestrian path to the west of the
school site. The other chalet is known as the ‘Learning Mentors’ building and measures
4.5 metres by 6.5 metres and is 3.3 metres in height to the apex of the building. At its
closest point it measures 3.3 metres from the playground fence but beyond this fence
there is a further 1 metre or so to the residential boundary that backs onto the school
site. The additional accommodation is required by the School as there is insufficient
space within the main school to provide specialised mentoring to address learning and
behaviour of challenging pupils away from the main stream teaching environment. The
chalets have been installed on the site for a period of over 3 years, having been
installed on site during February and July 2009. Both timber framed chalet style
buildings are of similar appearance and are constructed in sustainable materials and
blend in with other surrounding features. The location of the chalet buildings behind
high boarded fencing and mature trees was chosen so as not to be visible from the
residential areas which border the school.

Planning Policy

8.

The most relevant Government Guidance and Development Plan Policies summarised
below are appropriate to the consideration of this application:

(i) National Planning Policy and Guidance — the most relevant National planning
policies and policy guidance are set out in:

Page 93 D3.5



item D3
Application for two timber chalet style buildings at the Cliftonville
Primary School, Margate- TH/12/755

National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) sets out the Government’s
planning policy guidance for England and as guidance is a material consideration
for the determination of planning applications. It does not change the statutory
status of the development plan which remains the starting point for decision
making. The NPPF replaces the maijority of the Planning Policy Guidance Notes
(PPGs) and Planning Policy Statements (PPSs).

The NPPF contains a presumption in favour of sustainable development. The new
Framework also refers to the UK Sustainable Development Strategy Securing the
Future which sets out 5 guiding principles for sustainable development: living within
the planet's environmental limits; ensuring a strong, healthy and just society,
achieving a sustainable economy; promoting good governance and using sound
science responsibly. In terms of the planning system, the NPPF identifies that
there are 3 dimensions to sustainable development which create 3 overarching
roles in the planning system - economic, social and environmental. These roles are
mutually dependent. Within the over-arching roles there are 12 core principles that
planning should achieve. These can be summarised as:

e be genuinely plan-led;

e a creative exercise in finding ways to enhance and improve the places people
live their lives;

e proactively drive and support sustainable economic development;

e secure high quality design and a good standard of amenity;

o take account of the different roles and character of different areas, including
protecting Green Belts, recognising the intrinsic character and beauty of the
countryside and supporting thriving rural communities;

e support the transition to a low carbon future, taking account of flood risk and
costal change and encourage the reuse of existing resources and the
development of renewable energy;

e contribute to conserving and enhancing the natural environment and reducing
pollution

e encourage the effective use of land by reusing brownfield land, providing that it
is not of high environmental value;

e promote mixed use developments;

e conserve heritage assets;

¢ manage patterns of growth to make fullest use of public transport, walking and
cycling; and focus significant development in locations which can be made
sustainable; and

o take account of strategies to improve health, social and cultural well being, and
deliver sufficient community and cultural facilities and services to meet local
needs.

In terms of delivering sustainable development in relation to this development
proposal, the following NPPF guidance is particularly relevant:

e Chapter 4 (Promoting sustainable transport);
e Chapter 7 (Requiring good design);and
e Chapter 8 (Promoting healthy communities);

The Framework also requires that local planning authorities should look for
solutions rather than problems. It states that those determining applications should
seek to approve applications for sustainable development where possible.

Page 94 D3.6



item D3
Application for two timber chalet style buildings at the Cliftonville
Primary School, Margate- TH/12/755

Policy Statement on Planning for Schools Development (August 2011) is also
relevant, in so far as it identifies that there should be a presumption in favour of the
development of state funded schools.

(ii) Development Plan Policies
The South East Plan (2009) Policies:
Policy CC1 Seeks to achieve and maintain sustainable development in the region.

Policy CC4 Seeks new development to adopt sustainable construction standards
and techniques.

Policy CC6 Seeks sustainable and distinctive communities that respect the
character of settlements and landscapes, and achieve a high quality
built environment.

Policy S3 Seeks to ensure the adequate provision of pre-school, school, and
community learning facilities.

Important note concerning the South East Plan:

Members will already be aware of the relevant South East Plan policy considerations in
relation to the proposed development, in that The Plan was revoked and later reinstated
pending the enactment of the Localism Bill. Members will also be aware that they have
to have regard to the policies in the SEP and the Government’s intention to abolish the
Regional Spatial Strategies (RSS) as material considerations. However the weight to be
accorded is a matter for the decision makers. Members will note that the Localism Bill
has now been enacted; however the SEP remains in effect until such time as the
Government complete the formal process of revoking the Plan

The adopted 2006 Thanet District Local Plan:

Policy D1 All new development is required to provide high quality and inclusive
design, sustainability, layout and materials.

Consultations
9. Thanet District Council: Raises no objection.
Local Members

10. The local County Members, Mr Michael Jarvis and Mr Chris Wells, were notified of the
application on the 14 September 2012. Mr Jarvis has written in confirming that he is in
support of the planning application.

Publicity

11. The application was advertised by the posting of a site notice and the notification of 19
neighbours.

Page 95 D3.7



item D3
Application for two timber chalet style buildings at the Cliftonville
Primary School, Margate- TH/12/755

Representations

12. One letter of representation has been received, objecting to the application. The letter
is summarised below:

¢ No objection to the use of the chalets but the objection is with the location.
Planning parameters have obviously not been adhered to.

¢ With one timber building only being 2 metres from the boundary and the other having
a footprint of approximately 6.5 metres by 4.5 metres and standing over 3 metres
high to the apex these buildings are quiet imposing structures to be in such close
proximity to neighbouring boundaries.

o Parameters for building size and location have obviously been set for a good reason
and would like the parameter regarding ‘distance from a school boundary’ to be
upheld as it is currently unacceptable.

o If the School were to agree to have these structures relocated the correct distance
away from neighbouring properties then the objection would be withdrawn.

Discussion

13. In considering this proposal regard must be had to Development Plan Policies outlined
in paragraph (8) above. Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
(2004) states that applications must be determined in accordance with the Development
Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Therefore, this proposal needs
to be considered in the context of Development Plan Policies, Government Guidance
and other material planning considerations arising from consultation and publicity.

14. This application has been reported for determination by the Planning Applications
Committee following the receipt of an objection from one local resident. The main issue
relating to this application is that the two chalet style buildings have been erected within
5 metres of the school’s boundary without planning permission.

15. The application has been submitted as retrospective, as the two chalet style buildings
have already been on the school site for over 3 years. Both of these locations are to
the perimeter of the school site and are mostly obscured from view by the boundary
treatment and high boarded fencing.

Location and design

16. The two chalet style buildings have been erected on this school site because there is
insufficient space within the main school to provide specialised mentoring to address
learning and behaviour difficulties of challenging pupils away from the main stream
teaching environment. The locations of both buildings was chosen by the School so as
to limit the impact on the playground and its capacity to provide the maximum hard
surface area to afford its use by 360 junior pupils during designated periods (there are a
further 270 infant aged pupils at the school who use the designated infant playground).
Indeed the ‘Learning Mentors’ chalet is located next to the group of five small buildings
and garages that are mentioned in paragraph 6. This group of buildings have been
located in an unused area of the playground and have been bunched together to reduce
the overall impact of them within the juniors playground. However as mentioned
previously, it is only the ‘Learning Mentors’ building within this group of buildings that is
the subject of this planning permission and backs directly onto the residential between
the school and the residential properties to the north of the site. The other chalet style

Page 96 D3.8



item D3

Application for two timber chalet style buildings at the Cliftonville
Primary School, Margate- TH/12/755

17.

18.

19.

building, the ‘Behaviour Mentors’, is located to the north west corner of the site and
backs onto the pedestrian path that runs to the west of the school site. There is a
housing development on the other side of the pedestrian path, which is located some 15
metres away from this chalet building.

The one objection letter that has been received does not object to the usage of these
chalet style buildings, but to their location, and if these two buildings were to be moved
to beyond 5 metres of the school boundary, then the objection would be withdrawn.
The School was asked to comment on whether these building could be moved beyond
this distance but concluded that it would be difficult to find another suitable location that
did not compromise the use of the junior play ground. If the two buildings were to be
moved forward then they would require additional supervisory staff during play time to
ensure potential hidden areas behind the buildings are continuously observed at all
times of the day, for health and safety reasons of pupils. The School also concluded
that it would also hinder, if not prevent, access by emergency service vehicles that
would be required to travel the playground when approaching the teaching blocks on
the school site. More importantly, the playground is currently set out and used for
netball practice and matches with other Schools. Should the buildings have to be
relocated then the netball court would be compromised and matches could no longer
take place. Additionally PE and other ball games would also be affected.

The School has confirmed that it carefully chose these two positions so that the
buildings were well protected from view by the boundary’s semi mature trees and
hedging, and that they did not affect the visual amenity of the surrounding area beyond
the school site nor reduce the playing area of the juniors’ playground. The School
concluded that there is no other suitable location for the buildings, which are an
important aid in providing small group teaching areas and if removed they would
seriously affect the support presently given to pupils with special needs.

Given the constraints of the site in terms of playing space, the high number of school
pupils that attend this school, the lack of a suitable alternative site to move the two
chalet style buildings to, and the fact that the boundary between the school and the
adjoining residential properties is already heavily planted with mature vegetation (even
during the winter period, therefore affording very limited views of the chalet style
building | see no substantive reason to refuse the application on the grounds of siting
and design.

Conclusion

20.

The retrospective planning application is for a relatively minor development which has
been brought about due to circumstances and the constraints of the site. Both the
chalets buildings are well screened from the neighbouring properties offering very
limited views of the buildings, even during the winter months and the School has
confirmed that there are no other suitable places within the school grounds for these
chalets to be relocated to without seriously affecting the playground and emergency
access routes. The chalet style buildings have been in place for over 3 years without
causing undue detriment to the area in terms of any visual effect and | see no planning
land use reasons to move them from their current locations.

Page 97 D3.9



item D3

Application for two timber chalet style buildings at the Cliftonville
Primary School, Margate- TH/12/755

Recommendation
21. | RECOMMEND that PERMISSION BE GRANTED subject to the following condition:

e The chalet buildings to be removed from the site in the event of these buildings no
longer being needed for the use applied for.

Case officer — Lidia Cook 01622 221063

Background documents - See section heading

Page 98 D3.10



Agenda ltem E1

E1 COUNTY MATTER APPLICATIONS AND DETAILS PURSUANT
PERMITTED/APPROVED/REFUSED UNDER DELEGATED POWERS -
MEMBERS’ INFORMATION

Since the last meeting of the Committee, the following matters have been determined by me
under delegated powers:-

Background Documents - The deposited documents.

AS/12/813/RVAR Details pursuant to conditions 10 (sustainable design and
construction), 12 (dust and odour controls), 13 (site waste
management plan) and 14 (construction management plan) of
planning permission AS/12/813 for a Household Waste
Recycling Centre and Waste Transfer Station.

Ashford HWRC, Cobbs Wood Industrial Estate, Brunswick
Road, Ashford

CA/12/606 Infilling of open lagoons formally used for the disposal of
tannery waste.
Oldridge Wood Lagoons, Swanton Lane, Off Canterbury Road,
Littlebourne, Canterbury

SW/10/774/R6 Details of a plan for the protection and mitigation of protected
species pursuant to condition (6) of planning permission
SW/10/774.

Land at Ridham Dock, Ridham

SW/10/774/R16(i) Archaeological evaluation details pursuant to condition 16(i) of
planning permission SW/10/774.
Land at Ridham Dock, Ridham

SW/10/774/R20 Details of a bird collision plan pursuant to condition (20) of
planning permission SW/10/774.
Land at Ridham Dock, Ridham

SW/12/1001 Formation of improved access road and associated
development to serve Kemsley Sustainable Energy Plant.
Land at Kemsley Paper Mill, Kemsley, Sittingbourne

SW/12/1132 Extension to wood storage area and improvements to site
access at the approved Ridham Biomass power plant
(planning permission SW/10/774).
Ridham Dock, lwade, Sittingbourne

TM/09/3231/R16 Request for the approval of the Waste Planning Authority to
open the facility on 26 December (Boxing Day) 2012 for the
receipt of waste deliveries and the shredding of incoming
material pursuant to condition 16 of planning permission
TM/09/3231.

New Earth Composting Facility, Blaise Farm Quarry, Kings Hill,
West Malling

E1
Page 99



TM/11/2275/RVAR

Details of noise assessment, hard and soft landscaping and
lighting pursuant to conditions 17, 18, 19, 25 and 27 of
planning permission TM/11/2275 for a recycled aggregate and
topsoil production facility incorporating a primary aggregate,
recycled aggregate and topsoil depot.

Land at Sanderson Way, Tonbridge

E2 COUNTY COUNCIL DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS AND DETAILS

PURSUANT PERMITTED/APPROVED UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

MEMBERS’ INFORMATION

Since the last meeting of the Committee, the following matters have been determined by me

under delegated powers:-

Background Documents — The deposited documents.

AS/11/994/R15 & R21

AS/12/1061

CA/10/1790/R18 & R22

DA/12/14/R

DA/12/14/RVAR

DA/12/14/R10, R15 & R25

Details of a surface water drainage scheme and details of a
construction management strategy pursuant to conditions (15)
and (21) of planning permission AS/11/994

Goat Lees School Site, Between Hurst Rd & Guernsey Way,
Kennington, Ashford

Proposed new 144sgm school hall, constructed within an
internal courtyard adjacent to the existing school hall.
Willesborough Junior School, Highfield Road, Willesborough,
Ashford

Details of a community use plan and a school travel plan
pursuant to conditions 18 and 22 of planning permission
CA/10/1790.

Spires Academy, Land off Bredland’s Lane, Canterbury

Application for a non-material amendment including; tree
removal and soft landscaping details; hard landscaping details;
changes to the elevation details; material alterations and
changes to escape stairs.

Wilmington Academy, Common Lane, Wilmington

Details of all materials to be used externally (condition 4); reptile
survey and any subsequent mitigation (condition 11); scheme to
deal with the risks associated with contamination (condition 18);
programme of archaeological work (condition 24); historic
landscape assessment (condition 26); and construction
management strategy (condition 31) pursuant to planning
permission DA/12/14.

Wilmington Academy, Common Lane, Wilmington

Details of fencing, gates and means of enclosure, biodiversity
management plan and details of foundation design and below
ground excavations.
Wilmington Academy, Common Lane, Wilmington
E2
Page 100



GR/08/229/R36 & R37 Details of Community Use Agreement and hours of community
use pursuant to conditions 36 and 37 of planning permission
GR/08/229 for the redevelopment of Northfleet School for Girls.
Northfleet School for Girls, Hall Road, Northfleet, Gravesend

GR/12/803 8 metre high fibreglass flagpole (white) installed within the
school grounds.
Northfleet Technology College, Colyer Road, Northfleet,
Gravesend

TH/11/587/RVAR Details of a sustainable surface water drainage scheme
(condition 22); a programme of archaeological work (condition
23); below ground excavations (condition 24); and a construction
management strategy (condition 26) pursuant to planning
permission TH/11/587.
(Ursuline College Sports Pitches), Sports Field between Ursuline
College and King Ethelbert School, Canterbury Road, Westgate-
on-Sea

E3 TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT
ASSESSMENT) REGULATIONS 2011 - SCREENING OPINIONS
ADOPTED UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

Background Documents —

e The deposited documents.
e Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2011.
e DETR Circular 02/99 — Environmental Impact Assessment.

(a) Since the last meeting of the Committee the following screening opinions have been
adopted under delegated powers that the proposed development does not constitute
EIA development and the development proposal does not need to be accompanied
by an Environmental Statement:-

KCC/AS/0384/2012 - Planning application for reorganisation of the academy site to
include the demolition of part of the existing main academy building (Hall and Gym),
erection of a new two storey assembly/theatre building and a separate three storey
teaching building, reorganisation of hard and soft landscaping and provision of 127
vehicle parking spaces and 104 cycle parking spaces at The John Wallis Academy,
Millbank Road, Kingsnorth, Ashford.

KCC/SCR/DA/0378/2012 — Request for a Screening Opinion as to whether the
importation of materials from major contracts to provide the foundations to create a
Community Park requires an Environmental Impact Assessment at Stone Pit 1,
Cotton Lane, Stone, Dartford

KCC/DA/0409/2012 - Application for variation of condition 26 of planning permission
DA/11/1043 to amend the hours of operation from 07:00 to 18:00 hours Monday to
Friday and 07:00 to 13:00 hours on Saturdays to 06:00 to 19:00 hours Monday to
Friday and 06:00 to 13:00 hours on Saturdays at Pinden Quarry, Green Street Green
Road, Dartford

E3
Page 101



E4

KCC/GR/0379/2012 - Application for Certificate of Lawfulness of Proposed Use or
Development (CLOPUD) for replacement of existing pipeline and supporting jetty
and removal of the old one at Northfleet Wharf, Botany Marshes, Manor Way,
Northfleet, Gravesend

KCC/MA/0344/2012 — Relocation of waste treatment building, revised site layout and
storage of inert and semi inert waste. Change of use of units 13 and 14 to allow the
acceptance, treatment and storage of waste at Units 6, 13 and 14, Detling Airfield
Industrial Estate, Detling, Maidstone

KCC/TW/0386/2012 - Planning application for external floodlighting proposed to All
Weather Pitch on Site 2 at Skinners Kent Academy, Blackhurst Lane, Tunbridge
Wells

Since the last meeting of the Committee the following screening opinions have been
adopted under delegated powers that the proposed development does constitute EIA
development and the development proposal does need to be accompanied by an
Environmental Statement:-

None.

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT
ASSESSMENT) REGULATIONS 2011 - SCOPING OPINIONS ADOPTED
UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

Since the last meeting of the Committee the following scoping opinions have been adopted
under delegated powers.

Background Documents -

None

The deposited documents.
Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2011.
DETR Circular 02/99 - Environmental Impact Assessment.

E4
Page 102



	Agenda
	A3 Minutes - 6 November 2012
	D1 Proposal TW/12/1442 (KCC/TW/0151/2012) New primary school with associated hardcourt play areas, access, parking and landscaping at Land South of  Rolvenden Road, Benenden, Cranbrook; KCC Property and Infrastructure Support
	D2 Proposal TM/12/2777 (KCC/TM/0273/2012) - Extensions and alterations to existing office, swimming pool and nursery buildings at St Katherine's School, St Katherine's Lane, Snodland; Governors of St Katheriine's School
	D3 Proposal TH/12/755 (KCC/TH/0291/2012) - Retrospective application for two timber framed chalet style buildings at Cliftonville Primary School, Northumberland Avenue, Margate; Governors of Cliftonville Primary School
	E1 County matter applications

